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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Get Nice
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), I hereby present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$524.5 million, representing a
decrease of 6.7% as compared with approximately HK$561.9
million reported in the last corresponding financial year. The
decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in
brokerage commission with less turnover during the year. In
addition, the interest income from margin financing business
and debt securities held by the Group also recorded a decrease as

compared with the last financial year.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$118.3 million (2019: HK$195.1 million).
The decrease in profit was mainly attributable to the decrease in
revenue, increase in net impairment loss on accounts receivable
from margin clients, net of the decrease in finance costs, loss on
redemption of convertible bonds issued by Get Nice Financial
Group Limited (“GNFG”) and reversal of net impairment loss
on loans and advances during the year. The Group recorded
imputed interest expenses arising from convertible bonds issued
by GNFG in September 2017 of HK$31.2 million during the
year (2019: HK$96.7 million). Loss on redemption of HK$38.9
million was recorded upon redemptions of convertible bonds
issued by GNFG of total principal amounts of HK$262.5
million in prior year, no such loss was recorded during the year.
The Group recorded net impairment loss on accounts receivable
from margin clients and reversal of net impairment loss on loans
and advances of HK$110.9 million (2019: HK$20.1 million)
and HK$2.9 million (2019: provision of net impairment loss

HK$16.5 million), respectively in current financial year.

Basic earnings per share for the year were HK1.22 cents (2019:
HK2.02 cents) as a result of decrease in profit during the year.
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ITEHREEREERBERETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Market Review

Hong Kong stocks market started to climb since the beginning
of 2019 as the representatives of both China and the United
States expressed optimism about the trade negotiations. With
US-China trade truce, continued economic growth in the
US, and reaccelerated momentum in Chinese economies, the
investors were generally optimistic and Hang Seng Index reached
the year high of 30,280 points on 15 April 2019. However, the
US President suddenly announced that the trade negotiations
broke down, causing Hong Kong stocks market to fall sharply
since the end of April 2019.

In the third quarter of 2019, US-China trade war was heating up
and the political events in Hong Kong have destroyed investors’
confidence in the stock market. The trade restrictive measures
imposed by the two countries on each other were escalated,
causing economic losses to the economic systems of the two
countries, while at the same time increasing the trade costs
and markets uncertainty globally. Affected by the US-China
trade war, the exchange rate of the renminbi continued to be
weak, which caused the further decline of the Hong Kong
stock market. On the other hand, the market’s concern about
the slowdown of China’s economic activity has deepened the
pessimism mood of the investment market. Due to the continued
trade conflicts with the US and weak domestic demand, China’s
economic growth has slowed to its lowest level in recent years
and Hong Kong has once again fell into a technical recession

since the financial tsunami in 2009.

At the end of 2019, a turnaround occurred and China and the
United States reached a first-stage trade agreement which China
agreed to double purchase of various products from the United
States in the next two years and the United States agreed to
reduce the tariff on China’s imported goods, caused Hong Kong

stocks market to rebound.

In the first quarter of 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak spreads
globally, caused disruptions in various business segments across
the world and investors retreated from risky assets to hold cash.
The plunge of asset prices and oil prices triggered panic sale and

liquidity crunches globally.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

With fears and pessimisms caused by the outbreak of COVID-19
and concerns regarding global economy, the Hang Seng Index
closed at 23,603 points at the end of March 2020, a decrease
of 18.8% as compared with 29,051 points at the end of March
2019. The average daily turnover on the Main Board and
GEM during the year ended 31 March 2020 was approximately
HK$92.2 billion, a decrease of 4.4% as compared with
approximately HK$96.4 billion for the prior financial year.

In respect of the local money lending market, more restrictions
and compliance requirements imposed on banks would offer
more business opportunities to non-bank money lenders as they
could provide more flexible lending services to both retail and
corporate clients. However, the COVID-19 has dragged down
the Hong Kong economy and affected the wealth and income of
Hong Kong citizen, the demand from retail clients has generally
decreased. At the same time, late repayment and overdue rates
began to climb, caused financial institutions to tighten their
loan approval standard. As a result, Hong Kong’s money lending

market has become quieter.

Regarding the local property market, as affected by the US-China
trade war, decline of stock market, the panic caused by
COVID-19 and the uncertainty due to the prolonged political
events in Hong Kong, the property market in Hong Kong shrank
and the overall residential property prices dropped. With the US
Federal Reserve’s announcement of further interest rate cuts, it
has brought a little stimulating effect on the property market
in Hong Kong, which has increased the confidence of potential
buyers who became more cautious and conservative in recent
years. On the other hand, the Hong Kong SAR Government has
introduced dertails of the scheme of restarting the revitalization
of industrial buildings, which has caused more investors to pay
attention to the redevelopment potential, such as conversion to
data center or commercial building. Meanwhile, the UK property
market was also affected by the challenging global trading
environment, the panic caused by COVID-19 and the Brexit in
January 2020. Property prices in the UK were stable but full of

uncertainty.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business review
Broking and securities margin financing

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the broking business
posted a profit of approximately HK$1.4 million (2019:
HKS$15.2 million). The operating result of the broking business
decreased by 90.8% as a result of the decrease in our broking
turnover and number of sizeable corporate finance transactions
during current year. The decrease in broking turnover was
affected by the volatile local stock market and negative global
investment atmosphere. Revenue from broking for the year
decreased by 26.9% to approximately HK$41.4 million (2019:
HK$56.6 million) as compared with last financial year, of which
approximately HK$6.8 million (2019: HK$12.7 million) was
contributed by the underwriting, placing and proof of funds
business. The decrease in these fee incomes was due to the
decrease in number of deals as a result of the less active capital

market during the current year.

Securities margin financing remained to be the Group’s
major revenue contributor for the year. During the year, total
interest income from securities margin financing dropped by
4.4% to approximately HK$325.2 million (2019: HK$340.3
million) with the decrease in average level of securities margin
lending during the year. Total gross accounts reccivable from
margin clients at 31 March 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$3,692.3 million (as at 31 March 2019: HK$3,732.6
million). Net impairment loss on margin clients receivable of
HK$110.9 million was charged during the current year (2019:
HK$20.1 million). The Group will continue to maintain a
balance on yield relative to risk and cautious approach to the

credit control of its margin financing business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Money lending

The money lending vehicle is engaged in provision of consumer
and mortgage loans. The money lending business continued to
show good performance during the year. The aggregated loan
amount decreased to HK$689.2 million at 31 March 2020 from
HK$1,086.2 million at 31 March 2019, with interest income
for the year increased to HK$105.7 million (2019: HK$102.3
million). Money lending business recorded profit before tax
of HK$107.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2020
(2019: HK$85.6 million). Net impairment loss on loans and
advances of HK$2.9 million was reversed during the year (2019:
provision of net impairment loss HK$16.5 million). Building
on the Group’s expertise and relationships with high net worth
customers, the Group remains positive about the money lending
business and will continue to target high net worth customers

with short-term financial needs.

Investments

The investments division held properties and financial
instruments for the Group. Assets allocations are based on
expected return rates and available funding capital. For the year
under review, this division reported a loss of HK$62.6 million
(2019: profic HK$59.2 million), mainly attributable to fair
value losses on investment properties of HK$86.6 million (2019:
gains HK$10.7 million); interest income from two unlisted debt
securities of HK$18.7 million (2019: HK$35.4 million); interest
income from listed debt securities of HK$19.6 million (2019:
HK$12.5 million); rental income of HK$13.7 million (2019:
HK$12.6 million); and the unrealised losses on financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss of HK$19.2 million
(2019: HK$11.0 million) due to the drop of share prices of
certain equity securities listed in Hong Kong among the portfolio
held of HK$107.5 million at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019:
HK$126.9 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group newly
acquired two investment properties in Hong Kong at total
considerations of HK$70 million. At 31 March 2020, the Group
held a portfolio of investment properties with total fair values
of HK$874.1 million (31 March 2019: HK$881.9 million),
comprised mainly the commercial buildings in Hung Hom and

London.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group held an investment portfolio
consisted of equity securities, debt securities, convertibles notes
and investment funds with total fair values of HK$508.2 million
(31 March 2019: HK$815.1 million). The decrease in total fair
values of the investment portfolio was mainly attributable to
the redemption of an unlisted redeemable note with principal
amount of HK$300 million (2019: HK$150 million) during the
year while the Group held larger portfolio of listed debt securities
of HK$248.8 million at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019:
HK$246.1 million). The portfolio of equity securities mainly
comprised listed companies in Hong Kong while the portfolio
of debt securities mainly comprises listed bonds, unlisted
redeemable notes and unlisted convertible notes issued by certain

listed companies in Hong Kong and overseas.

Corporate finance

The Group’s corporate finance business focused on the provision
of financial advisory services to listed companies in Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2020, it completed 2
financial advisory transactions (2019: 5). The operation reported
a segment profit of approximately HK$0.2 million for the year
(2019: HK$1.5 million).

Outlook

Disruption to business operations and logistics due to
COVID-19 seriously affected many industries, the impact will
probably last for a period of time. Economic activities will not
fully resume until the crisis is under control. Countries along the
“Belt and Road” were also affected and China’s investment in
these countries’ infrastructure development was also slow down.
At the same time, the potential restart of US-China trade war
brought further uncertainties to the global trade environment. It
is expected that the overall economy and both the stock market

and property market in Hong Kong may tend to be weak.

In the future, the business environment of the Group will
continue to be competitive. The increasing regulatory
requirements such as the recent effected guidelines for securities
margin financing activities issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission brought further compliance-related and
system-related costs to the Group which may impact the cost

efficiency and earnings growth of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In respect of the investment activities of the Group, management
will keep seeking quality and upscale investment properties in
both Asia and Europe, and also investment in securities with
good potential, to enhance its investment portfolio and continue
to provide a source of steady rental income and investment
gains in the future. Meanwhile, management will adopt cautious

measures to manage the Group’s investment portfolio.

Dealing with the future challenges, the management of the
Group would review and adjust business strategies on regular
basis with a prudent and balanced risk management approach.
The management of the Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the business development and overall performance of
the Group in the future. The Group is endeavoring to render
comprehensive services to our affluent and high-net-worth clients
in order to maintain our clients’ confidence and loyalty. Given
our lean and efficient organization structure, stable clients base,
strong track record and solid business fundamentals, the Group
is poised to expand its horizons and scale new heights in the

years to come in order to continue maximizing returns and value

for all shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

Equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$5,467.1 million as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$5,465.1 million), representing an increase of approximately
HK$2 million or 0.04% over that of last financial year end.
The non-controlling interests decreased from approximately
HK$1,167.8 million at 31 March 2019 to approximately
HK$1,081.7 million at 31 March 2020. These movements
were mainly attributable to the reclassification of the equity
component of convertible bonds issued by GNFG from potential
non-controlling interests to retained earnings upon redemptions
of convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$262.5

million.
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ITEHREEREERBERETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to HK$5,244.3 million (2019: HK$4,986.5 million), and its
liquidity as represented by current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 9 times (2019: 3.97 times). The increase in net
current assets and current ratio were mainly attributable to
the decrease of the liability component of convertible bonds
issued by GNFG due to redemptions of convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$262.5 million upon maturity. Also, the
Group’s bank balances and cash on hand increased to HK$905.2
million (2019: HK$505.9 million). The increase in bank
balances and cash on hand was mainly due to the redemptions
of an unlisted redeemable note with principal amount of
HK$300 million, the decrease in gross loans and advances of
approximately HK$415.3 million and the decrease in gross

accounts receivable of approximately HK$31.6 million.

The Group had no bank borrowings as at 31 March 2020
(2019: HK$50 million) and its unutilised banking facilities as
at the end of the year were approximately HK$1,083 million
(2019: HK$1,033 million), which were mainly secured by
charges over the Group’s clients’ pledged securities, a property
owned by a subsidiary of the Group and corporate guarantees
issued by GNFG and the Company. The liability component
of convertible bonds issued by GNFG amounted to HK$233.5
million at 31 March 2019 was fully redeemed upon maturity
during the year. The Group’s gearing ratio (total borrowing over
equity attributable to owners of the Company) as at 31 March
2020 was 0.01 (2019: 0.06).

The number of issued shares of Company amounted
to 9,662,705,938 shares as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
9,662,705,938 shares).

An investment property located in United Kingdom and its
related rental income which were denominated in British
Pound, the business activities of the Group were not exposed
to material fluctuations in exchange rates as the majority of
the transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The
Directors considered that a reasonably possible annual change of
5% in the exchange rate between Hong Kong dollars and British
Pound would not have material impact on the Group’s results
and therefore hedging through the use of derivative instruments

was considered unnecessary.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the end of

the year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2020, leasehold land and building of the Group
with a carrying amount of HK$102.8 million (2019: HK$105.5
million) were pledged for a banking facility granted to the

Group.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,

Associates and Jointly Controlled Entities

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or jointly controlled entity completed during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 78 (2019: 78) full time
employees. The Group’s employees were remunerated according
to their performance, working experience and market conditions.
The total amount of remuneration cost of employees of the
Group for the year was HK$24.5 million (2019: HK$23.4
million). The Group provides employee benefits including
mandatory provident fund, discretionary share options and

performance bonus to its staff.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Directors recommended a final dividend of HKO0.4 cent per

share, together with the interim dividend paid during the year,
amounting to total dividends of HK1.15 cents per share for this

financial year.
The final dividend will be payable on or about 10 September

2020 to sharcholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 1 September 2020.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&F 2R ERA A

EEEERW
MoE-FBE=ZA=+—H  KEHIE
T 8 £5102,800,000% 76 (= F — JL4F ¢
105,500,000% 70) Z fHL& L K dE 5 > E4F
B 74 S [ 4 42 SR AT M5 0 HE 2 4 o

FHENBAR BMEQAARAREHFER
ZEAWBRHE
WE_F-RE=A=1T—HILEERIE
e 52 R AT BR B JE > m W o ] B 4
[N -¥ - Pa PN

EEER

RoECEE=ZA=Z+—H  AEFIHL
A7800 (ZF— LA - 780) 1B B - A
Th¥k AR B £ B T ME KBy K I E
B BB o A AR RE - AR 2 R B AR
Pl A% A £524,500,000% o6 (- F — JLAF ¢
23,400,000%5 70) © A 4R [ $2 (i 1 I8 & 48 A
A 35 5 R AR A R B BN AR 2 I
HE > DA ) B T8 AR 4L -

RER S
AR R R R B 04U (1) o
A AE N B IRAT 2 A S, - A BE AR i 2
B A S A R s sl -

A SRR =R R E LA A+ H ST &
R % Z AL — H A IR L F R
5 Re i A 2 AR 2w BOR IR 3% o



ITEHREEREERBERETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed on the
following time periods during which no transfer of shares of the

Company will be registered:

For attendance to 2020
Annual General Meeting

: 19 August 2020 — 24
August 2020, both dates

inclusive

For entitlement to

final dividend

: 31 August 2020 — 1 September 2020,
both dates inclusive (Record
date being 1 September 2020)

In order to qualify for attendance to the Company’s 2020
Annual General Meeting which is scheduled to be held on 24
August 2020, Monday and / or entitlement to the final dividend,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited of Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on the

following dates:

Last date of lodgement of

Events transfer documents

For attendance to 2020
Annual General Meeting

18 August 2020, Tuesday

For entitlement to

ﬁmz/ dividend

28 August 2020, Friday

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express my gratitude to our
customers and shareholders for their continued support. I would
also like to thank your all our directors, the management team

and staff members for their hard work and dedicated service.

By Order of the Board

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hung Hon Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. HUNG Hon Man, aged 66, is the chairman and the chief

executive officer of the Company and founder of the Group.
He is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy and
the future direction of the Group. Mr. Hung is also responsible
for overseeing the money lending and credit operation, property
development and investment of the Group. Mr. Hung possesses
over 25 years of experience in the securities and real estate
industries in Hong Kong and Taiwan. He is also the chairman of
GNFG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which
was spun off for separate listing on the main board of the Stock
Exchange on 8 April 2016.

Mr. CHAM Wai Ho, Anthony, aged 74, is the deputy chairman
of the Company. He is responsible for the formulation of
corporate strategy and future direction of the Group. Mr. Cham
is also responsible for overseeing the money lending business,
property development and investment the Group. Mr. Cham
possesses over 51 years of experience in the banking, financial,
securities and real estate industries. Before joining the Group in
September 1991, he held senior executive positions in various

international banks.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - continued

Mr. KAM Leung Ming, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director on 28 April 2017. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy and a master’s degree in corporate governance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is currently
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, an associate member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom. He has over 23 years of experience in auditing,
professional accounting and worked for several Hong Kong
listed companies of various industries and served senior roles in
financial management and secretarial functions. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Ever Harvest Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1549) and Genes Tech Group
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 8257). All of the
above companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Kam
was appointed as the committee member of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee (Baoshan
District) in December 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. MAN Kong Yui, aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 3 October 2005. He
holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Man has been involved
in the investment and financial industries for over 41 years and
has extensive experience in bullion, foreign exchange, securities,
futures and asset management business. He has held various
senior positions with prominent banks, international financial
institutions and listed companies in Hong Kong. He was the
chief executive officer of Global Mastermind Securities Limited
from 25 August 2017 to 1 April 2020. Mr. Man is currently
an independent non-executive director of TradeGo FinTech
Limited (stock code: 8017), a company whose shares are listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS - continued

Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 28 January 2014.
Mr. Sun holds a Bachelor degree in Economics from Monash
University in Australia. He is a member of CPA Australia and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Sun possesses over 24 years of experience in
international finance, corporate finance, corporate planning,
financial management and accounting and held executive
positions at several international banks, accounting firms, the
Hong Kong Airport Authority and an information technology
company. Mr. Sun was an independent non-executive director
of Zhongda International Holdings Limited (former stock code:
909) from 9 November 2006 to 4 April 2019, a company whose
shares were listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange in
Hong Kong but was delisted on 8 March 2019. He is currently a

director of Saigon Commercial Bank of Vietnam.

Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 1
September 2014. Mr. Siu has worked in the finance and
banking field for over 25 years. He is the managing director of
Fortune Take International Limited, a company engaging in
providing financial consultancy services. Mr. Siu was the senior
vice president of AIG Finance (Hong Kong) Limited and the
vice president of Bank of America and responsible for business
development and credit risk management. He obtained a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Hull in
the United Kingdom. Mr. Siu was an independent non-executive
director of New Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 2326) for the period from 5 June 2009 to 31 January
2020 and is currently an independent non-executive director of
Sun Entertainment Group Limited (stock code: 8082, formerly
known as “Sage International Group Limited”). All of the above

companies are listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2020.

This Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. This is with
the view of being a transparent and responsible organization
which is open and accountable to the Company’s shareholders.
The Directors believe that good corporate governance practices
are increasingly important for maintaining and promoting the

CODﬁanCC Of our investors.

An explanation of how the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code were put into practice during the year under

review is set out below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange), titled “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report” (the “Code”), save for the deviation from

Code Provision A.4.1 which is explained as follow:

Code A.4.1

Code A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
Company has deviated from the Code provision A.4.1. The
independent non-executive Directors were not appointed
for a specific term. Instead they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years. This is
in accordance with the provision of the Company’s articles of
association (“Articles”). As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose of this

Code provision.

The Directors believe that, despite the absence of specified
term of independent non-executive Directors, the Directors
remain committed to representing the long-term interests of the

Company and the Sharcholders as a whole.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE - continued
Code A.2.1

Code A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and

set out in writing.

The roles of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer (“CEO”) are performed by the same individual, which
is a non-compliance to the Code provision A.2.1. However, the
Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management
of the Company. The balance of power and authority is ensured
by the operations of the Board, which comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals and meets regularly to discuss issues
relating to the operations of the Company. The Board has full
confidence in Mr. Hung Hon Man and believes that having
Mr. Hung performing the roles of the chairman of the Board and
the CEO is beneficial to the Company as a whole.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company’s long-term corporate strategy, to oversee the
management of the Group, to evaluate the performance of the
Group and to assess the achievement of targets periodically
set by the Board. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company are delegated to the CEO
and the senior management. In addition, the Board has also
established three Board Committees and has delegated various
responsibilities to them as set out in their terms of reference. The
Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge
its responsibilities. Details of the delegation by the Board will be
discussed in the paragraphs below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises six Directors, more than
one-third of these Directors are non-executive and independent
of the management. The Board is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Group’s affair. The Board has a balance of skill
and experience appropriate and diversity of perspective for the

requirements of the Group’s businesses.

As at the date of this annual report, three of them are executives,
namely, Mr. Hung Hon Man, Chairman and CEO, Mr. Cham
Wai Ho, Anthony, Deputy Chairman and Mr. Kam Leung
Ming and three of the Directors are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick (Member of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee), Mr. Man Kong Yui (Member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)and
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of Audit Committee,

Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee).

Each of the Directors’ respective biographical details is set out in
the “Biographical details of Directors” of this annual report. As
at the date of this report, the Board members have no financial,

business, family or other relationships with each other.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board has at all times
adopted the board diversity policy. It sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance
its effectiveness. The Company endeavors to ensure that the
Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives. The appointments of board
members will continue to be made on merit basis, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board. Pursuant to the board
diversity policy, the Company seeks to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, culture and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Board will set up and review the measurable objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the

progress made towards achieving those objectives.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY - continued
The Board has revised and adopted the board diversity policy

on 26 April 2019 and will review from time to time the
implementation of the policy, as appropriate, to ensure its

continued effectiveness.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify its Directors and officers against liabilities arising
out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis ensuring that the Directors and officers are

adequately protected against potential legal liabilities.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and the conduct, business activities and development

of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment. This is to ensure the new employee
possesses an appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and has full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are expected to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, relevant reading
materials including regulatory updates and seminar handouts,
etc. were provided to the Directors for their reference and

studying.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT - continued

A summary of their records of training during the financial year

is as follows:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Hung Hon Man LV S e A

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony S e

Mr. Kam Leung Ming HoE WA
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry et

Mr. Man Kong Yui SCI B Se A

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick = R ek

BOARD PRACTICES

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings
adhere to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is
addressed to the Board and all Directors have the opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for Board meetings. All Directors
have access to Board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information which enables the Board to
make an informed decision on the matters to be discussed and
considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required and the Directors can obtain

independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
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BOARD PRACTICES - continued
All Directors were provided with monthly updates by the

Group’s management, giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position, recent
developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep them
abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to discharge

their duties under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, 12 Board meetings and
2 general meetings were held. Directors may participate either in
person or through electronic means of communications. Details

of the attendance of the Directors in the meetings are as follows:

Audit
Board  Committee

gzg  ENZAE

Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Hung Hon Man W 11112 N/ARHE A
Mr. Cham Wai Ho Anthony HAZEE 1212 N/AARHE
Mr. Kam Leung Ming HEmEE 1212 N/AR#EH

Independent Non-Executive Directors & UFHTES

M. Siu Hi Lam, Alick [ Ay 12/12 202
Mr. Man Kong Yui RIS 12/12 22
M. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry g Ve 12/12 212

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version

is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting. The Articles also contain
provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a material

interest.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Cham
Wai Ho, Anthony have entered into service contracts with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2002 and will continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by either party giving not less than three months’

prior notice in writing to the other.

Other Directors did not enter into any service contract with the
Company and there are no fixed or proposed length of service
with the Company. All Directors are subject to retirement by the

rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest one-third) should retire from office by rotation. Further,
any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and should then be

eligible for re-election at the meeting.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Mr. Kam Leung Ming and Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick, will retire by

rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2020.

The Company has adopted written guidelines, “Code for
securities transactions by relevant employees”, on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside

information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the written guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Company’s Chairman and CEO are
complementary, but importantly, they are distinct and separate

with a clear division of responsibilities.

Mr. Hung Hon Man, the chairman of the Company provides
leadership to the Board; ensures effectiveness of the Board and

helps foster better relationships between Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Mr. Hung Hon Man
also took the post of the CEO of the Company who was
responsible for developing strategies for the Board’s approval,
executing the strategies agreed by the Board and led the

management of the Group’s operation.

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the CEO are
performed by the same individual, which is a non-compliance
to the Code provision A.2.1. Details were discussed under the
heading “Corporate Governance Code Compliance” of this

report.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions,
in particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of
the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent advice
on the Group’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of Shareholders can be taken into account and the

interests of the Company and its Shareholders can be protected.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board at all times
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors, and complied with the requirement that these
should include one such Director with appropriate professional
qualifications of accounting or related financial management
expertise. Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry has the appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters

required.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that the three independent non-executive Directors are
independent in character and judgement and they also meet the

independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy that, in

recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate and sufficient cash reserves for future growth.
The Board has the full discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, and any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, among other things, the Group’s general financial
position, capital and debt level, future cash requirements and
availability of business operations, business strategies and future
development needs, any restrictions on payment of dividends
and any other factors the Board may consider relevant. Any
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Articles and all applicable laws and

regulations.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Group’s operation is vested in
the Board. The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Group, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategic development of
the Group, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operation
and financial performance, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring of the performance of the senior
management. The Directors have to make decisions objectively

in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the CEO and senior management
of the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Pursuant to the levels of authority
approved by the Board, the senior management executes
day-to-day operations unless the subject matter exceeds the
authority granted by the Board or relates to any matters
specifically reserved to the Board, they would seek approval from
the Board.

The Board has established (i) Nomination Committee (ii)
Remuneration Committee and (iii) Audit Committee, with
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees which explain their respective roles and the authority
delegated to them by the Board are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice and other assistance in appropriate

circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i) to
review the structure, size and diversity of the Board on a regular
basis; (ii) to recommend to the Board suitable candidates for
directorship after consideration of the nominees’ independence
(if applicable) and quality in order to ensure the fairness
and transparency of all nominations; and (iii) to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. In
identifying suitable director candidates and making such
recommendations to the Board, the Nomination Committee
would also take into account various aspects of a candidate,
including but not limited to, his/her education background,
professional experience, experience with the relevant industry
and past directorships. The Nomination Committee currently
comprises three members, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi Lam Alick,
Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of

Nomination Committee).

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. There

were two meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2020.

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out below:

(i) assessed the independence of independent non-executive

Directors;

(ii) recommended the re-election of retiring Directors at the

Company’s annual general meeting; and
(iii) reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board.

Nomination Policy

On 26 April 2019, the Board has adopted the nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the nomination
criteria and procedures for the Company to appoint additional
directors or re-elect directors. The Nomination Policy can assist
the Company in achieving board diversity and enhancing the

effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance standard.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued
Nomination Committee — continued

Nomination Policy — continued

When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such
as the reputation integrity, accomplishment and experience,
commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention
to the Group’s business will be taken into consideration as a
whole. In addition, a range of diverse perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skill and knowledge would be
considered. In the case of independent non-executive Directors,
the candidates must further satisfy the independence criteria set

out in the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company; to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights, compensation payments and any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and

ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi
Lam Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee). The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year. There were three meetings
held during the year ended 31 March 2020.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out below:

(i) reviewed the remuneration of Directors and senior

management of the Group; and

(ii) approved the basic salary increment of Directors and staff of

the Group.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee, on named basis, at committee meetings during
the year is set out in the section “Board and Board Committee

Meetings” of this report above.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Remuneration Committee — continued

The primary aim of the remuneration policy is to enable the
Company to motivate and retain executive Directors and senior
management by comparing their performance against corporate
goals and objectives when determining appropriate compensation
for them. The principal elements of the remuneration package
include basic salary, discretionary bonus, retirement scheme
contributions and share options. No Director or any of his/her
associates should be involved in any decision as to his/her own
remuneration. In determining guidelines for each compensation
element, the Company refers to the comparable remuneration

standard in the market.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditors and has authority to
raise questions regarding the resignation or dismissal of the
auditors; overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process
and internal control and risk management systems and to
review the Group’s interim and annual consolidated financial
statements. The Audit Committee has access to and maintains
an independent communication with the external auditor and

management.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance function
to the Audit Committee. The major responsibilities are to review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Audit Committee — continued

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. The members
are Mr. Siu Hi Lam Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka
Ziang, Henry, all of whom are not involved in the day-to-day
management of the Company. Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry,
who has appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The principal work performed by the Audit

Committee during the year is as follows:

(i) reviewed interim and annual consolidated financial

statements and announcements of the Company;

(ii) reviewed the continuing connected transactions and

connected transactions of the Group;

(iii) reviewed and discussed with management regarding risk

management and effectiveness of internal control;
(iv) reviewed the re-appointment of external auditors;

(v) reviewed and monitored of the continuous professional

development of Directors; and

(vi) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and

relevant disclosures.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. There were
two meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2020. The
attendance of each member of the Audit Committee, on named
basis, at committee meetings during the year is set out in the
section “Board and Board Committee Meetings” of this report
above. There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the selection and appointment of the

external auditor.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
comprehensive information to the shareholders on assessment of

the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Directors’ responsibility

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company are to give a true and
fair view and comply with all applicable regulatory requirements
and accounting standards. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern as at 31 March 2020. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2020 on a going concern basis.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s financial position, its financial performance and
cash flows for the year. Management provides the Board with
management accounts and updates on a monthly basis, with a
view to giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position, and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020, the Board:

(a) adopted HKFRSs, which conform to the International

Reporting Standards in all material respects;

(b) selected suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently;

(¢) made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates;

and

(d) ensured that the financial statements were prepared on a

going concern basis.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued

Directors’ responsibility — continued

In financial year ended 31 March 2020, the annual and
interim results were published within 3 months and 2 months
respectively after the end of the relevant periods to provide

stakeholders with transparent and timely financial information.

Independent auditor’s responsibility

The responsibilities of Mazars CPA Limited, Certified
Public Accountants, the Company’s external auditor, on the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the section

headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report on

pages 56 to 62.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the establishment
and maintenance of sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the Group’s corporate

interests.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage prudently but
not completely eliminate the risk of system failure. Systems and
procedures are put in place to identify, manage and control the

risks of different businesses and activities.

The internal control system is to maintain proper accounting
records and to comply with relevant laws and regulations. The
Group has its independent audit function, assisting the Board
and management to conduct regular and independent review to
ensure a sound internal control system is being implemented,
maintained, and relevant regulatory requirements are complied
with. On a yearly basis, the internal audit personnel will present
a report to the Audit Committee relating to operational,
financial and compliance aspects and will alert the management
on the audit review findings or irregularities, if any, advise them
on the implementation of necessary steps and actions to enhance

the internal controls of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee,
as delegated by the Board, has reviewed the report provided
by the Group’s internal audit personnel and is satisfied the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. It has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and
financial reporting functions and their training programs and

budgets.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL - continued
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board has set up

its risk management policy and risk appetite statement which
clearly defines the types of risk that the Group is prepared to
pursue, retain or tolerate. The risk management process includes
identifying ownership of risks, business objectives and risks that
could affect the achievement of objectives; (ii) analyzing the
likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio
accordingly; and (iii) considering the risk responses and ensure
effective communication to the Board/senior management
and ongoing monitor the residual risks (if any). A risk register
was maintained as a tool for documenting risks and actions to

manage each risk on an ongoing basis.

During the year, the senior management is responsible for
maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
control. The risk control is implemented to minimize the risks to
which the Group is exposed to during the day-to-day operation
of business. The senior management designs, implements and
maintains the risk control to safeguard the assets of the Group.
It also involves making decisions regarding which risks are

acceptable and how to address those that are not.
The Board has confirmed that a review of the effectiveness of the

risk management and internal control systems was conducted and

considers them effective and adequate.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDER INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosure are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
Group has an inside information policy with the procedures
and internal controls for handling and dissemination of insider

information as follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Insider Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

e the Group has implemented its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing board, non-exclusive distribution of information
to the public through public announcements and the

Company’s website;

e the access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis such that employees
who are in possession of inside information are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality;

and

e the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs
and only designated persons are authorised to speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external

parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kam Leung Ming is the company secretary of the Company
and a full time employee of the Company. He has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters. Mr. Kam confirmed that
he has complied with all the required qualifications, experience

and training requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to
maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure that the
investors and the shareholders of the Company receive accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information about the Group
through the publication of annual reports, announcements and

circulars.

The Company also publishes all corporate correspondences on
the Company’s website www.getnice.com.hk. Shareholders and
investors may also email their queries to the Company’s email
address: investor@getnice.com.hk, which will be handled by
the Company’s Investor Relations team. The Board maintains
regular dialogues with investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and
plans. The Directors and the members of the various board
committees attend and answer questions raised at the general
meetings of the Company. Separate resolutions are proposed at

the general meetings on each substantially separate issue.

The chairman of the general meetings of the Company explains
the procedures for conducting a poll before putting a resolution
to vote. The results of the voting by poll are then published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more sharcholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company and carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company by mail at the Company’s principal
office address in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the

Company.

The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
and sufficient contact details to enable these enquiries to be

properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 10/F., Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza,
183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary
forwards communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the Board and communications relating to ordinary

business matters, such as suggestions, and inquiries to the CEO.

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at shareholders’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to
the Board by written requisition. Shareholders who wish to put
forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary general
meeting by following the procedures as set out in paragraph
headed “How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting” above.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there was no significant

change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

BREMNRREERRZ
RABHERREHAG 2T %

RGN > AF ] — 22 5L B R 2 2R
H A A D AR 2w WA HE R Al R B R
FREZHBBA 2 — R > AL
I6] 55 E mAS A F 2 4 R RS AR L T 2
R BORHE S A B ORI 5 W] B
A AT 2 15 43 BB SRS R > H R TR
WEARNFRAEBZ EEWHEIE - A K
B R E B BORAZ B W AR R AT o iR
BRAHNEHRGRAAHREG > QER
FOR N A B LR BT AF 8 i
ERERNENERGRAERARG&
HUEE A 2 B AT B S ol A 28 w1 R AR
AT

MESERHEANARKN - ZHBEFE
ZRFUREHNEZREE

JBe oGN] e AR AR A
MFRARNFZ FERFEFBS R G KE
W 18395 M AL T B I R K IE 1074 > W7
AR MER AFREGHERTE
HEHZAR@ENEERG > mARRKH
GEZEN-PatNC Sk IR LRy
o R AT B

EFRRASRHEZBNEFREHBE
AR O R A B A B S 0K
W KB B 2 R R R R OK & bR o
ARERABHENERFRTERY -
iR 2wk 2 OR MEAR B8 | ST T R A B i
WRFHIR G 2 J7 15 | — B 2 72 7 4 B Ak
WK & -

BE 4
R B BE = H R A
O ) 2 3 85 S I 6 T A B

Annual Report 2020 %3

i

37



38

EEEHE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors of the Company (“the Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are (i) money lending, (ii)
property development and holding and investment in financial
instruments; (iii) real estate agency and (iv) the provision of
financial services, including securities dealing and broking,
futures and options broking, securities margin financing
and corporate finance services. Particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 63 to 64.

An interim dividend of HK$0.0075 per share amounting to
approximately HK$72,470,295 in aggregate was paid during
the year. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.004 per share to the sharcholders on the
register of members on 1 September 2020.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 March 2020
is set out on page 220 of this annual report. This summary does
not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements in
this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property and
equipment, and investment properties of the Group are set out
in notes 18 and 19, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. There
is no movement in the share capital of the Company during the
year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company with details
are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares during the year or

subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
67 to 68.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s

shares.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 31 March 2020, the reserves of the Company available

for distribution to sharecholders were approximately
HKS$3,131,662,000 (2019: HK$3,114,921,000) which comprised

the share premium, special reserve and retained earnings.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Kam Leung Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
Mr. Man Kong Yui
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of the audit committee,

nomination committee and remuneration committee)

Mr. Kam Leung Ming and Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with
provision 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association. Being

eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF

DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following

confirmations from

the Directors, save as otherwise set out

in this report, there is no change in the information of the

Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)

of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing

Rules”) on the Stock Exchange:

Name of Director

Mr. Hung
Hon Man

Mr. Cham Wai Ho
Anthony

Mr. Kam Leung
Ming

Mr. Man Kong Yui

Mr. Sun Ka Ziang,
Henry

Mr. Siu Hi Lam,
Alick

Details of change

The monthly salary of Mr. Hung was
increased from HK$20,000 to HK$20,400
with effect from January 2020.

The monthly salary of Mr. Cham was
increased from HK$32,000 to HK$32,640
with effect from January 2020.

The monthly salary of Mr. Kam was
increased from HK$34,740 to HK$35,440
with effect from January 2020.

The monthly director fee of Mr. Man was
increased from HK$9,500 to HK$10,000
with effect from January 2020.

The monthly director fee of Mr. Sun was
increased from HK$9,500 to HK$10,000
with effect from January 2020.

The monthly director fee of Mr. Siu was
increased from HK$9,500 to HK$10,000
with effect from January 2020. Mr. Siu
resigned as an independent non-executive
director of New Provenance Everlasting
Holdings Limited on 31 January 2020.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to

16 on the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Certain executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man and
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony have entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years and
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three

months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

The term of office of each independent non-executive Director
is for the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance

with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 13 January 2020, King Joy Asia Limited (“King Joy”, as

the purchaser), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. Hung Hon Shing (“Mr. Hung HS”, as the
seller) entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
(“Agreement”) pursuant to which King Joy agreed to acquire,
and Mr. Hung HS agreed to sell the entire equity interest in Red
Eagle Securities Limited (“Red Eagle”) at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$62.8 million (subject to adjustment).
Red Eagle is licensed corporation under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance with regulated activity under
Type 1 Dealing in Securities and is a participant of the Stock
Exchange. The principal activity of Red Eagle is provision of
securities brokerage services. Mr. Hung HS is the elder brother
of Mr. Hung Hon Man (“Mr. Hung”), an executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company. The transaction
contemplated under the Agreement is subject to reporting and
announcement requirements but is exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 13 January 2020.

On 25 February 2020, Get Nice Development Limited (“GND?,
as the seller), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. Hung (as the purchaser) entered into an
unconditional sale and purchase agreement (“SP Agreement”)
pursuant to which GND agreed to sell, and Mr. Hung agreed
to acquire the entire equity interest in Trillion Income Limited
(“TIL”) at a cash consideration of approximately HK$61.4
million. TIL is an investment holding company having indirect
equity interest in a property development project in London.
The transaction contemplated under the SP Agreement is subject
to reporting and announcement requirements but is exempt
from the circular (including independent financial advice) and
shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 25 February 2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED BEBRERS
TRANSACTIONS
1. Tenancy agreement 1. HEHSR
Transaction Name of counterparty Term of agreement Address of premises Amount
x5 REHF2EB 1fh = F 29 E ok 8
HK$
o
Tenancy made on 1 June Legend Creative 1 June 2015 to 31 May ~ Workshop C9 and C10 650,000
2015, renewed on Enterprise Limited 2017, renewed on 11/F, Block C, Hong Kong
5 June 2017 and 16 May as the tenant 5 June 2017 for two Industrial Centre, Nos.
2019 (monthly rental 4 Bl = A PR years and further 489-491 Castle Peak Road,
increased from HK$42,000 (EEM) renewed on 16 May Kowloon, Hong Kong
to HK$65,000 since 2019 for two years to FHBIEFIE
1 September 2019) (Note) 31 May 2021 489-491%%
A E—TAEANA—H “E-RFENH—H A T L CHE
A2 FoF—LE 11H£C9 S C10 %81z
N E—LEANATH TA=+—H":
LZF—NFERA+TAH R FE—LENA
M (A ZF - T H B W AF
I — B H42,0009 0 LA
TEHE N 265,000 7T) (Hf AR H#E
it) HE— IR
R —FHA
= +—H
Note: The tenant is an associate of Mr. Hung Hon Man, an Mt aE - T By AN wHUAT 2 55 e A2
executive Director and Chairman of the Company. A EANL
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

2. Brokerage services and margin loan financing

Name of connected person

Executive Directors:
Hung Hon Man and his associates
Cham Wai Ho, Anthony and his associate

Kam Leung Ming and his associates

Directors of certain subsidiaries of
the Group:
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and his associate
Hung Sui Kwan and his associate
Cheng Wai Ho and his associate
Ng Hon Sau, Larry and his associate

BMEALHSA

HITES:

S @SN} YN
Y EERE YN
HoEW B8 AL

FREETHELARCES:

SV EN ] YN
S RINEN N
LSy 8N ) JNe
IS B e} YNan

Save as disclosed in (3) and (4) below, the Directors,

including the independent non-executive Directors, were

of the opinion that the transactions listed above were

on normal commercial terms where all of the applicable

percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) on an

annual basis calculated under the Listing Rules were

less than 5% and the annual consideration was less than
HK$3,000,000. The transactions were thus exempted

from the reporting, annual review, announcement and

independent sharecholders’ approval requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing Rules.
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Brokerage
commission
income paid

to the Group
for the year
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788,392
10,182
5,282

15,644
74,103
21,881

140

Margin loan
interest paid
to the Group

for the year

Fae
NFFA&HE
ZREE
BERAE
HK$

g

15,813,590

2,339

17
2,273

8,692

Maximum
amount of
margin loan

for the year

£R
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ot

316,559,142

429,988

102,972
955,977

606,237
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

3.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided
to Asia Smart Group Limited

On 30 August 2017, Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”),
a subsidiary of the Company and Asia Smart Group Limited
(“Asia Smart”), a company wholly owned by Mr. Hung
Hon Man (an executive Director and the chairman of the
Board), entered into (i) the financing services agreement
(“2017 Financing Services Agreement”, as amended by
supplemental agreement dated 12 September 2017),
pursuant to which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon
request from Asia Smart and/or its associates, provide or
procure any other company amongst the Group to provide
the margin financing facilities to Asia Smart and/or its
associates from time to time during the period from 20
November 2017 to 31 March 2020; and (ii) the broking
services agreement (“2017 Broking Services Agreement”)
pursuant to which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon
request from Asia Smart and/or its associates, provide
broking services and services incidental thereto by GNS
or any company amongst the Group to Asia Smart and/
or its associates during the period from 30 August 2017
to 31 March 2020. Details of the terms and conditions of
the 2017 Financing Services Agreement and 2017 Broking
Services Agreement can be referred to the announcements
dated 30 August 2017 and 12 September 2017 and circular
dated 18 October 2017.

On 1 November 2019, GNS and Asia Smart entered into
the termination agreement pursuant to which the 2017
Broking Services Agreement and the 2017 Financing
Services Agreement were terminated on 15 December 2019.

During the period from 1 April 2019 to 15 December
2019, (i) the interest income earned from Asia Smart by
GNS amounted to approximately HK$10,478,000 (with
annual cap set at HK$19,000,000 for the year ended
31 March 2020);
loan granted to Asia Smart amounted to approximately
HK$228,348,000 (with annual cap set at HK$230,000,000
for the year ended 31 March 2020); and (iii) the brokerage
commission earned from Asia Smart by GNS amounted

(ii) the maximum amount of margin

to approximately HK$502,000 (with annual cap set at
HK$8,000,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

3.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided
to Asia Smart Group Limited — continued

Pursuant to the rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the above transactions have been entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on
normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be); and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them during the validity of the agreement periods on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions
pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and advised
the Board in writing (with a copy provided to the Stock
Exchange) that the above transactions, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that: (i)
have not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve the provisions of
goods or services by the Group; (iii) were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and (iv) have
exceeded the their respective annual caps.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided
to Mr. Hung Hon Man and/or any controlled companies

On 1 November 2019, GNS and Mr. Hung Hon Man
(“Mr. Hung”) (an executive Director and chief executive
officer), entered into (i) the financing services agreement
(“Financing Services Agreement”), pursuant to which GNS
may (but not obliged to), upon request from Mr. Hung
and/or any controlled companies, provide or procure any
other company amongst the Group to provide the margin
financing facilities to Mr. Hung and/or, as the case may be,
the relevant controlled company from time to time during
the period from 15 December 2019 to 14 December 2022;
and (ii) the broking services agreement (“Broking Services
Agreement”) pursuant to which GNS may (but not obliged
to), upon request from Mr. Hung and/or any controlled
companies, provide broking services and services incidental
thereto by GNS or any company amongst the Group to Mr.
Hung and/or any controlled companies during the period
from 15 December 2019 to 14 December 2022. Details
of the terms and conditions of the Financing Services
Agreement and Broking Services Agreement can be referred
to the announcement dated 1 November 2019 and circular
dated 22 November 2019.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

4. Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided
to Mr. Hung Hon Man and/or any controlled companies

— continued

During the period from 15 December 2019 to 31 March
2020, (i) the interest income earned from Mr. Hung by
GNS amounted to approximately HK$5,171,000 (with
annual cap set at HK$7,500,000 for the period from 15
December 2019 to 31 March 2020); (ii) the maximum
amount of margin loan granted to Mr. Hung amounted to
approximately HK$314,912,000 (with annual cap set at
HK$330,000,000 for the period from 15 December 2019
to 31 March 2020); and (iii) the brokerage commission
earned from Mr. Hung by GNS amounted to approximately
HK$243,000 (with annual cap set at HK$2,400,000 for the
period from 15 December 2019 to 31 March 2020).

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the above transactions
have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better
(as the case may be); and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them during the validity of the agreement
periods on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests

of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has reviewed the abovementioned
continuing connected transactions pursuant to rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules and advised the Board in writing (with a copy
provided to the Stock Exchange) that the above transactions,
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that: (i) have not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group if the transactions involve the provisions of goods or
services by the Group; (iii) were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the their respective

annual caps.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related
party transactions which constituted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules which
are set out in the section headed “Connected Transactions” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 42 to 47, have
compiled with Chapter 14A.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As of 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
the Company

Name of Director Capacity

EEng R
Mr. Hung Hon Man

S B H sz H A (i)

Held by controlled corporation (Note)

BEALRS

A S FTE H W SRR R AR AT 2 R B
N 58 5y 2 w6 WO A i B 5 i 3R M
43 o WA B TRV R 2 Bl s B R A
B A o 2 BN 58 b (3 R A4 4k
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#0) Sy BRI 14A R 2 BUE -
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B MR 28 35 20 A 2w 2R T A7 1 8 T 1
P e Sk AR 4 i S R P o 2 A M S I 2R
R A o m) S S i 2 ME AR IR AR
A 8 X AT N B TR R R B
BRI T (R 28 50RO AR Bl S X VR
A ~ AR B A M fE R R 2 SR AN

1. XRAAEREMEIBTZEBR 2K
B

Percentage

Number of of the issued

issued ordinary share capital

shares held of the Company

FRiFE®RT HEAQXTEHT

BEBERHAE BRAzZBD

2,898,049,874 29.99%

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
2,898,049,874 ordinary shares of the Company which
are held by Honeylink Agents Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is

beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued

2

Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”),

a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEHS BmEME

Mr. Hung Hon Man
PSSR

Beneficial owner

Ha A A
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2. RADAZIZENMBRAAEFRES
BRAA((HirEs]) 2B8REELO
BIZEREEEERZHR

Percentage

Number of of the issued

non-voting non-voting

deferred deferred
shares* held shares** of GNS
LEHERS

FisERERE CEBRTERERE
EER#E EZER*ZBEIH
36,000,000 90%

*ok

The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.

The other 10% of the issued non-voting deferred shares of
GNS, being 4,000,000 shares are held by Mr. Shum Kin
Wai, Frankie, the managing director of GNS.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued

3. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01

EERBETRARZRDER -
&
3. REAAFZEANBAALH LS

each of GNFG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the REEIBIZEBRZER
Company
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
Name of director Capacity shares held of GNFG
HEFEE
FRiFE #&1T ERTRA
EEsS EEiE BEBERHE ZEDHK
Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 50,309,829 2.01%
L e 2 BT A (72)

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
50,309,829 ordinary shares of GNFG which are held by
Honeylink Agents Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by
Mr. Hung Hon Man.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##1ZRER A A

Al o BEEESCEE W 2 B Hi Honeylink
Agents Limited®F A 2 &5 4F <& fll
50,309,829 i ¥ 4 Jit 2 HE 4
Honeylink Agents Limited %% it 5% Ji
LR R MRS 2 AR AT H
AR EBEAT IBOAS R U SO AR
BA -

PR b SCRT 988 & 40 > Y % A = A
=t H o MR R K B R 5 3520
Tl A A 8 R T T T Bk AR A A E < B i
I A% 2y w] A P AR i g AR E]
=l B R AT BN BB A AS 2 ] B AT AT
HHB 1% (G 28 8 I MW B 9] 55X VER)
AT AT P A3 B I S A7 1 A £ HEE i BT



SHARE OPTIONS

A new share option scheme was adopted by the Company
in August 2012. Particulars of the share option schemes are
set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
On 16 January 2019, the Company granted share options to
three grantees, which are non-employee eligible participants,
to subscribe for a total of 289,800,000 ordinary shares of the
Company under the share option scheme. The exercise price
is HK$0.26 per share. Details of the grant of share options,
including the validity of the share options can be referred to the
announcement of the Company dated 16 January 2019. On 21
August 2019, the refreshment of scheme mandate limit under
the share option scheme was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting by way of an ordinary
resolution. The Company is thus entitled to issue a maximum
of 966,270,593 shares upon exercise of the share options to be
granted under the refreshed scheme mandate limit, representing
10% of the issued shares as at the date of the annual general
meeting held on 21 August 2019. No share option was granted,
exercised or cancelled under the share option scheme during the

year.

As at 31 March 2020, the number of share options to subscribe
for a total of 966,270,593 shares in the Company, representing
approximately 10% of the total number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company, may still be granted under the share option

scheme.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2020, so far as is known to any Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the persons or corporations
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had, or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO (“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified to the Company

were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Name Capacity

=L EEME

Hung Hon Man
B H 2 L B R A ()

Beneficial owner (Note)

Ha A N (B aE)

Honeylink Agents Limited
(“Honeylink™)

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in 2,898,049,874
ordinary shares of the Company which are held by Honeylink, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Directors were
not aware of any person or corporation (other than the Director
and chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in DI Register or

otherwise notified to the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in

note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED £ #i=RERA A

Held by controlled corporation (Noze)

FERR
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Number of issued Percentage of the

ordinary shares issued share capital

held of the Company

FRBE®T GHARXASET
EERRAE BEAzBED K
2,898,049,874 29.99%
2,898,049,874 29.99%
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2020, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the

listed shares of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s turnover

attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the

principal activities of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$90,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance by the Company with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
are on pages 17 to 37 of the Corporate Governance Report in

this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board, as
authorised by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
duties, responsibilities and performance, and the prevailing
market conditions. No individual should determine his/her own

remuneration.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 March
2020 and an analysis of the likely future development of the
Group’s business are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 4 to 13 of this
annual report. The discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

In addition, discussion on the key relationships with the
Group’s major stakeholders, Group’s environmental policy
and performance as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have significant impact on the Group
are set out in the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2020 (“ESG Report”). The ESG Report
will be published separately on the websites of the Company
(htep://www.getnice.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange news
website (hteps://www.hkexnews.hk).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include
strategic, commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial
budget at the end of each financial year based on then knowledge
to the external environments and a number of forecast and
estimates. The Group would invest in capital expenditures or
require additional working capital by way of equities or debts
fund raising based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and competition. Given the rapid change
of unforeseeable external environments in the financial industry
and properties investment sector, the Group is facing significant
strategic risks on its capital expenditures and working capital
requirements when changing the strategic plans to adopt
theunexpected changes of external environments.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing the keen competition by other securities
brokers or financial institutions. To maintain the Group’s
competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership strategy
as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other
competitors.

Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure
that the Group’s risk of financial or reputational losses, or
inability to deliver services to customers, resulting from fraud,
errors, omissions, failed internal processes, IT systems and
compliance matters, are adequately managed. The Group has
also established its own business continuity plan, including but
not limited to implementation of cyber security control and
comprehensive cyber testing programme, to protect the Group
from risk of interruption to its business continuity.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 6 to consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” —
“Financial risk management objectives and policies”.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the independent non-executive Directors. The Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent of the management of the Company and are free
from any relationship that would materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2020.

AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”) was first appointed as auditor
of the Company on 23 March 2018 upon resignation of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020 were audited by Mazars whose term of

office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution for the reappointment of Mazars as the auditor of

the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Hon Man
CHAIRMAN

29 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

MBEMAZARS

TO THE MEMBERS OF GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Get
Nice Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 219, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2020, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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BEHERARDAIMARKER
(1 P 2 7 15 2 Wl o7 2 R4 7D

=R

AN BT E 38 A% 2 63 2219 BUT 3 45 I FE 1%
FHRAR ([BEAFLD KHKEA A (G
[EEE]) 2455 MBWE & PaiEn
TERCEFEZAZ T HZESWEIRN
FToURBEZHIEFEZ 58 LH
4 T AR R AR A REAR B ) R KR ARG B
BT E R KL G MM G G55 E
BLErEE EOR A o

NGBS T > 50 P B ok CR IR
TRk S & (&G &) s
7 s BB i E RN (7 o B s i o e
) > BEAFWER BHEMR %
FAEZH =+ — HZ B AR BB %
H oIk 4F B 2 Bhps R B R B i & > I O 1%
TR A N W AR 1) 2 4B S WL RE % Ty i Y o

RRZEX

AR TG $ B A o R RS A 2
WA O L) (T WA O I ) AT T
1 o 7 A BRI S 5% 45 YE R R ORI B AR
T AR o [ BRI L 77 B AR A Y R R
2 B AL T AR IE — A WAk - MR A
WA B 2 S R AE P8 ST ) (757
Al > AZEEE LR BEE WEE
A7 ¥ BB AE 2 H A 3 8 AT o A% i AR
5 o AS A% BT B 8 O A R B 2 5 AR AL
fill 2 1% 2 AR e M e B SRE o

ERERER

R S 7 A% S T 9 AR 4R R R B 2 B3
B B 7% A D[R] A B AR 2 A
Ty BB HIA o I B TH )Y R A A B
A2 B R AR SV S R S L o L R LR R
B o A A A G 0 20 o TR AR L B
=



78 3L 1% 25 B 2R &

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters — continued

HRERER-#

Loss allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL”) on loans and advances

B R B T T 18 ([T k18 ]) 2 7 18 1 1

Related disclosures are included in notes 4, 6 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARG B R B 74 - 6 R 247 #.2 1 B 1 7%

Key Audit Matter
HRERER

At 31 March 2020, loans and advances amounting to
approximately HK$689 million, net of loss allowance for
ECL of approximately HK$11 million, represent 10% of
the total assets of the Group.
RZFEZEF=ZHAH=ZT—H  BREAREL
689,000,000 7T (F11 Bx T W15 B 5 18 2 M 18 48 46 40
11,000,000% 7C) > A 5 4 B 7 AR 2 10% ©

Management assessed the provision for ECL of loan
and advances based on the estimate of credit losses over
the expected life of these receivables and considered
whether there were or will be any events or changes
in circumstances that indicated or may indicate a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
these balances.

TR AR B % 5 T A K I TR AR A 1 A B 4R A
AT 75 e O RO B0 & A AR AT SR U AR B
17 L B/ B8R 8 BH R 369 5% 55 45 5 00 A6 7 R AR B 4
i AN B 2 RE Al B AR R EGR TE ME B e 1R
4 o

We considered this matter to be a key audit matter due
to the significant amounts involved and the significant
judgement in evaluating the recoverability of the balances
and in turn, among other factors, credit worthiness of the
borrowers.

A SR SI9F 0 S R T R A S O > T R
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FEREMNETNMEERARETER

Our procedures, among others, included:

AN i 2 A2y (bR HABAE 750 G4

* understanding, through enquiry with the
management, the established policies and procedures
on credit risk management of receivables from
money lending business;

70 1) A BN A T R A SE 2 B R OA
i B0 AL B A 1 2 B BUR AR )T

e evaluating the credit risk management process
including the process for identification of impaired
loans and advances and the measurement of the loss
allowance;

AR LB R BEAR o B A O R (R R M
B Rt R IR AT

D assessing, on a sample basis, the fair value of the
secured properties for the loans and advances by
making reference to the recent open market value of
similar properties at nearby locations; and
78 25 25 R0 AT b [ ) 5T 99) 2 2 o 3 2% B T (380 B
AN HRGER 2 A AT 36 2 8 SR AT AR AT
K

o assessing management’s judgement over the ECL
and creditworthiness of the borrowers by assessing,
on a sample basis, the available information, such
as background information of the borrowers,
recoverable amount of pledged properties and
securities collateral, past due information, past
collection history of borrowers, concentration risk
of borrowers, the Group’s actual loss experience
and subsequent settlement of the loan and interest
receivables.
8RR FEAE T B R (A fE R AT R
BF -~ HEH P 3 KR S HEHR Y Rk e AE -
B RL - A ) R AN CGR R Bk~ R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters — continued

HRERER-H

Loss allowance for ECL on accounts receivable from margin clients arising from the business of dealing in securities margin

financing

il 2 (R i S AR IR i 2 T IR IR T 15 H M7 16 2 W 18 1 i

Related disclosures are included in notes 4, 6 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARE B IRFEM 4 ~ 6 K25/ ] 2 1 B 1 3%

Key Audit Matter
HRELER

At 31 March 2020, the accounts receivable from margin
clients arising from the business of dealing in securities
margin financing amounted to approximately HK$3,544
million, net of loss allowance for ECL of approximately
HK$148 million. These represent 49% of the total assets
of the Group.

ZERZFEZ] ZA—H o SRR R S
MR 2 B SCPR RS 2 7 R I #93,544,000,0009 7T (41
PR B 5 18 2 s 1R 5 40148,000,000% 75) > 4
B AR BE 7 AE 2 49% o

Management assessed the provision for ECL of accounts
receivable from margin clients based on various inputs
such as loan-to-value percentage, default rate provided
by credit rating agency or other relevant information
together with forward-looking analysis.

TR AR R R R T o0 L fF R AR R R I
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We considered this matter to be a key audit matter due
to the significance of the balance and the significant
judgement in determining ECL on the accounts
receivable from margin clients.

A A B S 0 = R AR 2 B S A I T R R
&5 Bn 2 BV R E R AR RE e R P IR 2 TH A
=y FCELNRI NS DN

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED £ #i=RERA A
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AN ET N MEEEREETEE

Our procedures, among others, included:

AN b 2 ARy (bR HAB AR 7 50 G4

e considering the relevance and reasonableness of
key assumptions over the ECL assessment, and the
relevance and accuracy of the source data used in the
assessment;

75 i TEUA) £ 5l A0 R R oA {2 AH B Ak A
A HAE > DL R A RO A D R A AR B A
HEFETE

e evaluating the credit risk management process
including the process for identification of impaired
accounts receivable from margin clients and the
measurement of the loss allowance;

R A B R BR B B T o B4 I e (B i R
it 4B A P IRIA DL e RH R I R 2R

D checking, on a sample basis, the existence and
accuracy of the recoverable amount of the securities
collateral, to supporting documents and with
reference to closing market price;

AR SRR SO 22 25 Wi T A5 il 2 R O IS A
TE B DL K H T i ] 4 3 2 HE A

*  comparing, on a sample basis, the recoverable
amount of the securities collateral with the accounts
receivable from each individual margin clients to
determine whether there was any shortfall; and
78 5 HE A i 2 mT g T 4 A B A R ol R
%P HREEMAK R > D& & A BT
Ra# &

e assessing the sufficiency of the loss allowance
recognised with respect to the above shortfall, after
taking into account other factors such as credit
worthiness, past collection history and repayment
subsequent to reporting period.

TE7% 8 2528 - WOREC Bk S il AR 2 18 KK
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s 2020 annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with

Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

b
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.
e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obrtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated REMBERGREMBRR2EE-—H&
Financial Statements — continued

From the matters communicated with those charged with REARERZ ANBBRZETEF > £
governance, we determine those matters that were of most AT W AR B W 45 S5 MR K 2 T b
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements Py B I IR AE R B SE R A SEIE o
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. A BB A A BB S e % S R
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and PRIEERESERE AT A =GR E
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, TH > s fEf g 5 R 28 A TE 7
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter AL BT 2 i 4 o B R T T R AT
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 15 T E R 2 N R 55 o RIS A% Bl
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to e R EAE Al R A o

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited FERR (BB EHAMEBAERAA
Certified Public Accountants STES

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020 H, —E-EFFESNA T ILH

The engagement director on the audit resulting in chis R A AR 2 I E RS

independent auditor’s report is:

Fong Chin Lung FREE
Practising Certificate Number: P07321 R E AR 5% - P07321
62 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&F 2R ERA A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEMEEINER

BE-_ZT-_ZTF=F=+—HIFEE

Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
—E-BF —E—JUE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Fht 5 FExT T
Revenue I &= 7 524,524 561,905
Other operating income At 2 U A 9 6,203 4,409
Other gains and losses, net HoAth U 75 & s 5 1 A 10 (113,452) (37,222)
Amortisation and depreciation 1 51 K A B 18 (7,959) (7,687)
Commission expenses A <2 BH 3¢ (7,020) (9,460)
Net impairment loss on accounts JREE W R T L M 4 1
receivable 6 (110,907) (20,085)
Reversal (Provision) of net impairment B3k I A7 2 I (E 5 1R IF4E 2
loss on loans and advances 5 18] (43 H5) 6 2,915 (16,508)
Reversal of net impairment loss on $85 7] 53 1l #2 2% S RE A At 2
Mandatory FVOCI THT WAL 4t 2 Yol (L s 18 5% 4 6 1,517 1,129
Staff costs B T A 11 (24,526) (23,3806)
Finance costs Pl R AR 12 (32,265) (97,371)
Other expenses HoAth B 52 (34,750) (44,552)
Profit before taxation A % Al 13 204,280 311,172
Income tax expense JIT 45 B B 3 15 (47,552) (79,076)
Profit for the year AEEBA 156,728 232,096
Other comprehensive income Ht2mE = ()
(expense)
Items that are reclassified or may be H 1 B 57 A B ] GE
reclassified subsequently to profit or M ERm 2 HH
loss
Exchange difference arising on MBI EFEEZ
translation of foreign operations [ ¢, 7= %A (12,237) (15,922)
Fair value gain on Mandatory WERETSEHERGEZ
FVOCI reclassified to profit or o8 il $% 23 SUAE FE A HAL
loss upon disposal ) ETPA/NSIW N & 2,333 104
Fair value loss on Mandatory 968 il #2  FAE R Ho A A
FVOCI IRV ETAANPIIEN, 7F ! (21,440) (540)
Deferred tax arising on revaluation oA 9 A SR EEEA
of Mandatory FVOCI H At 2 T R i E AR R
S IH 35 3,153 72
Items that will not be reclassified to NEHH A E I 2 THH
profit or loss
Fair value gain (loss) on I8 7 $i 28 FofE Rt HoA
Designated FVOCI ETTE TP/ IR =N &
(E48) 1,929 (6,083)
Deferred tax arising on revaluation EAGTEE A R EFIA R
of Designated FVOCI b 2 T Wi 25 B AR 2 HE AE
i JH 35 (318) 1,004
Surplus on revaluation of properties Wy 26 E AN A R 1,114 2,770
Deferred tax arising on revaluation W2 F AL E A 2 R AR E
of properties 35 (184) (457)
Total other comprehensive expense 25 [E H fth 2 H B X 8 %8
for the year (25,650) (19,052)
Total comprehensive income for REEEHMNEHEEE
the year 131,078 213,044
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE_ZT_ZF=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
—B-FF | —“FNE
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Wi & E FET T#TT
Profit for the year attributable to: UTALTEEERFERR :
Owners of the Company ZN/NIE: XN 118,295 195,080
Non-controlling interests I P R HE 4 38,433 37,016
156,728 232,096
Total comprehensive income LTATEGAZEKRERE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NIE: RSN 93,781 175,403
Non-controlling interests I 12 R HE 4 37,297 37,641
131,078 213,044
HK cents HK cents
78 il AL
Earnings per share BRER
Basic AR 17 1.22 2.02
Diluted v 17 1.22 2.02

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##1ZRER A A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZE-_FTF=A=+—H
At 31 March 2020

2020 2019
—BRoRHF | —“FNEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 51 FEx THo
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property and equipment / Prepaid Y3 KA TR KR
lease payments and property and DS EE &L
equipment 18 106,387 112,407
Investment properties [ie<e7/ES 19 874,074 881,896
Intangible assets I 20 8,413 8,413
Goodwill T 2 21 15,441 15,441
Other assets HoAh 23 4,392 3,517
Deposit paid for acquisition of a Wi B — [T B A |) 22 B AT
subsidiary ¥ 4 40(b) 6,200 -
Deferred tax assets 8 A B IH & 35 4,450 1,266
Loans and advances S OSE T 24 32,568 47,553
Investments in securities EHRE 26 260,505 582,424
1,312,430 1,652,917
Current assets RBEE
Accounts receivable i R IR 25 3,564,867 3,707,421
Loans and advances B B K 24 656,645 1,038,647
Prepayments, deposits and other AR ~ Hed K
receivables At 1 Wi T 27 56,942 29,868
Tax recoverable Al g ] B IE 23,312 7,637
Investments in securities EARE 26 247,740 232,684
Bank balances — client accounts RATH R — B FIRP 28 445,239 1,143,120
Bank balances — general accounts SRATAE B — — IR P
and cash KB4 29 905,175 505,871
5,899,920 6,665,248
Current liabilities REBAE
Accounts payable JE A B TE 30 478,475 1,196,203
Accrued charges and other payables HE T2 S A HE A RE T 32 7,734 10,661
Amounts due to non-controlling R I 2 M i R IE
shareholders 31 30,257 43,665
Tax payable JBE At 3t 1 139,203 144,724
Bank borrowings AT & 33 - 50,000
Liability component of convertible — [ LT E A w8 4T 2
bonds issued by a listed subsidiary CIEC Y S B =Er 34 - 233,524
655,669 1,678,777
Net current assets RBEEFE 5,244,251 4,986,471
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBDERE 6,556,681 6,639,388
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZE-_FTF=A=+—H
At 31 March 2020

2020 2019
—EIRF | T AF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
! FERT T#C
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities U = 35 7,820 6,506
NET ASSETS EEFE 6,548,861 6,632,882
Capital and reserves BEXRHE
Share capital il 36 966,270 966,270
Reserves Fin 4,500,849 4,498,789
Equity attributable to owners of ANAEBEAEGEES
the Company 5,467,119 5,465,059
Non-controlling interests FIERER
Existing WA 48 1,081,742 1,061,514
Potential BAE 34 - 106,309
TOTAL EQUITY MR 6,548,861 6,632,882

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 219 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
29 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hung Hon Man
HEX
Director

#HH

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&F 2R ERA A

BAHEF 2R Z R MB MR M ERG
A TR RSN A T JUH e AR T
o A T AEFAREE

Cham Wai Ho, Anthony
EE
Director

#HH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-_ZT-_TZF=F=+—HItFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

Attributable to equity holders of the Company Non-controlling interests
thaRs Bk $HRd

Investments  nvestments
Property  revaluation  revaluation

Share Share  Special revaluation reserve reserve (non-  Sharcoption  Translation  Retained
apil  premium reseve resenve (teeyling)  ecycling) eserve feserve profits Toul  Existing  Potential Total
1homaE M

L
Bx  BORE HHRE EGAR BR(TERIGEGRER)  BE ENGR RO HE BE BE 4B
N HKSON HKSOD  HKSOM  HKSOW  HKSOm0  HKSOW  HKSUM HKSOW  HKSOW HKSOM  HKSOO  HKSGm0  HKSO
B TEx TEr T T T TR TEr T T T T T TEx

(note i) (notei) — (note ii) (note iv) (notev) (note 37) (note vi) (note 34)
(k) (k) Of) Ok O (b (ki (B4
Ac] April 2018 P AERA-H 966,070 293,199 139,147 14,888 (3,528) - - 57 130535 SAIS88 1,053,064 U019 6,681,541
Impacton niia application of HKFRS 9 I E A ALt 8
ok - - - - 11,164 - - - (1748 (6.323) - - (6323)
As restated FE] 966,270 2,953,199 139,147 14888 7,636 - - 57 1307838 5409335 1,053,064 U019 6,675,218
Profi for the year REEEA - - - - - - - - 195080 195,080 37,016 - 30%
Other comprehensive income (expense) 2 2ERE (%)
Tiems thatare rechsifed or may be KRBT GRS
reclsified subsequently o profi o s Vi k2 vl [
- Exchange diference arising on B EREL L
translaion offreign opetaions EiE - - - - - - - - (5w - - (b
- Rirvlue gin on Mandarory VOCL - HEREFARER
reclassfied to profit or loss upon H2ZEHEALE
disposal AR A ERE
Ml - - - - 104 - - - - 104 - - 10
- Far value loss on Mandatory FVOCT - B R MR AL
[ TlevAN
&R - - - - (540) - - - - - S ]
- Deferred taxariing o revauation of - ERBHEAR R
Mandatory FVOCI MR ERER
FEERE % - - - - n - - - - n - - 7
Items that will no be recasified FEEFI iR
10 profic or los V1
-~ Firvaluelosson Designaed FVOCI -~ - BB AREFFAL
fh2flEZ AR
i3] - - - - R (1] - - -6 - -6
- Deferredtaxarisng on revauation of - MR EHRAR R
Designated FVOCI ALfATREE
EZEERE B - - - - - - - - - - L
- Surplus on revauation of propertes - EE (R - - - W0 - - - - - W 748 - Pyl
- Deferred taxariing o revaluation of - $E B L B
properties #E 3 - - - (334) - - - - - (334) (13) - 457)
Total other comprehensive income Ah2ENE(ER)
(expense) a5 - - - 1,688 (364) (5,079 - (1) - (1967) 625 - (1905
Total comprehensive income (expense) REERENE (BR)
fotheyer 48 . - S o B S M s F - m
Transactions with equity holders SRESEALLR
Contributions and disributions HERRE
- Dividends to owners -HHEEALRE 16 - - - - - - - - 134 (193359 - - (s
- Dividends o non-contolling imeress - A EHBAT
of a non-whally owned subsidiary FmiER 7 RA = = = = - - - - - ) - (30
- Recognition of equity-setled BN EREANR
share-based payments frft ki - - - - - - 8,776 - - 8,776 - - 8,776
= = = o = - 8,776 - (19354 (184478 (33090) - (37569)
Changes in ounership interests Ll
~ Redemption of convercble bonds BT /! - - - - - - - - s B (e30) (17810
- Disposal of interests in a subsidiary - tE-FREAAZ
without oss of control [Eamli kit
4 _ o - - - o o - I} i U] - -
d - - - - - - - 64,399 64,599 B0 (l06310)  (17.811)
At31 March 2019 RZR-1E
=f=1-8 966,270 2,933,199 139,147 16,576 7202 (5079) 8776 (15365 1374263 5,465,039 L06L314 106309 6,632,882
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-_ZT-_TFE=FA=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

KNIRAARY FEREE
lnvestments ~ nvestments
Property revaluation  revaluation
Share Shae  Special  revaluation teserve feserve (non-  Shareoption  Translation  Retained
apil  premiom  reserve  reserve  (tecycling)  recyeling)  reseve  reseve profits Tow  Existing  Potential Toul
W% ReER  RAEE  ERE
BE  ROEE GHRE EGEE BE(TSR) RE(FER) B EiBE REM 3 BE .2 48
Notes HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Wit Tt o TEX  Thr Tt TEx Tt Tkt TEx Tt Tt TEx Tt T
(note i) (notei) — (note ii) (note iv) (notev)  (note 37) (note vi) (note 34)
(k) Mk Of) Ok O (b (ki (Bksd)
Acl April 2019 REE-NERA-H 96670 293199 159147 16576 7 (5.079) 8776 (15369) 1374263 5465059 LOGL34 106309 663288
Profit for the year KRR - - - - - - - - 11825 11829 3843 - 13678
Other comprehensive income (expense) ~ EH2EHE (B
Tens that are ecusifed or may b redlssified EEEHAGHTHE
subsequently o profi or s TREREZEY
- Exchange difference arising on ~RER R
translation of foreign operarions ERzEH - - - - - - - (1,037) - (12237) - - (12137)
- Rirvilue gin on Mandarory VOCL -~ EREHMEER
reclassfied to profit or los upon BZEHEALE
disposel ARG
Al - - - - B - - - - B - - B
- Far value loss on Mandatory VO~ ~BRlfEARERIAL
REREZ AR
kR - - - - (ug) - - - - (14 - - (1)
- Deferred taxarising on revaluation of — ~ B BRI AR
Mandatory FVOCI AEATlEE
EZEERE % - - - - - - - - - -
Items that will no be reclsified o FETHAEEER
profi or s KA
- Rirvlue gin on Designaed FVOCL— ~BERARERIAL
EITlevAN)
s - - - - ) - - P -
- Deferted av arising on revehwaion of — ~ EfFEER AR
Designated FVOCI M2l ER
ELEERR % - - - - - (191) - - - oy - (318)
- Surplus on revaluation of propertis -EERRR - - - 813 - - - - - 813 301 - 1,114
- Deferred taxaising on revaluation of ~— ~HjEEME £ B
properties HA 3 - - - (134 - - - - - (134) 50) - (184)
Total other comprehensive income Ah2ENE(ER)
(expense) &g - - - 79 (1594 19% - () - (5 (1,136) - (B6%0)
Total comprehensive income (expense) REE2ANE (RR)
for the year 4E - - - 679 (15954) 19% - 237 11829 93,781 37,097 - 131,078
Transactions with equity holders EREREALRS
Contributions and distributions HERAF
- Dividends to owners -[EHALRE 16 - - - - - - - - (169,097 (169,097) - - (169097
- Dividends to non-controling nterests of = mELEREL
anon-wholly owned subsidiary FiRiEsLRE - - - - - - - - - - W - @
. . . . . . . Sosmn e @ -
Changes in ounership insrests Lil it
- Redempion of comverble bonds -BEURRER M = - - = - - - ST T BT (106309) -
- Acquisition of non-controlling interests ~ — E-FHEATZ
ina subsidiary FhiEs 46 - - - - - = s = (216) (216) 4 = (170
- - - - - - - - 71376 71376 28763 (106,309) (170)
Disposal of subsidiares HERE A 4 - - - - - 2081 = = (2081) = 141 = 1441
At31 March 2020 R-R-8%
ZA=1-8 966270 2,953,199 139,147 17255 (8,682) - 8776 (2760) 1398756 5467119 1,081,742 - 6548801
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds or
consideration from issuance of the Company’s shares over their par value.

Under the Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for distribution
or paying dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of
its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution of dividends, the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The special reserve of the Group represents the following:

As set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 24 May 2002,
a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) was completed on
16 May 2002, which principally involved the exchange of shares
of the Company with all the issued share capital of Get Nice
Incorporated (“GN Incorporated”). An amount of approximately
HK$123,337,000 represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries together with the net book
value of a subordinated loan capitalised at the date on which they
were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
Reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, as
well as the difference between the consolidated shareholders” funds
of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the GN
Incorporated’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
Reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares.

As set out in the prospectus of Get Nice Financial Group Limited
(“GNFG”), a subsidiary of the Company, dated 24 March 2016
(the “Prospectus”), sharcholders of the Company would be entitled
to one share of GNFG for every 40 shares of the Company held
on the Record Date (as defined in the Prospectus). An amount of
approximately HK$35,810,000 represents the difference between
the proportionate share of the interest in GNFG and the net assets
value on Record Date in relation to the distribution in specie
arising from the listing of the shares of GNFG on 8 April 2016.

Property revaluation reserve deals with revaluation adjustments of
property and equipment in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve (recycling) represents the
cumulative net changes in the fair value of Mandatory FVOCI,
if any, at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted.

Investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
accumulated net change in the fair value of Designated FVOCI
that have been recognised in other comprehensive income, net
of the amounts transferred to retained earnings when those
investments are disposed of.

Translation reserve of the Group comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from translation of the financial statements
of the Group’s subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHE_T-_TF=RA=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
—BIREF | “EZEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
g FExT RPN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Profit before taxation b il Vi A 204,280 311,172
Adjustments for: KRB -
Amortisation and depreciation 180 5 I 7 85 18 7,959 7,687
Werite off of accounts receivable S5 JRE A B T 300 -
Werite off of loans and advances i B 3K B A 205 -
Write off of property and equipment L5 W) 2E K A - 15
Net impairment loss on accounts IR Wi B T 2 9 (B e 8 T
receivable 6 110,907 20,085
(Reversal) Provision of net impairment £ S ¥ 2K 2 ¥k (H 5 18
loss on loans and advances VAR (38 ) e 6 (2,915) 16,508
Reversal of net impairment loss on 135 ] o 1 #2 > SUAEFFA
Mandatory FVOCI At 4 THT A A 2 9 (M 1R
(R i} 6 (1,517) (1,129)
Fair value changes on investment WGy N RMEEE)
properties 19 86,558 (10,686)
Fair value changes on financial assets at %A FL{HFI AH 5 2
FVPL G RlE B A R ) 19,203 11,044
Loss on disposal of Mandatory FVOCI 8 5 il #% 28 R fH7FA
HoAth 4 T i 45 e 4R 732 234
Loss on redemption of financial assets at [ [l #% /8 R 7 A TR 2
FVPL SREE 2 R 5,388 -
Loss on redemption of convertible bonds g 1] 1] #2 B i % 2 5 18 34 - 38,867
Share-based payment expenses DA A5y 52 A B 32 - 8,776
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H A R S R 22 IR 4R 45 (2,181) -
Gain on disposal of property and th E%%& M2
equipment Wi 4 (40) -
Finance costs Tl AR 12 32,265 97,371
Interest income FE UL A (152,537) (155,138)
Dividend income ISR PN (2,038) (2,122)
Operating cash flows before < 5 ) Y il Z
movements in working capital Q*&fﬁi i & 306,569 342,684
Changes in working capital B E )
Other assets HoAh & &= (875) 3,524
Accounts receivable JE Wi TR TR 31,347 389,699
Loans and advances B BGR 399,697 (411,447)
Prepayments, deposits and other FEAS FOH :F’j‘z
receivables T o Ath JRE g 3k (35,448) (5,681)
Financial assets at FVPL /NI n+]\T ﬁn
2 4 & E - 48,414
Bank balances — client accounts WITHER - TRSE 697,881 (723,483)
Accounts payable JRE A5 i T (717,728) 713,739
Accrued charges and other payables JRE R R At A R TE (2,833) (1,475)
Due to non-controlling shareholders IR IE HE R % Bk IE (2,411) (20,015)
Cash generated from operations K% T 5 I 4 676,199 335,959
Interest income received B R Sl A 160,902 153,292
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid E A ) 13 B (66,525) (87,224)
Overseas tax paid A A BLIE (2,055) (A
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBHMBFERS
ACTIVITIES 768,521 400,586

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED S ERBERAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-Z-_TF=A=1+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2020
2020 2019
—B-FHF | —“FTNE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Fht 5 THET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Deposit paid for acquisition of Wiz i — Fil B e s W) 2
a subsidiary BT 4% 4 (6,200) -
Purchase of financial assets at FVPL BB N AEFF AR Z
4 B (85,800) (40,225)
Purchase of Mandatory FVOCI i R /N W= NS B
4 T A (139,390) (141,859)
Proceeds from disposal of Mandatory th ’%S’m il ¥ 2% FUAE wh A HoA
FVOCI A TH AR 2 T A5 KA 116,488 13,202
Proceeds from redemption of financial I [A] 4% 28 e AR EJLLZ
asset at FVPL 5 B RS P AR I 300,000 150,000
Refund from Designated FVOCI TR BN SREFENA
H A 4 T Wi A 2 9B K 4,484 -
Purchase of property and equipment i 1 ) 3 R A 18 (825) (913)
Purchase of intangible assets i Y 20 - (3)
Purchase of investment properties EEKEYE 19 (20,752) (59,057)
Net cash flows arising from acquisition Wi Mﬂ%/\ mAEEZ
of subsidiaries Bl 4 Ui & A 44 (69,692) (40,000)
Net cash flows arising from disposal of Bt A R EAE 2
subsidiaries B4 i 2 T 45 61,428 -
Proceeds from disposal of property and i %%¥& B 2
equipment RET e 40 29
Dividend received W B S 2,038 2,122
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REXEBHREF (FA)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ZERE 161,819 (116,704)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEXR
Interest paid on convertible bonds issued £ A — ] L 77 Bff 8§ 2~ 7] 4817
by a listed subsidiary Z Al R A IR 2 AR (2,639) (7,732)
Interest paid e A FLE (1,087) (696)
Dividends paid B AT 16 (169,097) (193,254)
Dividends paid to non-controlling e At — [ I 2 B B 2 )
interests of a non-wholly owned FEPE R £ 2 IR
subsidiary (47,273) (53,091)
Redemption of convertible bonds issued & [7] — [#] | 717 Ff} J& 2~ 7] 8847
by a listed subsidiary 2 A] R A 34 (262,500) (262,500)
Proceeds from bank borrowings fEﬁTfﬂgﬁﬁ/E FE 320,000 396,828
Repayment of bank borrowings B SR AT (370,000) (406,828)
Net cash flows arising from acquisition Llﬁﬂﬁ fh Bt g 2 A 2
of non-controlling interests in Ik ¥ A% 7@ RE 2
a subsidiary B4 Uk 2 TR A 46 (170) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ®IEXHKHRAZ
ACTIVITIES FRE (532,766) (527,273)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
—B-FF | —“FNE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTRET T#IT
Net increase (decrease) in cash and BeFBESEEERZE
cash equivalents 2O 2 ) 397,574 (243,391)
Effect of foreign exchange SIEEXRSH B FHE
rate changes, net 1,730 (92)
Cash and cash equivalents at the BEMIRERRSEE
beginning of the reporting period HH 505,871 749,354
Cash and cash equivalents at theend HMEHLRESRESE
of the reporting period, represented ZEEEAR:
by bank balances — general accounts RATABR—
and cash —REFRBES 905,175 505,871

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&F 2R ERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Get Nice Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was

incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its substantial shareholder is Honeylink Agents Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability of which the entire share capital is
beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man, who is also a
director of the Company. The Company’s registered office
is located at Second Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square,
P.O. Box 902, Grand Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands
and its principal place of business is located at 10th Floor,
Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the

functional currency of the Company.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

74

=8 !

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,

unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2019 consolidated financial statements except for the
adoption of the following new / revised HKFRSs that are

relevant to the Group and effective from the current year.

Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs
Annual Improvements Project — 2015-2017 Cycle

HKAS 12: Income tax consequences of payments on financial

instruments classified as equity

The amendments clarify that (a) the income tax
consequences of dividends are recognised in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to
where the past transactions or events that generated the
distributable profits were originally recognised and (b)
these requirements apply to all income tax consequences of
dividends as defined in HKFRS 9.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED £ #i=RERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs — continued

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation supports the requirements in HKAS 12
Income Taxes by specifying how to reflect the effects of

uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

The adoption of the interpretation does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16: Leases
HKEFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 and related interpretations

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. It
significantly changes, among others, the lessee accounting
by replacing the dual-model under HKAS 17 with a single
model which requires a lessee to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for the rights and obligations
created by all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. For lessor
accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly,
a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases
differently. HKFRS 16 also requires enhanced disclosures to

be provided by lessees and lessors.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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— continued

Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 16: Leases — continued

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group
has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time at 1 April 2019
(i.e. the date of initial application, the “DIA”) using the
modified retrospective approach in which comparative
information has not been restated. Instead, the Group
recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying
HKEFRS 16 as an adjustment to the balance of accumulated
profits or other component of equity, where appropriate, at

the DIA.

The Group also elected to use the transition practical
expedient not to reassess whether a contract was, or
contained, a lease at the DIA and the Group applied
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and to contracts entered into
or changed on or after the DIA that are identified as leases
applying HKFRS 16.

As lessee

Before the adoption of HKFRS 16, lease contracts were
classified as operating or finance lease in accordance with

the Group’s accounting policies applicable prior to the DIA.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group accounted for
the leases in accordance with the transition provisions of
HKFRS 16 and the Group’s accounting policies applicable
from the DIA.

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for leases previously classified as operating leases at the
DIA, except for leases for which the underlying asset is of
low value, and the Group applied the following practical

expedients on a lease-by-lease basis.

(a) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases

with reasonably similar characteristics.

(b) did not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
to leases for which the lease term ends within 12
months of the DIA.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 16: Leases — continued

As lessee — continued

(c)

(d)

excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of

the right-of-use assets at the DIA.

used hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the

lease.

At the DIA, except for those that were previously or will be

accounted for as investment property using the fair value

model, right-of-use assets were, on a lease-by-lease basis,

measured at either,

(@)

(b)

their carrying amount as if HKFRS 16 had been
applied since the commencement date, but discounted

using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the
DIA; or

an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the lease recognised immediately before the

DIA.

Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the

remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s

incremental borrowing rate at the DIA.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 16: Leases — continued

As lessee — continued

Reconciliation of operating lease commitments disclosed
applying HKAS 17 at 31 March 2019 and lease liabilities

recognised at the DIA is as follows:

2. EEQE—H&%—IE

RMHFET BT EBMBEREE
Al —-#&

F TR ERF169E - 7E — 4
EA RN — 4

o E—NE=ZHA=+—HEREFE
Bt 1 79I R 2 S LB R
B R E I H iR 2 R AW
BRI ¢

HK$’000
T T
Operating lease commitments at 31 March 2019 W E—-NE=H=+—H
LB ERE 371
Less: Short-term leases and other leases Bk A AR E A M R AR A
with remaining lease term ending on or FTAHEZH=1+—HKZ a4
before 31 March 2020 TR H At (324)
Leases of low-value assets REEAE (47)

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019

REE-JUEMA —-HZHEAME -

At 31 March 2019, prepaid lease payments are up-front
payments to acquire fixed term interests in lessee-occupied
land that are classified as operating leases. Upon application
of HKFRS 16, the prepaid lease payments with carrying
amount amounting to approximately HK$69,280,000 were
reclassified to right-of-use assets and were still presented
within the line item “Property and equipment” in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

As lessor

The Group is not required to make any adjustments on
transition for leases in which it is a lessor and those leases
are accounted for by applying HKFRS 16 from the DIA.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for buildings, investment properties and investments in
securities, which are measured at revalued amounts or fair

value, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as that of the Company using

consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full upon consolidation.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control and continue to be

consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of
liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or at
the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on an

acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
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)5

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Allocation of rotal comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests on the basis of existing
ownership interests and the possible exercise of conversion
of potential voting rights is not considered. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the
Company and the existing non-controlling interests even if
this results in the existing non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.

C/%mge: in ownem/aip interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly

in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests at the date when control
is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the parent had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary
and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or

others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is measured
at the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree (if applicable)
and the fair value of any previously held equity interest
in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the

acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating

units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition
date amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed of the acquired business over the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree (if applicable)
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree, if any, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as an income
from bargain purchase. Any resulting gain or loss arising
from remeasuring the previously held equity interests in
the acquiree at the acquisition-date fair value is recognised
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as

appropriate.
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)5

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that

there are changes to one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which
is presented in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount
of the investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment, other than buildings, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to

profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Buildings are stated at revalued amount, being the fair value
at the date of valuation less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Fair value is determined
by independent valuations which are performed annually.
Increases in valuation are credited to the property
revaluation reserve. Decreases in valuation are first offset
against increases on earlier valuations in respect of the
same asset and are thereafter charged to profit or loss. Any
subsequent increases are credited to profit or loss up to
the amount previously charged and thereafter to property

revaluation reserve.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Property and equipment — continued

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property and equipment
over their estimated useful lives from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:
Leasehold land Shorter of the term of the
lease, or 27 years
Buildings Shorter of the term of the
lease, or 27 years
Leasehold improvements  Shorter of the term of the

lease, or 5 to 10 years

Motor vehicles and yacht 4 to 10 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 7 years

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in

the year in which the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Before 1 April 2019, prepaid lease payments are up-front
payments to acquire fixed term interests in lessee-occupied
land that are classified as operating leases. The premiums
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses and are amortised over the remaining
lease terms of land on a straight-line basis to profit or
loss. From 1 April 2019, those payments are accounted
for as “Right-of-use assets” and included in “Property and

equipment”.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held by owner
to earn rental income and / or for capital appreciation.
These include properties held for a currently undetermined
future use and properties that are held under operating
lease, which satisfy the definition of investment property

and carry at fair value.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

84
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— continued
Investment properties — continued

Before 1 April 2019, investment properties included those
properties held by owner which satisfy the definition of

investment property and carry at fair value.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a change

in fair value is recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is

derecognised.

Intangible assets
Trading rights

Trading rights confer eligibility on the Group to trade
on the Stock Exchange. The trading rights have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the Group
can use to generate cash flows. As a result, the trading
rights are considered by the management of the Group
as having indefinite useful lives because they are expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The
trading rights will not be amortised until its useful life is
determined to be finite. They will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may

be impaired.

The useful life of the trading rights is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is account for on a

prospective basis.

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are stated at
costs less any impairment losses. Impairments are reviewed
annually or when there are any indications that the club

memberships have suffered impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain

control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group

continues to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and an

associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for accounts receivable without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets. Such accounts receivable are initially

measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
(i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“Mandatory FVOCI”); (iii) equity investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“Designated FVOCI”); or (iv) measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”).
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition

depends on the Group’s business model for managing the

financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash

flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified

subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group

changes its business model for managing them, in which

case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first

day of the first annual reporting period following the

change in the business model.

1)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation

process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
accounts receivable, loans and advances, deposits and
other receivables, bank balances — client accounts and

bank balances — general accounts and cash.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

2)  Mandatory FVOCI

A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if

both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i)

it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and for sale; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income until
the financial asset is derecognised. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or

loss as a reclassification adjustment.

The Group’s financial assets at Mandatory FVOCI

include quoted and unlisted debt securities.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

3)

Designated FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is

determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is

transferred directly to accumulated profits or losses.

The Group's financial assets at Designated FVOCI

include unlisted equity securities not held for trading.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

4)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
and financial assets that are otherwise required to be
measured at FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with
any resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss,
which does not include any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets. Dividend or interest income is
presented separately from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it

in the near term;

(ii) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition;
or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured
at FVPL include listed equity securities, unlisted
convertible notes, unlisted debt securities and unlisted
investment funds.
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)5

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of

the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable,
other payables and amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders. All financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments

unless otherwise specified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on
financial assets that are measured at amortised cost,
Mandatory FVOCI, lease receivables, contract assets, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts issued to
which the impairment requirements apply in accordance
with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments as
detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group measures
a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to
the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month

ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life

of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the

entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12

months after the reporting date.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHBER-&

=8 !

— continued
Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Measurement of ECL — continued

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or

more shared credit risk characteristics:
(i) past due information

(ii) nature of instrument

(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors
(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair

value reserve (recycling).

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if
the financial instrument that meets any of the following

criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);

or
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

Definition of default — continued

(ii) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
In particular, the following information is taken into

account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or

interest on the due dates;

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating

(if available);

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s

ability to meet its obligation to the Group.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

94
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— continued
Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk — continued

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30

days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the

reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

if:
(a) it has a low risk of default;

(b) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its

contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(c) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash

flow obligations.

As detailed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the financial instruments determined to have

low credit risk includes bank balances — general account.

Simplified approach of ECL

For accounts reccivable other than margin clients without
a significant financing component, the Group applies
a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The Group
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date and has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data

about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

cvent.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

() the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a

deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount based on historical experience of recoveries
of similar assets. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if
appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit

or loss.
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)5

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary

Convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary that can be
converted to equity share capital of the listed subsidiary
at the option of the holders, where the number of shares
that would be issued on conversion and the value of the
consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity

component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the
convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary is measured
as the present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of interest
applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of the fair value of the compound instruments over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component is
recognised as the equity component which is recognised as
potential non-controlling interests. Transactions costs that
related to the issue of a compound financial instrument
are allocated to the liability and equity components in

proportion to the allocation of the fair value.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expenses recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using the
effective interest method. In particular, once the convertible
bonds issued by a listed subsidiary were exercised by the
bondholders, the equity component would be transferred to

the non-controlling interests.

If the convertible bonds are converted, the amount
previously recognised as potential non-controlling
interests, together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, are transferred to
the non-controlling interests as consideration for the shares
issued. The consequential impact is accounted for as a
change in ownership interests in a subsidiary without loss of

control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary —

continued

If the convertible bonds are redeemed, any difference
between the redemption consideration allocated to the
liability component and the net carrying amount of the
liability component is recognised in profit or loss while the
amount previously recognised in potential non-controlling
interests and the redemption consideration allocated to
the potential non-controlling interests are recognised or

transferred directly to accumulated profits or losses.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For classification
in the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
equivalents represent assets similar in nature to cash and

which are not restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition

Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised when
the assets are let out and on the straight-line basis over
the lease term. Before 1 April 2019, contingent rents
are recognised as income in the period in which they
are earned. From 1 April 2019, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate are initially measured
using the index or rate at the commencement date and
subsequently adjusted when such index or rate changes.
Such payments are recognised as income on the straight-line
basis over the lease term. Other variable lease payments are
recognised as income in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Dividend income

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive dividend is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably. Dividend income from
investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to

receive payment have been established.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group

is as follows:

(a)

(b)

Broking services

Corporate finance services

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or

services promised in a contract with a customer and

identifies as a performance obligation each promise to

transfer to the customer either:

(@)

(b)

a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that

is distinct; or

a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern

of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct

if both of the following criteria are met:

(a)

(b)

the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or

service is capable of being distinct); and

the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the

contract).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued

Timing ofrevenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred

when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria

is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer

controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obrtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

asset, and customer acceptance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—

—EF=A=+HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

)5

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued

Timing afrevenue recognition — continued

Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

e Commission income for broking business is recorded

as income at a point in time on a trade date basis;

e Underwriting commission income, sub-underwriting
income, placing commission and sub-placing
commission are recognised as income at a point in
time in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreement or deal mandate when relevant significant

act has been completed;

*  Proof of funds commission and clearing and handling
fee income are recognised at a point in time when
the relevant transactions have been arranged or the

relevant services have been rendered; and

e Advisory fee income is recognised over time when
the relevant transactions have been arranged or the

relevant services have been rendered.

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the

performance obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss

allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in the currency of HK$, which is

also the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are recognised in
profit or loss except for those arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the gains or

losses are also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Foreign currency translation — continued

The results and financial position of all the group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated

into the presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at

the end of the reporting period.

e Income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at

average exchange rate and

e All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising from
a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property and
equipment, intangible assets and the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash

flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Impairment of non-financial assets — continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are

recognised as an expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an

income in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases
Applicable from 1 April 2019

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. All the leases in the

Group are either short-term lease or low-value asset leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—

—EF=A=+HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

)5

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Leases — continued

Applicable from 1 April 2019 — continued

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within
a lease contract as a lease separately from non-lease
components of the contract. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on a

relative stand-alone price basis.

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment

requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

Applicable before 1 April 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

As lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant

lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use
of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefit costs

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments under the Employment Ordinance is the amounts
of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method and discounted to its present value and after
deducting the fair value of any related assets, including

those retirement scheme benefits.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in

exchange fOI‘ shares or rights over shares.

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when share options granted vest immediately, with a

corresponding increase in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

)5

=8 !

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Share-based payment transactions — continued
Equity-settled share-based transactions — continued

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits / accumulated losses.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods
or services received, except where the fair value cannot be
reliably estimated, in which case they are measured at fair
value of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair
value is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods

or the counterparty renders the services.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and

credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEETHER-#&
— continued
Related parties — continued BEAT-&
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) i — AV ECBEAT & LA N AR -
following conditions applies: R 75 BELAS 4 8 A [ g

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others).

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of cither the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

holding company of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Related parties — continued

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s chief operating decision maker, who is
the board of directors of the Company, for the purpose
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical

locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material

may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new /
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and are not
yet effective for the current year, which the Group has not
early adopted.

Amendments to Definition of Material!
HKASs 1 and 8

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRSs 7 Reform"
and 9

Amendments to Definition of a Business”
HKEFRS 3

Amendments to Covid-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions "

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Effective for acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020

The effective date to be determined

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these
new / revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any

material impact on the result of the Group.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period of revision and future periods, in case the revision

also affects future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance
for financial assets at amortised cost including accounts
receivable, loans and advances, other receivables
and Mandatory FVOCI by using various inputs and
assumptions including risk of a default and expected
loss rate. The estimation involves high degree of
uncertainty which is based on the Group’s historical
information, recoverable amount of pledged properties and
securities collateral, past collection history of borrowers,
concentration risk of borrowers, the Group’s actual
loss experience, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of the financial assets at amortised cost and Mandatory
FVOCI. Details of the key assumption and inputs used in
estimating ECL are set out in note 6 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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4.

GET

=y

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Fair value of investment properties / building at revaluation

The fair value of building in revaluation model and
investment properties located in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom was determined by independent firms
of professional valuers and / or by the directors of the
Company. The valuation performed was arrived at with
reference to recent market transaction prices at the end
of reporting period and / or market rental value for
similar properties at similar locations with total fair value
of investment properties and buildings approximately
HK$874,074,000 (2019: HK$881,896,000) and
HK$37,754,000 (2019: HK$37,984,000) at 31 March
2020 respectively. Favourable or unfavourable changes
to recent market prices would result in (i) changes in
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in profit or loss; and (ii) change in the revaluation
amount of the buildings of the Group and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in other

comprehensive income.

Tax provision and tax losses

In year 2014, the hotel complex and certain assets related
to the hotel and entertainment operations (the “Assets”)
were disposed of, resulting in a gain on the disposal, and
realisation of fair value gains previously recognised in
respect of investment properties. The management has
made a tax provision in respect of these gains with the
assumptions that the proceeds from disposal and cost base
of the Assets has been approximately determined for the
purpose of calculating the gain on disposal for tax purposes.
In case where the local tax authority does not agree with
either the calculation of the cost base of the Assets or the
proceeds from disposal of the properties, recognition of
significant change in amounts of tax in the profit or loss

account may be required in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Tax provision and tax losses — continued

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of certain tax losses of
approximately HK$105,746,000 (2019: HK$111,023,000)
due to the majority of the balances are subject to further
approval by the local tax authority. In addition, the
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the
actual future profits generated are more than expected, a
material recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such recognition takes place.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debt when applicable,
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital as disclosed in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements and reserves as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and
are required to comply with the financial resources
requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The
Group’s regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up
share capital requirements and liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a
daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements
under the SE(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities have
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
SF(FR)R throughout the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019.
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BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6. €T H

Categories of financial instruments EESBMTHE
2020 2019
—g=%F | —T ¥
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3 FExT T T
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVPL N fEFF AR 2R
2 4 Rl 253,215 492,006
Amortised cost 2 18 81 WA (a) 5,666,447 6,471,020
Mandatory FVOCI 98 il 4% A SR FEA
HoAth 2 T 25 255,030 252,430
Designated FVOCI I8 % fie .~ ARl RN A
S Ath, 2 T U £ - 70,672
Financial liabilities ot =K
Amortised cost KCHE S LA (b) (516,466) (1,534,053)
Notes: B2

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost include accounts receivable,
loans and advances, deposits and other receivables (excluding
prepayments), bank balances — client accounts and bank

balances — general accounts and cash.

(b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost include accounts
payable, accrued charges and other payables and amounts due

to non-controlling shareholders.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments in securities, accounts receivable, loans and
advances, deposits and other receivables, bank balances
and cash, accounts payable, other payables and amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes to
the consolidated financial statements. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair
value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest

rates, equity prices or foreign currency exchange rates.
y y

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate cash and cash equivalents and
variable-rate loans to independent third parties. The
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the

need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk on variable-rate bank balances
and variable-rate loans as a result of the change of market
interest rate is insignificant due to low interest rates on
bank balances and insignificant balance of variable-rate
loans at the end of the reporting period, thus no sensitivity

analysis is prepared for cash flow interest rate risk.

Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its

investments in listed equity securities and quoted debt
securities. The directors of the Company manage the
exposure by closely monitoring the portfolio of these
financial instruments. The fair value of these financial
instruments will be affected either positively or negatively,
amongst others, by the changes in the closing market prices

of the relevant listed equity and debt securities.
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BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risk — continued
Other price risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
the exposure to equity and debt price risks at the end of
the reporting period. If the prices of the respective listed
equity instruments had been 10% (2019: 20%) higher /
lower, and held other variables constant, the Group’s profit
after taxation for the year would increase / decrease by
approximately HK$8,974,000 (2019: HK$21,189,000),
as a result of changes in the fair value of listed equity
securities. If the prices of the respective quoted debt
instruments had been 10% (2019: 20%) higher / lower,
and held other variables constant, the Group’s other
comprehensive income for the year would increase /
decrease by approximately HK$20,777,000 (2019:
HK$41,105,000), as a result of changes in the fair value of

quoted debt securities.

Currency risk

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
currency risk exposure is not significant as most of the
transactions and financial assets and liabilities of the group
entities are denominated in the functional currencies of
the respective entities and, in the case of Macau Pataca
(“MOP”) and United States dollars (“USD”), the exposures
are limited as MOP are pegged to HK$ and HKS is pegged
to USD. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has been

presented on the currency risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net of

impairment losses, represents the Group’s exposure to credit

risk.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties arises from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the amount of potential liabilities in relation
to loan facilities provided by the Group as disclosed in note

40 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group exposes to credit risk, which is the risk that a
counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when
due. Impairment allowances are made for losses that are
expected at the end of the reporting period. Significant
changes in the economy or environment of a particular
industry segment could result in losses that are different
from those provided for at the end of the reporting period.
Management therefore carefully manages its exposure
to credit risk. The Group’s internal credit risk grading
assessment for financial assets except for accounts receivable

under HKFRS 15 compiled as the following categories:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk — continued

Internal credit Description ECL

rating treatment

Performing The balances that 12-month
have not had a (Normal
significant increase Credit
in credit risk and Quality)

12-month ECL

will be recognised

Underperforming ~ The balances that Lifetime
have had a (Significant
significant increase increase
in credit risk and in Credit
for which the Risk)

lifetime ECL will

be recognised

Not performing The balances that Lifetime
have objective (Credit-
evidence of impaired)

impairment and
for which the
lifetime ECL will

be recognised

Write-off The balances that Amount is
have evidence written off
indicating that
the debtor is in
severe financial
difficulty and the
Group has no
realistic prospect of

recovery
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued

Accounts receivable from margin clients

The Group provides financing services only to recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all these margin clients are subject to credit verification
procedures. The margin loans are secured by pledged
marketable securities and margin facilities are set to
ensure that certain proportion of the fair value of pledged
marketable securities of the individual margin clients is

higher than the corresponding outstanding loans.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 58% (2019:
44%) of the total accounts receivable from securities margin

clients was due from the Group’s ten largest margin clients.

No ageing analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of business of

securities margin financing.

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of
clients and the accounts receivable from margin clients
are categorised by common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts

due in accordance with the contractual terms.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
whether the financial asset is credit-impaired and the
amount of loss given default, the Group has taken into
account the credit quality of margin clients, the collateral
to accounts receivable balances ratio, amount of margin
shortfall of margin clients and pledged marketable securities
and adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific
to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry, in estimating the probability of default of these
financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in each
case. There was no change in the estimation techniques or

methodology made during the year.
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B RO I 2R ROTIURE P 1%
W& KRS B A 2 KR BE TS -

fili T )£ 45 s 18 S E RE B A0 i AR
A A5 B o B A 15 B I
A A A R U (B % RS A A AR R R
R AEEGEERE SRS
A5 BEE 2R~ R AT o A SR T A
R REEFF 2 REEHERE
O E R IR R
SE HiT W 1R R 2R K 3 7 B T BT AE AT 26 Y
— A PEARATAE PR DG R Z S
EREENEOME HEXKWT
ERVHR I o 5 A BT AE Al 05 805
5 e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk — continued

Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

The Group has established a margin client credit risk

classification system and performs credit risk management

based on margin client classification in one of three

categories of internal credit rating. The information about

the ECL for the accounts receivable from margin clients

at the end of the reporting period is summarised below.

After considering the above factors, net impairment loss of
approximately HK$110,907,000 (2019: HK$20,085,000)

was recognised during the year.

At 31 March 2020

tRMITHEH-&
MERMEEAERKE &

EERK-&
ERREZEFKRE—E

A R K P R SRR
AR > WARBRESEF 28 (A1
SRR EAE B R A — ) HEAT
15 B0 R B 4 B o A S R 2 R R AR
A % P AR TE Y TE (G 6 s 4H ORI
M o 8 E LR ERK  FNE
e 78 b {H s 18 1 % £9110,907,000% JC
(= ZF—JU4F 1 20,085,000 5C0) °

R-ZFE-_ZFEHF=ZA=+—H

0 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED %1 ER A 7

Gross

carrying Loss
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance
AR -GN EHEEEREE HERHEE BiEEE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FH5 5
Performing J& #J 12-month 121 J 3,400,141 16,408
Underperforming JE A 108 l R A% Lifetime %= A 104,030 7,822
Not performing /& %) Lifetime 2 1 188,123 124,088
3,692,294 148,318

At 31 March 2019 WXz —NLE=A=+—H

Gross

carrying Loss
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance
AR A B RE AR TH A B0 s 15 5L e A AR T A JiEs 15 138 A
HK$ 000 HK$’000
T T AR
Performing J& %) 12-month 1218 H 3,647,664 17,702
Underperforming J& %1% DL K A£ Lifetime 4= ] 53,167 3,795
Not performing N ] Lifetime %= A 31,732 15,914
3,732,563 37,411

§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6.

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk — continued

Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

At 31 March 2020, the Group recognised loss allowance of
approximately HK$148,318,000 (2019: HK$37,411,000)

on its accounts receivable from margin clients. The

movement in the loss allowance for accounts receivable

from margin clients during the year is summarised below.

Year ended 31 March 2020

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

tRMITHEH-&
HERMEEAERKE &

EERK-&
EURELEFKRE &
ANCEBCOBEZAZY—H AEE
B A R R & & 5 IR JE i R s 1R
5 %1148,318,0005 76 (& — JLAF ¢
37,411,000%5 70) ° 4F [N JE U IR 3 2 %
FIRIEM R R e g Bt tn -

BE-_ZE-_ZEF=-A=+—HILEE

12-month ECL
REAEM Lifetime ECL

BEER RS ERR
Performing Underperforming  Not performing Total
BHHR  BRERRE TEH @zt
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
TER TER TER TER
At the beginning of the reporting period IR 4 17,702 3,795 15,914 37,411
(Decrease) Increase in allowance (0D 5 i (1,294) 4,027 108,174 110,907
At the end of the reporting period AR 16,408 7,822 124,088 148,318

Year ended 31 March 2019

WE_F-NFE=HA=+HILFE

12-month ECL
128 A #4 Lifetime ECL

FHER 2HEIERER
Performing  Underperforming ~ Not performing Total
B BABWXE UNGE) At
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SR T T SR

At the beginning of reporting period, R G  ET

as restated 15,902 2,243 20 18,165
Increase in allowance B 1,800 1,552 16,733 20,085
Amount written off b Gk = = (839) (839)
At the end of the reporting period i8R ER 17,702 3,795 15,914 37,411
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 6. $RITH &

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued

Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of the balances contributed to the increase in the

loss allowance during the year:

(i) Increase in loss given default rate due to the increase
in shortfall portion of margin loans which are not fully
secured amounted to approximately HK$186,762,000
(2019: HK$34,553,000); and

(i) Additional loss allowance of approximately
HK$89,556,000 (2019: HK$15,838,000) as a result of
difficulties on repayment by accounts receivable from

margin clients.

The Group has pledged securities as collateral amounted
to approximately HK$48,634,000 (2019: HK$3,642,000)
in respect of the credit-impaired accounts receivable from

margin clients.

Loans and advances

Management has money lending policies in place and the
exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis. The Group grants loans only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
these borrowers are subject to credit verification procedures.
Also, the Group has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is promptly taken to recover overdue

debts.

At 31 March 2020, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 50% (2019: 43%) of total loans and advances was
due from the Group’s five largest borrowers, within the

money lending segment.

MEERBREEEEREEK-&

FERR-&
BUREEEFEFRE &

AT &5 Bk A8 R T (8 1) o K 5 ) B SR 4R
A i SR8 A 3

() R I A BIE IE A BOE K
Z AR A B K RCES A 1 A
186,762,000 7¢ (= F — JL4F :
34,553,000 70 ) HH BUE S E K18
KELF K

(i) HREIRAEBTLEEFTIRE Y@
1Y) 4 R IR B > A D AR AN s TR A
#189,556,000% 7€ ( ~F — JL4F -
15,838,000 JC)

A A [k b B B0 E 0 R IR R
% 5 R TE H5 A #748,634,000% 00 (. F
— JUAF 1 3,642,000 #0) 2 BRI RE 7
1B A o o

B RBH

T ) A R I R A B R AR
BB R I o A S A 1) 3 T LS R
LIS =07 SRR RS o AR SR
O BRSO B T 4 52 AR B
HRERF o 7350 > AL IS A HAb %
T2 7 DA D PR CER A 45 il i 1] 7 ) R
AR -

W o_FEEFZHA = —H > AEH
B b5 B AV > DR 2 AR K M B
[1950% (—F—JLAF : 43%) 2 MENASE
B R RN 2 3K IE (B U 438
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued

Loans and advances — continued

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and whether the financial asset is credit-impaired, the
Group has taken into account the historical actual credit
loss experience of the borrowers and the financial position
of the counterparties by reference to, among others, the
background search for individual clients, amount of pledged
assets, their management or audited accounts and available
press information, adjusted for forward-looking factors that
are specific to the debtors and general economic conditions
of the industry in which the counterparties operate, in
estimating the probability of default of these financial
assets, as well as the loss upon default in each case. There
was no change in the estimation techniques or methodology

made during the year.

The Group has established a loan credit risk classification
system and performs credit risk management based on
loan classification in one of three categories of internal
credit rating. The information about the ECL for the loan
receivables at the end of the reporting period is summarised
below. After considering the above factors, reversal of
net impairment loss of approximately HK$2,915,000
(2019: provision of net impairment loss of approximately
HK$16,508,000) was recognised during the year.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

tRMITHEH-&
HERMEEAERKE &

FERR-&

EARBF K

filti s TS 45 5 18 M /B RE B A0 o e
LA {5 Bl g A7 7 853 00 T LA 2% <
e A ERER . AEEeE
A AR R 1 B R A A M 18 A8 B I
BHHWMBIRW > Eh2%E (Hha
) MAEFE AR Y - SR
I R AR 0 B RS R AL IR
H K] 56 R - Sl B R
HIT WS 1k R 3R % 388 5 4 1 PO AR 4T 26 1 —
J KE AR A L R R DUAE FEEZ S
B R AR I RSN E
ZOROE = B S B N D (S i R W RS
7 40 o 5 o

A AL E o B fE BRI R
S AR RO (B =N
BEREAR A Horh — 81 T SRR
B o A B OR 22 B i B B TE S
BB ERMRN o &EEL ER
F o OO AS AR B AR I ek (1 15 I
FH#2,915,000% 50 (& — JLAE : BI(E
T 15 B 15 1 B 416,508,000 IC) o

Annual Report 2020 %R 1

.

23

T



wn B B 05 R R B R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Loans and advances — continued

At 31 March 2020

6. $RITH &
BEEMEERERKE &

ERER-E
ERRBH &
R=B-—BE=A=+-8

Gross
carrying Loss
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance
RESEE G FHEEBREE M ARMEE BERE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FEx
Performing & #J 12-month 121# J1 535,692 5,667
Underperforming J& %1% ¥t K £ Lifetime 4 160,865 1,677
Not performing RIE X Lifetime 4= 3,500 3,500
700,057 10,844

At 31 March 2019

RoEF-NF=A=+—H

Gross

carrying Loss

Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance
R E T B 1R e A B T Jies 1R 48
HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T#IT

Performing J& #J 12-month 121 A 612,718 2,127
Underperforming J& £ 1% ¥ K f£ Lifetime 4 472,415 13,421
Not performing A~ & #) Lifetime 4 1] 30,203 13,588
1,115,336 29,136

124 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED # 7 2 i PR A )
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued

Loans and advances — continued

Ageing analysis
Ageing analysis of loan receivables (net of loss allowance)

prepared based on loan commencement or renewal date set

g R EE U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T-_TF=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. TRITH-&

MEERBREEEEREIE-&

FERR-&
BEMRBH—F

Mz 7 AT
W WSS (AR 411 B s 1R BB A 1R AR
B A0 P 2 B K B O SRR U R

out in the relevant contracts is as follows: R IREA AT R -
2020 2019
—ECEF ZE—JUE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AP
Less than 1 month Dk A 49,402 208,756
1 to 3 months 12318 A 57,200 211,594
4 to 6 months 4% 61 A 80,967 126,331
7 to 12 months 71210 A 203,426 204,833
Over 12 months 1218 A PA - 298,218 334,686
At the end of the reporting period T A R 689,213 1,086,200

Ageing analysis of loan receivables (net of loss allowance)

prepared based on contractual due date is as follows:

R WS R (KA BR s PR B AR AR
VB H R R BRE AT IR

2020 2019

—ERDERF | A

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT T#C

Not yet past due M o 41 1 685,895 1,076,298
Less than 1 month past due A R 1| A 500 5,210
1 to 3 months past due w1230 A 2,818 4,109
Over 3 months past due i A3 M H L b - 583
At the end of the reporting period A R R 689,213 1,086,200

At 31 March 2020, the Group recognised loss allowance of
approximately HK$10,844,000 (2019: HK$29,136,000) on
its loans and advances. The movement in the loss allowance

for loans and advances during the year is summarised below.

4;473$ AH=+—H, &%
=Y X W B8 M R A
10,844,000{7%75 ZE—JLE B
29,136,000%% 7)) 4 A B 3K S BRI
e R S B A A R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_TFE=FA=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6.

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk — continued

Loans and advances — continued

Year ended 31 March 2020

tRMITHEH-&
MREMEEAERRE &
EERK-E

ENRBH—F
BE-_Z-_ZEF=-A=+—HILEE

12-month ECL
128 A Lifetime ECL

FERR 2HRARERR
Performing Underperforming ~ Not performing Total
BAw  EAORRAXE TER @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR TER TR TEn
At the beginning of the reporting period i #t3% # ) 2,127 13,421 13,588 29,136
Increase (Decrease) in allowance B (i) Al 3,550 (11,580) 5,115 (2,915)
Amount writcen off LEER (10) (164) (15,203) (15,377)
At the end of the reporting period Tt A 5,667 1,677 3,500 10,844

Year ended 31 March 2019

12-month ECL

BE _F-NF=A=1tHILHFE

120 A B Lifetime ECL
FHEER 2MEMGEEER
Performing  Underperforming  Not performing Total
Bam RABRXE Nk At
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T T#x
At the beginning of reporting period, Rk KEF
as restated 1,677 10,951 - 12,628
Increase in allowance 3 9 988 450 2,470 13,588 16,508
At the end of the reporting period R BR 2,127 13,421 13,588 29,136

The significant decrease in the loss allowance during

the year is contributed from reversal of loss allowance of
approximately HK$15,620,000 (2019: HK$Nil) as a result

of disposal of two loans and advances to an independent

third party.

b GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED %1 ER A 7

§

AN s SR A WD R R R I — 4
S = 7 B W R R K BGR
1% 1] s 48 B8 5 £915,620,000 00 (&
— LA Fson) ke
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued

Loans and advances — continued

At 31 March 2020, no loss allowance was recognised for
loans and advances with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$99,535,000 (2019: HK$173,552,000) due to the
relevant pledged assets of approximately HK$619,752,000
(2019: HK$408,679,000).

The management closely monitor the credit quality of the
loans and there are no indications that the loan receivables

neither past due nor impaired will be uncollectible.

Debt securities

The Group invests only on quoted and liquid debt securities
with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least B3
from Moody’s. Most of the debt securities are considered
having low credit risk based on the borrowers’ strong

capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience over the past years
and the financial position of the counterparties by reference
to, among others, their management or audited accounts
and available press information, adjusted for general
economic conditions and future prospects of the industry
in which the counterparties operate and various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information such
as information published by economic expert reports,
financial analysts and government bodies in estimating
the probability of default of these financial assets, as well
as the loss upon default in each case. The management of
the Group considers the ECL of these financial assets to be
insignificant after taking into account the financial position

and credit quality of the counterparties.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or
methodology made during the year. After considering
the above factors, reversal of net impairment loss of
approximately HK$1,517,000 (2019: HK$1,129,000) was

recognised during the year.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

tRMITHEH-&
MREMEERERRE &

EERR-E&E

EXRBH-4F

AR TERE=ZA=Z+—H - BRM
B C AR 49 5619,752,0009 7T (—
T — JLAF 1 408,679,000%5 JC) > W 1
18 %9 £599,535,000%5 70 (- F — JULAF -
173,552,000 70) 2 B85 Fe B4R 34 31f7 4
e w8 s PR B A -

EHEENEEERERER I
A B 52 507 Sl 90 00 R (B 2 R i
I HE L W [ o

REEZ

A% S 25 8 S BT 2D 1B AR
{5 B 4 2 52 5% 7 22 48 97 8 1
B il e o AR A BAT BB &0
BV EKRE S KO (B W %
5 FA (A HE AR -

A G B R > AL EC FE
ot 25 4F B8 1) 8 18 B R A5 B0 1H A8 B8R
B 38 5y 07 i BB IR DL (2% (b @
%) HAE MR FZIR A LA E
K SR b 7RG T AEAT SR 4R
IS A I8 5IK L B AR A R 5t A B 4% T A
I T T K7 R 19 A A R AR U
(491 G 268 97 S o~ < L 0 A i % I
R 6 A T % S < T T R MR
TUBE A EORE) DL A1 DL B AT K
(L X SRR
AR UL AR R R AR > A 52 A B AR
RS RMEENENESERAE
% o

NS T (S i S TR IR | A -
BE R Ak N EE - FNC R E(E
o5 18I BE AR B] 491,517,000% o0 (&
— JLEE 1 1,129,000%5 7C)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

128 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED % 2B R A S

=y

—EF=A=1+—HILFE
Yearended 31 March 2020

continued

Credit risk — continued

Debt securities — continued

The gross carrying amounts of the financial assets, by credit
risk rating grades, are as follows:

At 31 March 2020

6. $RITH &
BREREERERBE -

FERR-

LET L |
5 0 0 6 50 4

&

() RER T (AT

R=-Z-ZFHF=ZA=+—H

]

Gross

carrying Loss
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance
A EB 1S B4R EHEEEREE HWERMEE BiEEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Performing 12-month 121 A 255,030 8,467
Underperforming (note i) EQJ [EE{RJ\ﬁ [ff5Fi) Lifetime 24 - —
Not performing Lifetime L - -
255,030 8,467

At 31 March 2019 A E-NF=H=1—H

Gross
carrying Loss
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance
KN e TE A B s 15 AR e Ao AR T (E e R A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T ARCP
Performing 12-month 121@ H 223,486 7,694
Underperforming (note i) EQ/J h% DU AE (B Lifetime 2 28,944 2,341
Not performing Lifetime &8 | - -
252,430 10,035
Note: [} =3

(i) The Group monitors changes in credit risk by tracking () A< [ A0 R O 00 AP LS B

published external credit ratings. To determine whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk at the
reporting date, the Group supplements this by reviewing
the latest published ratings and assessing whether there is
any downgrade on the latest published ratings compared
to previous assessment date. No downgrade on the external

credit ratings over the Group’s debt securities at 31 March

2020.

UL RGN o B T REE
ot FO A 5 B0 B A B
7 A 9] 308 208 7 A BT O A B T R I
i 5 7 4 A B4 T 8 BTG AT RE Al F AR
PO 75 A AT T e S A S 4 22 B - R
FoFREZHA = I EAEER
B i g5 2 SN PSR RT AR R AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIT A&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — BB EEEER R — &
continued
Credit risk — continued EERK-&
Debt securities — continued EREF B
At 31 March 2020, the Group recognised loss allowance of NEBEOBEZHAH=Z—H > AEH
approximately HK$8,467,000 (2019: HK$10,035,000) on sk 4% S R EH A B 2 R
its debt securities in Mandatory FVOCI. The movement in TifE 52 e 18 998 1 498,467,000%E T (%
the loss allowance for these debt securities during the year is — JL4AF 1 10,035,0009 JC)  4F A I 55
summarised below. TR 8 25 1Y) T 50 138 4 438 [m] 2 % Bl ARE 2
wWR e
The movement of the loss allowance, by measurement basis MR G B s & 18
of ECL, is as follows: MR EE IR -
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-_ZE_ZEX5=A=+—HIEE
12-month ECL
12fE AR Lifetime ECL
REEE 2HRNEEEE
Performing Underperforming  Not performing Total
BAT BABRRE TEH @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TAERT THERT FERL TERL
At the beginning of the reporting period it 5 i) 7,694 2,341 - 10,035
Increase (Decrease) in allowance B (i) Al 824 (2,341) - (1,517)
Exchange realignment M2 % (51) - - (51)
At the end of the reporting period R SR 8,467 - - 8,467
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-ZFZ - NE=A=+—HILEF
12-month ECL
12 A B8 Lifetime ECL
fFEER MBI EER
Performing  Underperforming ~ Not performing Total
B#s BB E REH 5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HKS$000
T T T T
At the beginning of reporting period, TR A KT
as restated 11,164 = = 11,164
(Decrease) Increase in allowance (WD) s e £ (3,470) 2,341 = (1,129)
At the end of the reporting period T 1R 7,694 2,341 < 10,035
The Group has no collateral in respect of these debt A A 18 Sl 0 5 M S5 R 5 a8 25 i A IR
securities. e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Other receivables

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and whether the financial asset is credit-impaired, the
Group has taken into account the historical actual credit
loss experience, financial information and adjusted for
forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
and general economic conditions of the industry in which
the counterparties operate, in estimating the probability
of default of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon
default in each case. There was no change in the estimation

techniques or methodology made during the year.

After considering the above factors, the management assess
that the other receivables have not had a significant increase
in credit risk and 12-month ECL will be recognised. The
management of the Group considers the 12-month ECL of
other receivables to be insignificant, so no loss allowance

was recognised during the year.

Deposits with financial institutions

The credit risk on bank balances — general accounts and
cash is limited because majority of the counterparties are
financial institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and state-owned banks
with good reputation. No loss allowance was recognised for

both years.

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with clearing house or brokers and
customers. To address the risk, the treasury team works
closely with the settlement division on monitoring the
liquidity gap. The Group manages its liquidity risk through
maintaining sufficient cash. As part of the measures to
safeguard liquidity, the Group has maintained substantial
stand-by banking facilities, diversifying the funding sources

and spreading out the maturity dates.

tRMITHEH-&
MREMEEAERRE &

FERR-&

Rt EU R

il TS 45 5 18 M /B RE B A0 o ke
LA A5 B g A7 7 83 09 T DA % <
HE e B A ERER . AMEEeE
A AR R s 1R AC R e B B
b S AR S A E AN R
7 8 T AEAT 3 09— M K G A A
IR o DU R RZ 5 4 D A R A
o NELWUTEANBESL - FR
Jr VR At 45 379 507 95 Sl 4 5 B o

KEE gL, B R > B AL A R
W K TE 2 AR B g SN0 4 B 3 > Sl
A HERR 124 A U (G Bk 1R o A E
i LT R 2 A B WA TH 2 124 ) TH
LUEER= Y 7Fis W 7 S NS N A S 4
i R M AR AR

REMBEE 275

ATHBR — — IR 7 M B 2 5 45
B AT R - PR R BT A 52 5 3 7 7
B 5 EAF AR TRE Rz &
AR L A IR T £ R 0 B A R AT o
9 8] 4 JBE 24 317 488 e e E 9 A

REE SRR

P KEAC RS Iy A SR T H W S 2 —
B WA SR R Ry B O T SRS AC e
BF 2 TH 5 B B 26 T T )
<5 JEL B o A B AR I JE L B o B S BRI
HGAMMBEESE —FAEZEES
IR - AEHBRER LB &F
BN < g o0 A (S R Y R <
SR — 70 > AEECHERKE
i ERAT AL BRORE & AR IR B B
A -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Liquidity risk — continued
Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
according to the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows. The difference between the “Total
undiscounted cash flows” column and the “Carrying
amount at the end of reporting period” column represents
the future contractual cash flows attributable to the
instrument which are not included in the carrying amount
of the financial liability on the consolidated statement of

financial position.

g R EE U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

ERMTHR-—&
HERREEAERRE &

RBESERE - &

LB B R 5w B 7Y A

N R A A AR < AR B B R
A Z R A KR - FRRES
il B AEOR I BB B R (F9 A 42 B vl e
R EOREREZ B MARE - TRE
FEFE RAER S E - [RGB &
U AR ] — B BT s R 2 AR T
S Hr2E8 - RERAHTEE
MR G H Bl o A B B R
I R A B R R AR £ BB IR DL
KR -

Carrying
amount at
Repayable Total the end of
Repayable in less than Within ~ undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month 1 year cash flows period
REER ARER AERRE  REEHEK
&E REE B RERE ZREE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FER TER TER TER
At 31 March 2020 R-B-%F
ZR=1-"H
Accounts payable JE AT R TR 358,726 119,769 - 478,495 478,475
Accrued charges and other 5t % R 1%
payables HoA e R - 7,734 - 7,734 7,734
Amounts due to RFHE
non-controlling R OB
shareholders 30,257 - - 30,257 30,257
388,983 127,503 - 516,486 516,466

\

Vs

i

=

!
I

Loan commitments
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITH—#&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HERAREEEEREE &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued REBESREKR &
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued LB B R F 5 B 9 2 — A
Carrying
amount at
Repayable in Total the end of
Repayable less than 1 Within -~ undiscounted the reporting
on demand month 1 year cash flows period
AREEK AR A AMBBE  RERERR
i it 1R Wi 8 A MR i
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TH#7T T T T T
At 31 March 2019 %A
ZH=1—H
Accounts payable T A R 1,046,563 149,664 - 1,196,227 1,196,203
Accrued charges and other Tt # i &
payables HAb A 208 - 10,661 - 10,661 10,661
Amounts due to Y€ 21
non-controlling TR R
shareholders 43,665 - - 43,665 43,665
Bank borrowings R - - 52,024 52,024 50,000
Convertible bonds issued by a — — [ - i Iff /2 7
listed subsidiary AT 2 I E - - 264,688 264,688 233,524
1,090,228 160,325 316,712 1,567,265 1,534,053
Loan commitments B AR - - 130,000 130,000 -
D GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED 41722 B R A F

§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Liquidity risk — continued
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

The following tables detail the Group’s expected maturity
for certain financial assets. The tables below have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities
of the financial assets, including interests that will be
earned on those assets, except for those financial assets
which are not repayable on demand. The analysis is based
on when the Group anticipates that the cash flows will
occur. The difference between the “Total undiscounted
cash flows” column and the “Carrying amount at the end
of reporting period” column represents the possible future
cash flows attributable to the instrument which are not
included in the carrying amount of the financial asset on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The inclusion
of information on financial assets is necessary in order to
understand the Group’s liquidity risk management as the

liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

6.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

tRMITHEH-&
HERMEEAERKE &

RBESERE - &

LB B R 5 g 9 7 —

R RS T R 2 TH
PIMH o FPRRBEMEERWHES
HVBIIIGE DL (G455 5% 55 0 A e 2 A1)
B o Ml U E I ZOR R 2 SRV E
BR A1 o A B o0 Bt )l A 7 A 4 1 TE
B4 UL B A AT B L R T A R o TR
BB B A B AR | — ) B[ i R
R | — 3 2 2 - URA B
TR RAEEBR S0 & - AR
BT SR T | L AN AL < ) e )
BSIR DL 3R 2 BR AT (EL =y 72 R B ' 4 2
AR 1 L R VR > R
W ik AT B < L E R R B AR AR
A L ) < B A AR R A Y o

Carrying
Repayable ~ Repayable amount at
Repayable between between  Repayable  Repayable Total  the end of
Repayable in less than 1to3 3 months between between ~ More than undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month months tolyear lto2years  2to5 years 5 years Undated ~ cash flows period
AR an AR AR AR AER
7R 1EAR  1E3EAR EAE 1EMER 1E5ER ReRE  REENR
EREE g ®E IEAEE g g EsE L 4% ZEEE
HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TEn Thn - TEn TEn Tén Tén TEn TEn Tén
At 31 March 2020 Ro2o2F
Zh=1-H
Accounts recefvable,net — HEURIA A 35478 20892 - - - - - - 3565678 3,364,867
Bank balances - general Rk
accounts and cash —RRFEEE 523,847 367,796 14,063 - - - - - 905,706 905,175
Bank balances - client accounts $417 45
~KFIRF 508 1943532 - - - - - S - B S
Loans and advances, net SR RAKHE 4838 103369 249066 304413 81,728 3,054 - - TAGGE 689,213
Deposits and other receivables 154 X S M
Lieu 61953 - - - - - - - 619 6195
Financial assets at FVPL RARE ARE
ZEmERE - 195 19,695 - - - - BB 3300 2153205
Mandatory FVOCI B A RERA
Kb - 1541 20301 31565 18718 102473 8341 21005 3394 255030
4,386,293 688,325 303,125 335,978 210,446 105,727 8,341 254435 629,670 6,174,692
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE-T - TF=A=1+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. TMITH-&E
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HERAREEEEREE &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued REBESRK &
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued T B & s R i 9 2 — 4
Carrying
Repayable  Repayable Repayable amount at
Repayable between between  Repayable between Toal  theend of
Repayable in less than 13 3 months between 2105  More than undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month months tolyear 102 years years 5 years Undated ~ cash flows period
7S IS IS IS 7S AHB
Vil WERR 183 A R EAE  IEMER 2ESER RERE  RRENE
EREE iR BE  FRfR i iR s &R &% CEWE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000
Tt T T T Tt T T Tt Tt T
At 31 March 2019 BEF-NE=A
=t —H
Accounts receivable, net  FEUCRIAT 3,696,429 12,334 - - - - - - 308763 3707421
Bank balances - general RITER-
accounts and cash —RRF RS2 434,034 61,546 10322 - - - - - 505,902 505,871
Bank balances - client accounts 51745
~%FIRF 651,488 91727 - - - - - - LB L4310
Loans and advances, net ~ $ERBFE - 165,103 540,487 324,335 115497 8773 - - LIZ419 1,086,200
Deposits and other receivables 154 X S
JelGUR 28,408 - - - - - - - 28,408 28,408
Financial assets at FVPL TanEFARE
LERERE - 2,505 24,445 2375 321,050 - - 167,106 536,681 492,006
Mandatory FVOCI EHUSREEIN
b2l - 1178 88,723 5617 58,716 78,446 6311 3550 14513 252,430
Designated FVOCI HERARERA
T2 S - - - - - - - 70672 70,672 70,672
4,810,359 734,393 063,977 351,327 495,463 107,219 6,311 273,300 7,442,349 7,286,128
Fair value measurements AREFE

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured
at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these
financial statements on a recurring basis across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of
inputs are defined as follows:

e Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED £ #i=RERA A

PATR 7 DL SE B M 2 0 e (e Rl B SR
WA REZ EE AR J1HEE
o T B o YE I BB 1358 40 A [ A A P
REZ=EHFEZH - HEH AR
BRI EERBEEBEREGEEER
T AU A5 AR 2> o A B
AT

o R (REER) - AEEREE
T s 2 M R R R
{6 BT 2 R ORACGH )

o 2B EEZWELS > '
FE B A R R B AR A
Z W ABE 5 K

o 3@ (REER) c BEIAKZ
N AT B iy A B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements — continued

(i) Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets

THEE

Mandatory FVOCI
BHRAAEA
Ef2EKE

~ Quoted debt securities

- bR %

— Unlisted debr securities

- FEmEHEE

Designated FVOCI

EERDAETA
Efp2EKE

- Unlisted equity securities

- LT

Financial assets at FVPL

BOAEHARHZ
tREE

- Listed equity securities

- LA

~ Unlisted convertible notes

AT

Fair value at 31 March
R=A=1+-8
ZARE

2020 2019
“EIRE | 2K
HK$°000 HK$000
TERn T
248,827 246,142
6,203 6,288
- 70,672
107,465 126,882
19,785 19,511

Fair value
hierarchy

Year ended 31 March 2020

6. $RITH-&
ARBEHE &

(i) AR EFEZ 2 EE

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

MEER HERKRIZAARE

Level 2
FJE

Level 2
I

Level 2
I

Level 1
L

Level 3

Quoted prices from brokers

BE2 40

Quoted price from broker

BE Wi

Net asset value

HEFE

Quoted prices in an active market

i 1AL

Discounted cash flow method
and binomial tree model,
based on spot price, volatility
and discount rate

WRE LT EER R
BRI R &
[l REREES

Significant Correlation between

unobservable  significant unobservable

inputs inputs and fair value
BEMELEEL

EEMELEE BARBHOREL

ZEAHE  HEBE

N/A N/A

AR A

N/A N/A

Nt N

N/A N/A

Nt iyt

N/A N/A

Nt iyt

Discount rate of ~ Discount rate increases/
12.96% (2019:  decreases by 5% (2019:
11.78%) 59%), fair value would
decrease/increase
by approximately
HK$105,000/
HK$12,000 (2019
HKS$73,000/
HK$54,000)

BB LT/ B
(ZF— LA 5%)
NREMRED /S
£7105,0008 2./
12,0004 7T
(CE-NE:
7300087,/
54,0007 1C)

BB B12.96%
(CF-NE:
11.78%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITHE-&
Fair value measurements — continued AREFE-E
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value — continued (i) AT EFEZ M EE 4
Significant Correlation between
Fait value ~ Valuation techniques unobservable  significant unobservable
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs inputs inputs and fair value
EEMALERL
) R=A=1-H EEMELEE GARBHNAEL
SREE ZARE NMEER HEATRIERARE 2B ABE  HIEE
2020 2019
“EIERE | ZZE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TiER T
Financial assets at FVPL
- continued
BHEAAETA
Ath2ENE-E
— Unlisted debr securities 85,740 309,388 Level 3 Discounted cash flow method ~ Discount rate of ~ Discount rate increases/
(subject to early redemption) and binomial tree model based ~ 12.54% (2019:  decreases by 5% (2019:
on spot price, volatility and 10.36%) 5%), fair value would
discount rate decrease/increase
by approximately
HK$3,009,000/
HK$2,211,000

(2019: approximately
HK$21,194,000/

HK$23,927,000)
—F LT B 38 BHALREER AR WHEERLM%  BEERLR/ THs%
(W SR ) BB TR AR B (CE-E (CFAE %)
B W S % 10.36%) NRERED /S
#3,009,0001 75,/
2,211,000i ¢
(CE-NEH
21,194,0004 72,/
23,927,000 )
— Unlisted investment funds 40,225 40,225 Level 2 Net asset value N/A N/A
- EmREES FE BEFE A A REH

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED £ #i=RERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements — continued

(i)

(1)

Financial assets measured at fair value — continued

There were neither transfers between Level 1 and Level
2 fair value measurement nor transfers into and out of

Level 3 fair value measurement during years ended 31

HE-_T-_TF=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. $RITH-&
ARBEHE &

(i)

AR a2 & [ & FE — A
A E T R R FE— U
ZA=Z+—HILFEE $F1E &;ﬁ
2080 SR B FT & 2 I s RS

March 2020 and 2019. %ﬁa&ﬁfﬁ%f%jﬁﬁﬂifx&%
H oo
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of ERIEES =N REFTEZH
financial assets i1
HK$’000
AP
At 1 April 2018 ZEZ = N\FWUHA—H 469,386
Redeemed i o] (150,000)
Fair value losses in profit or loss, net SRR/ I (=N 7R R ] 5,513
At 31 March 2019 N_FE-NE=ZA=+—H 324,899
Purchases i 85,800
Redeemed §g (1] (300,000)
Realised loss in profit or loss iR 2 CESER (5,388)
Fair value gains in profit or loss, net JE 1= E TP/ =N ETRE | 214
At 31 March 2020 R=-B-EF=HA=+-—H 105,525
The unrealised gains of approximately HK$214,000 PE AWM = g%

(2019: HK$5,513,000) for Level 3 investments held
at the reporting date are reported in “other gains and
losses, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets and financial liabilities nor measured at

fair value

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position

approximate their fair values.

%%fﬁqﬁc%ﬁ%’]zm,ooo%m e
— JU4E 1 5,513,000 0) i 45 A 1R
gt S L Ath 2 T Wi £ 2% Hh [ A i 25
KRG HRIFRE I HT 24 -

(i) AL TN B2 2 & E R

= AE
A 52 [ 5 B RE R R AR S T
FAL B A D B 2 R E X

LA E IR A B A
{EAHZ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments that are

either:

e offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position; or

*  not offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and a broker, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and a broker on the
same settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a

net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the accounts receivable and payable with its
retail customers in the Group’s brokerage business (the
“brokerage clients”) that are due to be settled on the same
date with reference to the settlement method set by the
HKSCC and the Group intends to settle these balances on a

net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the same
date which are being offset, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
a broker and the brokerage clients that are not to be settled
on the same date, financial collateral including cash and
securities received by the Group and deposits placed with
HKSCC and a broker do not meet the criteria for offsetting
in the consolidated statement of financial position since
the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only

enforceable following an event of default.

ERMITHEH-&
tHEERSRE B EY

R R A R A B A AT
AT 2 50— R T o e e 2R
oL 4z Al T HL 22 B0 22 P 2 4 7
AR

o AARELEER S IBHIK DRI
6%

o EREE Mom MR R ORE UK
S A A T 7 08 A A 4R R S T
IRVLR AL S H -

MR A 42 1 B 7 38 R SR A A R W
([ AW ) S A AL 53T 1Y 35 A 3R
BN W k- AR SR B A 15 AT R L
A7 HE R 1K 819 75 8 A4 S BRLACAC TR [ 3
J1 245 ) i B A R E AT > T EL
AL A E L FE T AR -

BLAN > 275 7 f A5 T L A5 5 T
& AL A G AT AT HE L 8
AEBBRLEB L TEHERF ((REF
J5 1) T TR] 0 A A R A % A R
H > T HA LA LT A -

BRIR RS 2 B B & A &8R40 >
TP L ifE . LA G R 4 ) A o B RO
HAFR DT AT o % H A &5 R
MEW e s 55 00 - R R K
FROH - g iRy (B A 4 Bk
Bl i) ~ FREESEERERZ
e R A TR &R A BB IR DL R K
2 ARAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. TRITAR—-#&
Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to THEEHSHEEEE &
offsetting — continued
Net
Gross amounts amounts of
of recognised financial
financial assets
liabilities set presented
offin the in the Related amount not set off
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated in the consolildated slté.ltement
of recognised statement statement of financial position
financial assets of financial of financial Financial Collateral
after impairment position position instruments pledged Net amount
RER  REAHE .
EEZ  MRREMZ  REAER TRRERIBHRZS
SREE  BENSR MREI2 BH2Rnes
an BEEE SHEERE $RIE CERERY 28
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TiEn TR Tin Tin TiEn TiEn
At 31 March 2020 RZB-2%
ZAZt-H
Accounts receivable arising BEIERELY
from the business of dealing in EEPEEZ
securities and future contracts AlE 3,617,874 (53,007) 3,564,867 (905) (3,495,914) 08,048
Net
Gross amounts amounts of
of recognised financial
financial assets
liabilities set presented
offin the in the Related amount not set off
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated in the C(?nsoli.dated statement
of recognised statement statement of financial posicion
financial assets of financial of financial Financial Collateral
after impairment position position instruments pledged Net amount
WK REAME e ,
PR RREREZ  REANTE s i A
bREE  CRRLH  RAEDIZ _ BAZAREE
o BEGE  AMEENE ARTR  CREMERY B
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tt T T T
At 31 March 2019 RZF-N1%
=f=1+-H

Accounts receivable arising from ~ #HHFRMEEH AN
the business of dealing in securities 5 H £ 2
and future contract ElRR 3805075 (07654 3707421 (1059) (3,687,640 18718
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting — continued

6. TRITH-&

TREERSHEEEE &

Net amounts of
Gross amounts financial
of recognised liabilities
financial assets presented
set offin the in the Related amount not set off
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated in the consoli‘dated slt;.ltement
of recognised statement of statement of of financial position
financial financial financial Financial Collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
REGEHE
SREEE?  RELEE ERHEAHBRERD
BEZ  CEZER  BRRSA BE2RRLE
cREREE BELE CREETE SRIR CERERY 58
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HEK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
T T Tin Tin T T
At 31 March 2020 g 23
ZB=1-8
Accounts payable arising from EARMEHERS
the business of dealing in XHTELL
securities and futures contracts TEfif fJE (531,482) 53,007 (478,475) 905 - (477,570)
Net amounts of
Gross amounts financial
of recognised liabilities
financial assets presented
st offin the in the Related amount not set off
(Gross amounts consolidated consolidated in the C(?nsoli.dated slt.atement
of recognised statement of statement of of financial position
financial financial financial Financial Collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
REAHE e \
REEEEZ  REANE EEREAHTRE £
B CEZAR  RRERAZ el k2
EHARLH EEAE  cHAERTY ARTH  BEMERY it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T T Tibx T T T
At 31 March 2019 REZZ-1E
ZA=+-14
Accounts payable arising from HERMEEEAY
the business of dealing in XHHELEL
secutities and futures contracts FERTIRIE (1,293,857) 97,654 (1,196,203) 1,099 = (1,195,144)

The amounts which have been offset against the related

recognised financial assets and financial liabilities in the

Group’s consolidated statement of financial position are

measured on the same basis as the recognised financial assets

and financial liabilities, which is amortised cost.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&F 2R ERA A

A A 42 1 & B 5 IR D R LA
B O R 0 < Al B e RIS 2
SR WO R EMEE XA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_TZF=F=+—HItFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

7. REVENUE 7. W@
2020 2019
—gmgE | —T Ak
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THs T
Revenue from contracts with customers BREBUBHREER
within HKFRS 15 FISREEAZEF
B W=
Brokerage commission A4 26,730 37,288
Underwriting and placing commission B M BB 4 5,824 5,509
Proof of funds commission G4 TR A 4 1,000 7,160
Other commission Hi At A 42 102 33
Clearing and handling fee income GRE N FEEA 1,819 2,366
Advisory fee income oA [ 2l A 257 2,089
35,732 54,445
Revenue from other sources B H A RIR 2 =
Property rental income EL AN 13,717 12,583
Interest income from financial T8 E s R EFFA B 2
assets at FVPL G RVE E 2 R Bl A
— unlisted convertible notes —JE b T R 2,277 1,560
— unlisted debt securities — I LT AR I 16,379 33,861
18,656 35,421
68,105 102,449
Interest revenue calculated using the effective LI B FEFLE A7 H 2
interest method FILE Y 75 -
— bank balances and time-deposits — SRAT &5 R SE MR 5,877 4,235
— other financial assets at amortised costs — RS AT R 2
HoAth 4 Wl & =
— accounts receivable — JRE ST B TE 325,233 340,387
— loans and advances — B IR 105,744 102,337
— Mandatory FVOCI — WL N R E RN A
HoAth 4 T i A 19,565 12,497
456,419 459,456
Total revenue W= 524,524 561,905
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

7. REVENUE - continued 7.

In addition to the information shown in segment
disclosures, the revenue from contracts with customers

within HKFRS 15 is disaggregated as follows:

% — &
B 5 W0 58 % RERRS1 - T B B 9
1400 01 4515 9 S 05 5 0
St

2020 2019
g —EF N
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET TH T
Timing ofrevmue recognition: Wi 7 R 2 W [T HE
At a point in time RERER
Brokerage commission A = 26,730 37,288
Underwriting and placing commission £ 85 Sl 6 A 4 5,824 5,509
Proof of funds commission T4 s W 4 1,000 7,160
Other commission A AR 42 102 33
Clearing and handling fee income HH M TFHEEBA 1,819 2,366
35,475 52,356
Over time P& B S
Advisory fee income TSR ON 257 2,089

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##1ZRER A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into five operating
divisions, namely broking, securities margin financing,
money lending, corporate finance and investments. These
divisions are the basis on which the board of directors of
the Company, being the chief operating decision maker,
reviews the operating results and financial information. The
principal activities of these divisions are as follows:

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

oEER

A 5 ) B I 0 B P o B AR
A WS ARG - BUE - SR
B UM E o s E MR AN )
Heer (A EEEPRE) FHEEE
M E R 2 R o M 2 &
BEBHMT -

Broking

st ZE

Pl ST}

Securities margin financing

Provision of stockbroking, futures and options broking and
underwriting and placements

RO R ACAC - W R HE A AC IR B LA K B % i R

Provision of securities margin financing

27 IR R 7 R
Money lending Provision of mortgage and consumer loans
I 1 P E Sl # B B

Corporate finance

Provision of corporate advisory services

Holding of investment properties and financial instruments

R E P At £ 35 T ) IR 5
Investments
& RAaREwELemTAE

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements. For the purposes of
monitoring segment performance and allocating resources
between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than certain property and equipment / prepaid
lease payments and property and equipment, club
memberships, certain prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, certain bank balances, certain tax
recoverable and certain deferred tax assets.

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than certain accrued charges and other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling sharcholders, certain
tax payable, certain deferred tax liabilities and liability
component of convertible bonds issued by a listed
subsidiary.

e all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments
other than certain amortisation and depreciation,
certain lease payments for short-term lease or lease
of low value assets / operating lease rentals, certain
management fees, certain finance costs, certain staff
costs and certain other expenses incurred for strategic
planning by the Group.

Ke8 o3 B 2w wt R B A T B TR
BYRE2 BT Al 2 A 4R B & Rt BORMIR © 7
Sy MR AR B e o3 A ) 2 B YR ) I

o BRSO E BBLMTE A A K
TE DA e W 38 R el ~ & P g g
Ry FEAY BRIE - % 4 R At E Ui
AH W I> BRAT &5 B8R W0 ATk
Ie] F5d YL e 748 7 40 4 5l YL A
Jiv A7 4 L3 E 2R AR A0 T

o BRER > HE ST KA AT IR
JE > RO BRI~ B
REBLIA ~ H 73 08 4T Bl TH B AR LA K
— [H] k=TT B > m) B AT 22 W] R
Rz ABWII > BT REE
3 BL ZE AL B 7R o

o BRWUAS R H 2 RN A E BT Bk AT 2
FS 48 G e B~ R ) S A
SEEEEEREZHEMK
REMEME W EEE W0
r R A~ iy BT RAR BA K
o HAt BA SO o BT A s A B
HE 7 BiL 2 A E 2 o
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n B B T 8 R B =T
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. ZEEFR &
Segment information about these divisions is presented AP 2 7 M E R E 25T o
below.
Segment revenue and results DE R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and PLTF £ 4% 76 T 0 8 oy i fR it 2 A&
results by reportable operating segments. B B A R ER R AT
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-_Z-_ZTF=A=+—HLEFE
Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments  Consolidated
&5
g2 RELHE HE tERE k& Ge

HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TRR TRT TER TER TER

Segment revenue e 41,418 315,167 105,744 257 51,938 524,524
Segment result NHES 1,433 213,960 107,600 164 (62,566) 260,591

Unallocated other operating income 7ML AR E T A &

and corporate expenses, net e diikty (25,133)
Unallocated finance costs AN RHERA (31,178)
Profit before taxation B Al 204,280
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE__F—-NFE=ZA=+—HILFE

Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments  Consolidated
#h
. RESHE R LXRE g a

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk

Segment revenue g e 56,635 340,343 102,337 2,089 60,501 561,905
Segment result NHER 15,198 320,257 85,575 1,518 59,157 481,705

Unallocated other operating income ~ 7ML AR T A &

and corporate expenses, net ikt (73,858)
Unallocated finance costs R RE A (96,675)
Profit before taxation Bl i i 311,172
144 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED & #HZ R ER A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable operating segments.

At 31 March 2020

HE-_T-_TF=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

DERER &

SHEERAM

DA J 2 20T 4 A0 A R A1 2 A
9 T 7 T 9 5T -

R-ZZ-ZFF=A=+—H

Securities
margin Money Corporate

Broking financing lending finance  Investments Consolidated

#H
gL GRESHE HE PERE BE e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FEL FET FERL TAT TEL TEL
Segment assets B E 415,143 3,893,585 886,927 9,820 1454582 6,660,057
Unallocated assets (note i) FABEE (k) 552,293
Consolidated assets AR 7,212,350
Segment liabilities =t 131,178 351,749 376 10 2,426 485,739
Unallocated liabilidies (note ii) A/ Bl €& (Wt 3%ii) 177,750
Consolidated liabilities o= 663,489

Annual Report 2020 %3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_ZT

—EFE=RA=T+—BLFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities — continued

-
o

7 8

BEM &
AERGE-&

At 31 March 2019 R_F-NFE=H=+—H
Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments  Consolidated
A5 REsMY g SERE #& e
HKS$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T THTT THT T THT T
Segment assets N EE 553,741 4,732,833 1,060,998 9732 1822751 8,180,055
Unallocated assets (note ) KGR (Jf2th) 138,110
Consolidated assets HAGE $,318,165
Segment liabilicies AR 159,828 1,041,015 115 146 74,008 1,275,112
Unallocated liabilities (note ii) KA B (B akii) 410,171
Consolidated liabilities GhRaE 1,685,283
Notes: [T

(i) The balance comprises bank balances of approximately () A B &S0 AL 48 SRAT 45 87 49440,596,000
HK$440,596,000 (2019: HK$20,338,000). Wt (—F—JUAF 1 20,338,000 00) -
(i) The balance comprise amounts due to non-controlling (i) A B &Y R 6 95 E AT IF 5 A% I Bk A

sharcholders and tax payables of approximartely
HK$30,257,000 and HK$138,321,000 respectively (2019:
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders, tax payables
and liability component of convertible bonds issued by
a listed subsidiary of approximately HK$32,669,000,
HK$138,321,000 and HK$233,524,000 respectively).

b GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED %1 ER A 7

§

T JRE A B T 43 HIl 930,257,000 76 M
138,321,000#: 70 ( & — JU4E : ERTJE
P2 1 I SRR I~ AN B T K b T A
N FEVEEAT 2 AT R AR IR 2 AR o
A %132,669,000% 7T ~ 138,321,000
J6 ) 233,524,000 7C) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_Z-_ZF=A=+—HILFE
Year ended 31 March 2020
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. DEEN-
Other segment information Hihp BER
2020 —E-—=x
Securities
margin Money  Corporate
Broking  financing lending finance Investments  Unallocated ~Consolidated
25
8 RELHE HE LEEE RE A8 58
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
Amounts included in the a7 b A s R
measure of segment profit IR AT
or loss or segment assets:
Additions of property and VEY T PR
equipment 120 - 607 - 68 30 825
Depreciation of property BN G PAIT
and equipment (1,055) - (64) - (39) (6,801) (7,959)
Net impairment loss on TEURIRIH 2 i (s
accounts receivable ] - (110,907) - - - - (110,907)
Reversal of net impairment A KR HHZ
loss on loans and advances WEEREE - - 2,915 - - - 2,915
Reversal of net impairment 2 Bl #6/A (3T A
loss on Mandatory FVOCT b2 ilitas 2 W (B
BRI - - - - 1,517 - 1,517
Additions of investment HEMELRE
properties - - - - 90,752 - 90,752
Fair value losses on REmEZ M AEER
investment properties - - - - (86,558) - (86,558)
Fair value losses on financial ~ #{/A R EFTARE Z
assets at FVPL EHEEZARMEER (66) - - - 1) - (19209
Gain on disposal of property  th B H13E R ekt ffi 2 &2
and equipment 40 - - - - - 40
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & Jff & /A 7 2 Ut i - - - - 2,181 - 2,181
Interest income FLEMA (L fF s
(including revenue and RAEERA)
other operating income) 6,187 325,167 105,754 75 38,265 2,322 477,770
Finance costs MENA (943) - - - (144 (GLI78)  (32,269)
Commission expenses ik b (6,978) - - (42) = = (7,020)
Write off of accounts receivable 1 &5 FE it i B = (300) - - - - (300)
Write off of loans and advances (5 £ 5 J #31 - - (205) - = - (205)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. PHER-&
Other segment information — continued HthopER —8&
2019 TE— AR
Securities
margin Money  Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments ~ Unallocated  Consolidated
B RELEE mE  GERE 135 KR bR

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS$'000
Tk Tk T Tk Tk Tk Tk

ol 0 b g 1R

Amounts included in the

measure of segment profit IR AT

or loss or segment assets:
Additions of property and WERFM LR E

equipment 879 - 3 - - 31 913
Amortisation of prepaid lease T EFHZ B R

payment, and depreciation W ERF M2 I E

of property and equipment (1,220) - - (1) (20) (6,446) (7,687)
Net impairment loss on FENURTE 2 W B

accounts receivable T - (20,085) - - - - (20,085)
Net impairment loss on loans 73k B #3k 2 Wi

and advances BRIFE - - (16,508) - - - (16,508)
Reversal of net impairment loss 5§ [ il # /4 AL (HFHA

on Mandatory FVOCI Holt A e 2 W

EHREH - - - - 1,129 - 1,129

Additions of investment REMELRE

properties - - - - 99,041 - 99,041
Fair value gains on investment RENEZ A AHIRGE

properties - - - - 10,686 - 10,686
Fair value losses on financial /A REFFABRHZ

assets at FVPL SREEZANEER (22) - - - (11,022) - (11,044)
Interest income FLEMA (@ s

(including revenue and REMEERA)

other operating income) 4,498 340,343 102,337 03 47931 353 495,525
Finance costs AR (274) 2 = = (422) (96,675) (97,371)
Commission expenses ERD (8,851) = = (609) - - (9,460)
Loss on redemption of B el — P L I 0

convertible bonds issued Bz MR

by a listed subsidiary BB = = = = (38,867) (38,867)
Write off of property and L GHEY T

equipment (15) - L = = (15)

14 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED & ##2RERA T



8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and
the United Kingdom (2019: Hong Kong and the United
Kingdom).

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

revenue from external customers by geographical market:

g R EE U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

DEHER &

i & & ¥

AL EFEMR T R (%
—JUAE - HERIEE) o

AR A G [ i I Tl 3 Ak B
Sh I 2 W a9 e A

Revenue by
geographical market

RitEM S 85 2 W

2020 2019

—ECTHF “E-NF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FERT T# T

Hong Kong ik 513,739 550,984
United Kingdom B 10,785 10,921
524,524 561,905

The following table is an analysis of the carrying amounts of
non-current assets by geographical area in which the assets

are located:

3R i T AE B Oy O U
Z R T {ELAY 23 AT

Carrying amounts of
non-current assets

FRBEEZREE
2020 2019
—ECRH —EF LA
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T# T
Hong Kong i 805,983 811,765
United Kingdom i 202,724 209,909
1,008,707 1,021,674

The non-current asset information above excludes financial

instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, there
were no customers contributing 10% or more of the

Group’s total revenue.

UEHRRBEEZERNAQTHEMT

FBREIREEFZEH

REBE_F _FFEL_F—-NLEFE=A
=t HIRFE > I EE S M A E
B Al AR 10%BK L B Z HRK
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n B B T 8 R B =T
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 9. Hib&EEWA
2020 2019
—E-BF —E =L
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Bank interest income SRATFE I A 2,695 648
Dividend income B A 2,038 2,122
Sundry income HoAb e A 1,470 1,639
6,203 4,409
10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 10. Hfth 22 R 518 5 88
2020 2019
—E-FF —E—JUE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
R 5 FERT TH#IT
Fair value changes on BEY N R(EEE)
investment properties 19 (86,558) 10,686
Net realised (losses) AT S 2 B
gains on error trades (fE 48) Ui o 15 48 (30) 36
Fair value losses on financial e s FelEFr A 2
assets at FVPL SRUEREZ N ERHE (b) (19,203) (11,044)
Realised (losses) gains on fEm L HETIEE
redemption / disposal of BB (s 48) I (b)
— financial assets at FVPL — s R H A 3
A E (a) (5,388) 2,498
— Mandatory FVOCI — WS FEFNA
HC Al 22 T U A (732) (234)
Exchange difference, net T 5, 2 5L 7 AH (3,762) (297)
Gain on disposal of property I EY & 3 PA €
and equipment 40 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o B B 2 W 2 Ui A 45 2,181 -
Loss on redemption of convertible I ] — ] b T A
bonds issued by a listed subsidiary BATZATHRRESR 2
5 18 34 - (38,867)
(113,452) (37,222)
Notes: B 5
(a) The amount represented the proceeds from early redemption () w%e FEARRAR A M R A REF AR

of financial assets at FVPL of HK$300,000,000 less relevant
costs and carrying value of the investments redeemed of
approximately HK$305,388,000 (2019: proceeds from sale
of financial assets at FVPL of approximately HK$68,715,000
less relevant costs and carrying value of the investments sold
of approximately HK$66,217,000).

Included above are losses from listed investments of
approximately HK$20,149,000 (2019: HK$14,293,000)
and losses from unlisted investments of approximately
HK$5,174,000 (2019: gains of approximately
HK$5,513,000).

(b)

i 2 4 RlVE 2 U7 15 3E 300,000,000
e T WA B A K £ ] 4% 2 BR T
{l49305,388,000% G ( & —JL4F : i
BN o lEst AR e 2 S RE E 2 P
5 2 TE £168,715,000% 7 I A BH i A<
KB G 2 BRI (H 4966,217,000%
JC) e

FOHEAERE EREZE
5 %120,149,000% 70 (=& — JL4F :
14,293,00035 70) KAk H Ik L& >
545,174,000 70 (—ZF—JLAF @ Uk
it £95,513,000%5 J6) ©

15 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 2 EMRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

11. STAFF COSTS 11. ETRAE
2020 2019
—EIEF | “FNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TR THs T
Staff costs including directors’ B TlA (R4 S 5) -
emoluments:
Salaries and other benefits S 4 B A AR A 23,627 22,489
Retirement benefit scheme AR R A Ak 3K
contributions 899 897
24,526 23,386
12. FINANCE COSTS 12, B E A A
2020 2019
—g=%F| —% LF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
(i THERT TH#EIT
Interest on bank borrowings RATIE B2 FLE 923 549
Interest on bank overdraft RATIE L 2 PR 16 -
Interest on clients’ accounts EFHEF 2 F 148 147
Interest on convertible bonds issued — — [H] |- 17 B J&§ 2 7] #5147
by a listed subsidiary ] ¥ s R 2 R B 34 31,178 96,675
32,265 97,371
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. Bt Al g A
This is stated after charging: AT FS S i
2020 2019
—EEF —EF-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TH#TT
Auditor’s remuneration % B R N 4 2,800 2,800
Direct operating expenses relating to Bl 2 AEFH & UL A 2
investment properties that BEYEMBZ
generated rental income HIEZE 522 191
Direct operating expenses relating to B3l 4 2 A= FH 4 Wt A 2
investment properties that did not WEWEAE 2
generate rental income HEZEH X 1,586 1,434
Write off of accounts receivable AL 15 B Wi R T 300 =
Write off of loans and advances il £ B 3K I BGR 205 =
Werite off of property and equipment it & ¥ 3 I 7% - 15
Share-based payment expenses DA Ay 3 A B 32 - 8,776
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

remuneration:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six

(2019: six) directors were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2020

4. EERTHRARKEEMN=

(@ EERITHARZNS

CATEER R (2T — LA 1N

Z)ERSHZMEWT

BE-ZE-ZEF=A=+—HLEE

Chief
Executive
Officer Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
EE HiEs BIFyTES
Mt. Cham
M. Hung Wai Ho, Mr.Kam  Mr.SunKa  Mr SiuHi Mr. Man
Hon Man Anthony  Leung Ming  Ziang, Henry ~ Lam, Alick Kong Yui Total
HEXAE  EEELE HRWAE BRBEALE BERLE  XUHgE L
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TiEn ThEn TiEn TiEn TEn
Fees ik - - - 116 116 116 348
Other emoluments; L
— Salaries and other benefits ~% 4 RALMHER ()
(note ) 241 386 419 - - - 1,046
- Contributions to retiement ~ — R AREER B[k
benefit schemes 10 21 18 - - - 49
~ Performance and discretionary — — B R EAL (B 3kii)
bonus (note ii) 25 40 43 - - - 108
- Commission -fs - - - - - - -
Total emoluments ElLES 276 447 480 116 116 116 1,551
152 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED & #HZ R ER A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION - continued

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

remuneration — continued

Year ended 31 March 2019

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

14. EERTHRARKEEM =

==

—fE
() EERITHAINE &

#HE-EF-NFE=H=+—HI

A
Chief
Executive
Officer Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
THas Y1783 BUFUES
Mr. Cham
M. Hung Wai Ho, Mr.Kam  Mr.SunKa  Mr SiuHi Mr. Man
Hon Man Anthony  Leung Ming ~ Ziang, Henry  Lam, Alick Kong Yui Total
EEXEE EEEAE HRMEE EREEE BEERE  XEHKs ag
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TiEn Tin TEn TiEn Tin TEn
Fees s - - - 108 108 108 324
Other emoluments: Hibm4 -
- Salaries and other benefits — — %4 R MR (i)
(note i) 179 354 402 - - - 935
- Contributions to recirement  —EIRAEAIFH BI{L3
benefit schemes 10 19 18 - - - 47
~ Performance and discretionary —F B B L AL (W ki)
bonus (note i) 20 4 50 - - - 113
- Commission K - - - - - - -
Total emoluments ams 209 416 470 108 108 108 1,419
Notes: O
(i) The balances shown above for executive directors, () AN BAT S (Rt 3 S e

(i)

namely Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Cham Wai Ho,
Anthony and Mr. Kam Leung Ming were mainly for
their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group.

Performance and discretionary bonus is determined
with regard to the Group’s performance, the
individual’s performance and comparable market

statistics.

(i)

R S SR R H S W e )
(R eh o S D e B IR/N
F B A 4R ) 2 2 I e 3t 2 Mk
W o

RH WG EALTS 2 A EY
I NSRBI LT LT 5 4
TR T R E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’

REMUNERATION - continued

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s remuneration —

continued

There was no arrangement under which a director or

the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive

any remuneration in the years ended 31 March 2020

and 2019. In addition, no emoluments were paid by

the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to

join, or upon joining the Group or as a compensation
for loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2020

and 2019.

(b)

Employees’ remuneration

The five highest paid individuals of the Group do not

include directors of the Company for both years.

The emoluments of the five (2019: five) highest paid

individuals for the years are set out as follows:

4. EERTHRARKEEMN=

— &

(a)

(b)

EERTHRAIME &

St 48 B 2 B A I AR AR E B R
MERE —F _BER FE
HEZH = A H kAR AT ]
P WA W R F R
B oFz—-NUHFE=H=+—HILF
JE > A 4L [ 4 1) AT o] 2 R ST AT
P i o AF 2 i 55 n B AR AR T 2 5
S BB HE & o SR £ Bk A 05

4 o

BEME
7 2 1 7 TR {1 JEE R A B R
AR A LA A LA #EE -

T (F—JUAF - T Fe e B
ZIPNS iR e B o Sy

2020 2019

—g=¥E| ~% AF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH5 F it

Salaries and other emoluments 3 e M H At i 4 4,596 4,309

Discretionary bonus M 1% fE AL 184 291
Contribution to retirement AR AR AR R S R

benefits schemes 90 72

4,870 4,672

The emoluments of the individuals are within the

following bands:

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

5 2 B < T LA R e

Number of individuals

EEEH
2020 2019
—EIRF| T AF
500,001 JC £ 1,000,000 JC 3 3
1,000,001#% 76 %1,500,000%% 7T 2

V. GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED %1 ER A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION - continued

(b) Employees’ remuneration — continued

There was no arrangement under which the five
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration for the years ended 31 March 2020
and 2019. In addition, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31
March 2020 and 2019.

15. TAXATION

The two-tiered profits tax rates regime have been
implemented from 1 April 2018, under which, the profit
tax rate for the first HK$2,000,000 assessable profits arising
from Hong Kong of qualifying entities will be taxed at
8.25%, and assessable profits arising from Hong Kong
above HK$2,000,000 will continue be taxed at the rate
of 16.5%. As only one of the subsidiaries in the Group is
eligible to elect the two-tiered profits tax rates, profits of
the remaining subsidiaries of the Group will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered

profits tax rates regime.

The tax provision in respect of operations in United
Kingdom is calculated at the rate of 20% on the subsidiary’s
estimated assessable profits for the year based on existing

legislation, interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

14. EERTHRARKEEM =

==

—fE

b) EEME-&
7 0 A7 e A AN ik )
BERESE - ECTER E N
EZA =+ HIREET 4 2
GHE o WA REFNEE-F
TR -E—NF=H=+—HI
A E S 0 ) A B v R AN S
5P 8 » AF S 48055 fin A B B 2
SEARRSE S > SR B A 4

15. BiIE

FI A5 Bl Bl 2R W AR 2L i % — VAR
H—HRET  Hit > S ESEMR
B s 22 2B 19 152,000,000 0 FE S B TiE
FHE L8259 H B R 48 Ak FILAS Bd > T4
A 2E A 192,000,000 70 A I B HE R
Tt 45 R A 45 LA 16.5% MO B R BBL -
A A A [H] A A — T A WD A A
FAS BB R W AR 2 EAE > AR
5 B JB8 2 ) 2 vk )19 A A L 16, 5% ) 31
— Bl R R

W F S F U
Sb o FR AR 7 VR B R
BB L 159

A B S 1 B BUIH S - IR AR
WA JE 2 ) 49 4 A I R i 4 L 209
B AR AR B AT ] R R
BlGEE
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BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

15. TAXATION - continued

=8 !

15. BB — &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020 2019
—BRIRE | —“EFNE
Note HK$’000 HK$000
Wi & FERT T T
Current tax BN HA B 18
Hong Kong 7 it
Hong Kong Profits Tax v A5 B 47,262 76,147
Over provision in prior years WA
R 5 A (1,522) (2)
45,740 76,145
United Kingdom Fa)
Overseas tax SN BLIE 1,715 1,769
Under provision in prior years WAL AEE Z
AL 2 1,029
1,717 2,798
47,457 78,943
Deferred tax EERH
Origination and reversal of 7 IR 22 BH 0 2 A I
temporary differences #E 35 95 133
Income tax expense T A% H B 52 47,552 79,076
Reconciliation of income tax expense BB 2HER
2020 2019
—g=%F | —T ¥
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT T
Profit before taxation AR 204,280 311,172
Income tax at applicable tax rate SR S AR i) 33,541 51,178
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AN AT S 2 B R
for tax purpose 24,359 34,716
Tax effect of income not taxable AN HE FR B IS 2 B 5
for tax purpose (11,381) (10,373)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised T RR B JE B 4R 2 RS R 2 3,959 2,977
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B DA AR oK i R B TH S 4R
tax losses (79) =
(Over) Under provision in prior years DUAEAE B (R BE A AA)
1A 2 (1,520) 1,027
Effect of different tax rates of the subsidiary i HAth 7] 75 4 [@ 5 78 2 [l J&
operating in other jurisdictions YNGIPANCIE e A 307 305
Others HoA (1,634) (754)
Income tax expense for the year A AF JE T 15 B B S 47,552 79,076

156 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED % 2B R A S



g R EE U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

17.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

DIVIDENDS 16. B2
2020 2019
—g-eE| —%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT ARCP
Final dividend for prior financial year, oA EMBUFEEZ
paid — HK1 cent (2019: HKI cent) R E — 8B
per share (ZF— U - 1) 96,627 96,627
Interim dividend for current financial year, B ff » A< B BUAF & 2
paid — HKO0.75 cent (2019: HK1 cent) Hr W A% S — B %0, 75 HE AL
per share (ZF— U - 1) 72,470 96,627
169,097 193,254

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
2020 of HKO0.4 cent (2019: HKI1 cent) per share,
amounting to approximately HK$38,651,000 (2019:
HK$96,627,000) has been proposed by the directors of the
Company and is subject to the approval by the owners of

the Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on

profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company

and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year as follows:

Earnings

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings
per share
Profit for the year attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company

17.

RAFEFERRAEE T =
H=+—HIE4FIREARNRES
0. 4¥ il (—F — JUAF - 1Al - 3k
w1 %7 538,651,000% 7€ (—F — JL4E ¢
96,627,000 JC) > I = 28 A HE J B R
BAEK G FHEARN AW AHEVEE -

BREF

AR AR A 2 )R T A ) B
PAY L 3T T HE T 5 A o 2
GIRIEA G Z G RAEMT -

EF
2020 2019
—ECEE —FE—JUE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FHET T T
FH R 51 A B 3 A 2
2 3 Fl

A T B RERR A N EAL

G| 118,295 195,080
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_TF=RA=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE - continued

Number of shares

17. BRBR - &
R E B

2020 2019
’000 ’000
TR T
Weighted average number of A wEHE R R A BR] 2
ordinary shares, for the purpose 58 i 0 R T 4 B
of basic earnings per share 9,662,706 9,662,706
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: Y27 4 {8 35 4 JIE (19 52 2%
Exercise of share options (note (a)) A7 o5 18 B HE (I 5 a)) - 6,471
Weighted average number of T w5 B v R
ordinary shares, for the purpose - B RS- 24 8
of diluted earnings per share 9,662,706 9,669,177
HK cents HK cents
AL Al
Earnings per share: g AL -
Basic FA 1.22 2.02
Dilutive (note (b)) W (B 5E b)) 1.22 2.02

Note:

(a) Diluted earnings per share was the same as the basic
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2020 as the
potential new ordinary shares to be issued on exercise of the
outstanding share options under the Company’s share option

scheme have an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per

share for the year.

(b) As the GNFG’s outstanding convertible bonds had an
anti-dilutive effect to the basic earnings per share calculation,
the computation of diluted earnings per share for both years
did not assume the exercise of certain convertible bonds since

their assumed exercise would result in increase in earnings per

share.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##1ZRER A A

B -

(a)

(b)

BE X RFZH = —HIEFE

2 I ) B A AR L R
[ o J AR 2 A A4S 2 ) B T RE 51 ) O
R W AR AT (1 B TR A AT i I g
AT 1) V8 A 0 5 200 15 B A A B 1Y 4 M R
AR R A A v e

FHT P &5 5 <l 94 R B2 T 45 PR A o )
T B A B A A R R
IR UL TE 5 R AR A A R 4 v
FE > b AR S T AT 40 B = AT
> PR 2 M s HLAT o 2 B0 B 22 A
Hm
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT / PREPAID

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

18. MERRE AN HEEKEU

LEASE PAYMENTS AND PROPERTY AND EMERZE
EQUIPMENT
Prepaid lease
payments Property and equipment
RfEENE ESET
Right-of-use
assets - Motor
Leaschold Leasehold Leasehold vehicles Office Furniture
land land Buildings  improvements andyacht  equipment  and fixtures Total
ERRRE B
gt -HELH BF NEEE  REREBE  BAERE  GAREE HI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk Tk Tk T T R R Tk
Costor Valuation ~~ MAKE B
Acl April 2018 REF-NEWA—H 103,780 - 35,844 1,100 2858 5801 106 175,159
Additions hE - - - 307 - 560 46 913
Adjustment on EAGE
revaluation - - 2140 - - - - 2140
Wite off it - - - - (536) (2,984) - (3,520)
Disposal i} - - - - (129) (250) - (79)
AIMach 209 RZF-E
=HZ1-H 103,780 - 37,984 1,407 27,867 3127 152 174317
Comprising: i
At cost IS 103,780 - - 1,407 27,867 3,127 152 136,333
At valuation i - - 37,984 - - - - 37,984
AIMach 2019 RZF-F
=HZt-H 103,780 - 37,984 1,407 27,867 3,127 152 174317
Acl April 2019 MR- NERA-H 103,780 - 37,984 1,407 27,867 3,127 152 174317
mpact on nitial BB
application of R Pl
HKERS 16 % (103,780) 103,780 - - - - - -
Additions WE - - - 08 607 150 - 825
Adjustment on ELE L
revaluation - - (230) - - - -
Disposal ik - - - - (500) - -
At3IMarch200  H-F-BF
ZB=1-8 = 103,780 37,754 1,475 27,974 3,77 152 174,412
Comprising; @i
At cost TS - 103,780 = 1475 27,974 377 152 136,658
Atvaluation g - - 37,754 = s s - 37754
At3IMarch200  H-F-BF
ZB=1-R - 103,780 37,754 1,475 27,974 3,77 152 174,412
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT / PREPAID
LEASE PAYMENTS AND PROPERTY AND

EQUIPMENT - continued

18. MERRE AN HEEREU
KMERRE-&

Prepaid lease
payments Property and equipment
BfEERE ESET
Right-of-use
assets - Motor
Leasehold Leasehold Leasehold vehicles Office Furniture
land land Buildings  improvements andyacht  equipment  and fixtures Total
EREEE g
gty -HELH BT NEEE  REREBE  WAERE  GAREE &t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Tk Tk T T R R Tk Tk
Accumulated 2B/ NE
amortisation/
depreciation
Al April 2018 RoE-NEMA—H 32,050 - - 479 21,018 4527 30 58,704
Charges it 2450 - 630 385 3475 715 3 7,687
Eliminated on revaluation & ff B¢ 4 84 - - (630) - - - - (630)
Wite off fiigh - - - - (536) (2,969) - (3,509)
Disposal HE - - - - (96) (250) - (346)
A3 Mach 2019 BEF-NE
ZAEt-H 34,500 - - 864 24461 2003 62 61,910
Impact on nitial BB
applicarion of HKFRS M8 1561635 7
16 % (34,500) 34500 - - - - - -
Charges gl - 261 1,344 7 303 033 7 7,959
Eliminated on revaluacion & ff B4 4 - - (1,344) - - - - (1,344)
Disposal HE - - - - (500) - - (500)
At3IMarch 2020 H-EZFE
ZB=1-8 - 36,951 - 1,136 27,193 2,656 89 08,025
Net carrying values BEE
A3 IMarch 2020 WZEZFE
Zh=t-A - 66,829 37,754 33 781 621 63 106,387
A3 Mach 2019 BEF-0E
=HZ1-H 69,280 - 37,984 543 3,400 1,104 9 112,407

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019, the

prepaid lease payments are presented under property and

equipment — right-of-use assets (note 2).

§

A FE—JUE A — H R
e it R I BB 1698 4R - FH AT AR B EH R
W3 B it — (LA HEE A TH R 2 51 (ffF

iE2) o



18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT / PREPAID

LEASE PAYMENTS AND PROPERTY AND
EQUIPMENT - continued

The property interests in leasehold land and the buildings
thereon (including the whole or part of undivided share
in the underlying land) in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$104,583,000 (2019: HK$107,264,000) are held by
the Group as the registered owner. Those property interests
were acquired from the previous registered owners by
making lump sum payments at the upfront. Except for
the variable amounts to be charged by the government
subsequently that are reviewed regularly with reference
to the rateable values, for example, there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land lease. At
the end of the reporting period, the remaining lease term is

about 27 years.

The buildings of the Group were valued at 31 March 2020
and 2019 by Messrs. RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”) on
market value basis. RHL is not connected with the Group,
and has appropriate qualifications and recent experience in

the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the buildings, the highest and

best use of buildings is the current use.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s buildings, the
management of the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the management of the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
Group’s buildings. At the end of each reporting period, the
management of the Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurement. The management of the Group would first
consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the management of
the Group would adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be

reported to the directors of the Company.

g R EE U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

18. MERRE A HEEKEU

KMERRE-&

#1104,583,000% o7& (= %F — JL4F -
107,264,000 7)1 75 s FHL & + 1 f2
EEEER Y ERE S (5 A B b
A HB B 4 A ] o E A FR) R A 4R
ERBEREERA - ZEWEMRRT
AR A — UM A ko 2 w2
W o R BUR H A% € 2 I8 R RR 25 fif L
1B € HA 4G ST BT W B V7 B & &4 > B
o MR B K o 3 M A A
oo MHEWBIR - BTSN A
274F o

AL 2T TG K AT RYE R R A
PR (TR FIAT ) i —F —F4E R
CE-NFE=ZHA = R E R
HEAT A B o Kk F 47 J B A 42 [0 SIf 4 B
s B A B M K R AT B
B 3 2 AGERESR -

AR T N A > BT s
Fedwe A A& 2 R AR

7 A ] ) A L R T 2 A T 5 T
R AR AR BB THLR
{H o %SG AN B > AL
L B = 5 A% T B AR AT
AR 46 B O AT o 0 0 R R
A A T 1) A L B AR I AR
R e E > I T SL SR E A 1Y T
77 R R 3IE N R ER R A A
S [ 1 L T R R 2
A o B A e B G B AT
(9 2> BB A o 050 2 T A\ AS 8y
7S 1 R & PR LA AR SR 3 R
WA AT HEEN S RE
RS IR o 5 Y O i R o BE A
ZARSE: &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_TF=RA=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT / PREPAID
LEASE PAYMENTS AND PROPERTY AND
EQUIPMENT - continued

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
buildings is the unit sale rate ranging from approximately
HK$6,000 per square foot to HK$30,000 per square foot
(2019: HK$6,000 per square foot to HK$32,000 per
square foot), taking into account age, location and other
individual factors such as size and levels of building. A
decrease in the unit sale rate would result in decrease in fair
value measurement of the buildings by the same percentage

decrease and vice versa.

Buildings are classified as Level 3 under fair value hierarchy
at 31 March 2020 and 2019. There were no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019.

If the buildings had not been revalued, they would
have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses of approximately

HK$16,363,000 (2019: HK$16,963,000).

The Group had pledged certain leasehold land and
buildings to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
during the year. Details of the pledges are set out in note 42

to the consolidated financial statements.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&F 2R ERA A

18. MERRE AN HEEREU

KMERRE-&

R BT R ) v — JH T Sk

S AR AL B B E (N TR
75%6,000#%75%&%7?%30,000%77:
TR IUFE BT IR6,00085 0T F B
77 32,0009 70) ) > E P EF R
B~ b 60 A A8 A1 R 3R (0 B K/
ARG ) o BALEEAE T R B S S
Z N S AE F AR [ A A HOE
e > RZIRER ©

W ZEZEFR E—IE=ZA
=t —H > EFESB A R(EREWE
W3 o ERE EF FFE R F
A= — IR F R I A
S A3 o

i 5 B N AE S AN > RIS R R
SR A R T I BRI E S 1R
Ph%916,363,000% 76 (& — JL4F ¢
16,963,000 70) F£ 45 & W &5 iR -

A B AR O A T R S A
FHCAT A S A G B AR SR T Fﬁ‘%ﬁ
Z AL o A B 2 SRR S A
W85 3 F 542 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE

Year ended 31 March 2020

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REW %
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B FET ARCP
Fair Value DNRE
At the beginning of the reporting period A R A5 41400 881,896 788,073
Addition — Capital expenditure WHE—-EARMT 20,752 59,057
Addition — Acquisition of subsidiaries TS E — W E 2 44 70,000 39,984
Net change in fair value recognised in A 18 fii BERR 2 s U (E
profit or loss 5 ) 5 AR (86,558) 10,686
Exchange differences [ 50, 25 %H (12,016) (15,904)
At the end of the reporting period T A B R 874,074 881,896
2020 2019
—ECEF —E—JUE
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt 5 FET THs T
Located in: (AN
Hong Kong T (a) 671,350 671,987
The United Kingdom b (b) 202,724 209,909
874,074 881,896
2020 2019
—EEF ZE—JUE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Unrealised (loss) gain on investment A A 55 K 1R 2
properties included in other gain and WEMERED
losses (5 18) W zs (86,558) 10,686
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_TFE=FA=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

=8 !

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued
Leasing arrangement — as lessee

(a) Investment properties located in Hong Kong

At the end of the reporting period, the investment
properties of approximately HK$671,350,000 (2019:
HK$671,987,000) are held under head leases with the
remaining lease term of 27 to 841 years (2019: 28 to
842 years).

The property interests in investment properties thereon
(including the whole or part of undivided share in
the underlying land) in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$671,350,000 (2019: HK$671,987,000) are held
by the Group as the registered owner. Those property
interests were acquired from the previous registered
owners by making lump sum payments at the upfront.
Except for the variable amounts to be charged by the
government subsequently that are reviewed regularly with
reference to the rateable values, for example, there are
no ongoing payments to be made under the terms of the

land lease.

Investment properties located in Hong Kong with
fair value of approximately HK$611,750,000 (2019:
HK$615,087,000) at 31 March 2020 were valued by
RHL. RHL has appropriate qualification and recent
experience in the valuation of similar properties in
the relevant location. The valuation was arrived at by
adopting the direct comparison method based on price
information of comparable properties and adjusted
to reflect the condition and locations of the subject

properties.
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19. REYE - &
BEZH - EREEA
(@0) WREBZREWE

K > 49671,350,000% JC
(—FE—JUE : 671,987,000% 50) 2
WG ERRIFARAFATS T
FHWIA 27 E8414F (=& — JUA4E
285 8424F) o

#1671,350,000%5 7T (& — JLAF
671,987,000% 70) [0 FH B &Y %
(99 SE0E 2 (B35 A B b 1y 2 350
SRS AN ] 43 F AR H AL R
BT TR - S EMET)
DA — vMEA 30 =X ) i B e 2
T o BREUM HAR & 2 IR ERR =
P 2 BAAR T T WSO A V7 1 4
AN it > PR A B > I
HEFRIE AT K

AT HEYENR T _F
EZA=ZtT—HZAREA R
611,750,000 JC (& — JL4F ¢
615,087,0005 JC) - J4 B AR AT Ak
o AKFIAT B A8 2 B Kt
A BH BB 3E 2 Ah (AR B o
A BN (E TIARSE AT L 3 2 fE A%
R T R A% B 3 Pl B4
H DL W) S 2 SR D



“r A TR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

19. REYME &
BERHF-FRREA-E
(@ BREBZREWH-A

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued
Leasing arrangement — as lessee — continued

(a) Investment properties located in Hong Kong —

continued

The valuation of other investment properties situated
in Hong Kong with fair value of approximately
HK$59,600,000 (2019: HK$56,900,000) was
performed by the directors of the Company with
reference to recent market prices of similar properties
at similar locations at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing
the investment properties located in Hong Kong is the
unit sale rate of approximately HK$4,300 per square
foot (2019: HK$4,700 per square foot) for industrial
buildings, ranging from HK$19,000 to HK$28,000
per square foot (2019: ranging from HK$17,000 to
HK$27,000 per square foot) for residential buildings
and ranging from HK$10,000 to HK$47,000 per
square foot (2019: ranging from HK$11,000 to
HK$51,000 per square foot) for commercial building,
taking into account age, location and other individual
factors such as size and levels of building. An increase /
decrease in the unit sale rate would result in an
increase / decrease in fair value measurement of an

investment property and vice versa.

(b) Investment properties located in the United Kingdom

Investment properties in the United Kingdom with
fair value of approximately HK$202,724,000 (2019:
HK$209,909,000) at 31 March 2020, were valued
by Savills (UK) Limited (“Savills”). Savills is not
connected with the Group, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
commercial units were valued by an income approach

of valuation with reference to market rental value.

(b)

W E FE FER E—JUE
ZHZ P HIEMRAEE > ARAF
B SHM A Y
2T G EA - AR E
HAhH &Y AT E - Al
#1£459,600,000% 70 ( —ZF — JUAF -
56,900,000 70) °

P& A (A T W Ko —TE 2 22
MBI AR R THERE
A7 1 B 8 49 57 77 R 4,300 G (—
F—IUF - W7 74,7008 70) -
T KE 2 AL EEN 5T
1 19,000% 7T £28,000% 7T (&
— U« A P87 77 R17,0008 o
F27,000%5 70) M K E 2 B
B8 BT 49 55F 77 10,0005 7T
% 5175 W47,0008 0T (—F— L
AT AT IR 11,0009 0T £ 5
V7 51,0008 0) > EF
LGS ~ S R0 L At AR B R R (B
SR /NG ) o B84 B EF
VAN 3% 5 Ci'e - UE /NI IE L
'/ LTSRS RZIRKR -

WREEZREYF
Pl 2 g W ¥R —F F
EZHA=Z+—HZARMBEHE
202,724,000%5 7 (ZF — JL4F -
209,909,000 J6) > J7 i Savills
(UK) Limited ([ 55— A& F-# 487 )
il 7t o B — KT B A 7 B AR £ H)
3 4 B 6 B A 2 B &
AT 3 A B B SR SE 2 A (E
BE - AHMERN RS ET
B FH 48 DA B 15 HEAT A (H
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BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

Leasing arrangement — as lessee — continued

(b) Investment properties located in the United Kingdom

— continued

The key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
investment properties located in the United Kingdom
are the market rent at a weighted average of £55.56
(equivalent to approximately HK$536) per square
foot (2019: £54.43 (equivalent to approximately
HKS$556) per square foot) and equivalent yield at
4.12% per annum (2019: 4.18% per annum). An
increase / decrease in the market rent and in turn an
increase / decrease in the equivalent yield would result
in an increase / decrease in fair value of an investment

property and vice versa.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties located in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom,
the management of the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the management of the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s
investment properties where appropriate. At the end of
each reporting period, the management of the Group works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for Level 3 fair value measurement. The management of the
Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where
inputs can be derived from observable quoted prices in
the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available,
the management of the Group will adopt valuation
techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a
material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes
of the fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the

Company.

Investment properties located in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom are classified as Level 3 under fair value
hierarchy at 31 March 2020 and 2019. There were no
transfers into or out of Level 3 during years ended 31
March 2020 and 2019. No investment properties were
pledged at 31 March 2020 and 2019.
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(b) WREEZREYH &
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

Leasing arrangement — as lessor

All of the Group’s investment properties located in Hong
Kong and the United Kingdom interests held under leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and

accounted for as investment properties.

Certain investment properties are leased to independent
third parties for a term of 2 to 10 years (2019: 2 to 10
years), which had an initial non-cancellable lease term of
1 to 3 years (2019: 1 to 3 years). Some leases provide the
lessees with options to renew the leases upon expiry at
new terms. The tenant also bears the management fees and
amounts charged by the government such as the rates levied

on the Group.

The details of the lease income from operating leases are set

out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

The investment properties are subject to residual value
risk. The lease contracts, as a result, include a provision on
residual value guarantee based on which the Group has the
right to charge the tenant for any damage to the investment
properties at the end of the lease. Besides, the Group has
purchased insurance to protect certain investment properties
against any loss that may arise from accidents or physical

damages of the properties.

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments

to be received from the leasing of investment properties.

At 31 March 2020

g R EE U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

19. REVME-&

HEZHE-FERHBA

A £ [ DU B Fr A DA BORH 8 R ok
AR (R Y BT AL T v e g Y A
HY) s > WA REsEAG R
53 S 5 BB W) 3 S AT AR

HTHREWERBETE LS =
L B2%104F (ZF — JLAF : 2810
AE) > HAD UG S AT SN FHL W A1 & 34
(ZF—JLF  1834F) - HoHEs
E ARCFEL N W] 388 45 7E L 4 21 1 4% 58 1
FH A8 AH o AR AN IR 2R 45 45 1 2 R IE
JiF Wi B R TR > G T A 4 ) A i Y 2
i

a8 FHL 1 P U FE I R R S B
B R M7 -

B W €K 32 R B A8 (R B - DRI 0k
MU & %  — JE R B A8 (90 IR 1
3C o PRIL > A SR A RE R FH B A5 R IR
HBCE Y AR M F R -
BEAh A4 0 PR B IR B AT A
AT RE R B A B S 2 R R T A A
THREY S EK -

PATR 2 5 A8 AR B4 W S R 2 R i
B B A 30 B8 20 #r

R-ZE-_ZEHF=H=+—H

HK$°000

FET

Year 1 5 — 4R 12,291
Year 2 oA 11,548
Year 3 5 =4 10,165
Year 4 2 P 4F 9,439
Year 5 5L AF 9,628
After year 5 o ILAEAR 22,354
75,425
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_TF=RA=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 19. REYX &

Leasing arrangement — as lessor — continued

HEZHE-FREHBA-&

At 31 March 2019, the Group had contracted with tenants RoE—NE=ZA=+—H > UTH

for the following future minimum lease payments:

At 31 March 2019

ZIK%@?MHJEFJ? R A KT R A B
B A B R

BEFE-E=HA=1+—H

HK$°000
T T
Within one year —F R 9.525
In the second to fifth years inclusive B _EREHEN (BT EEWSE) 38,498
Over five years ﬁﬁiU\L 33,585
81,608
20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20 BMILEE
Trading
rights in
Hong Kong Club
exchanges  memberships Total
ERRGF
ZRAE efes a5t
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T oo T o0
Cost AR
At 1 April 2018 A ZF—/\FEMA—H 2,172 6,709 8,881
Addition NE - 3 3
At 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 AR -NE=ZA=Z+—H
and 31 March 2020 “E—JUFEMNA—H K
—E-FF=ZA=+—H 2,172 6,712 8,884
Impairment WIE
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, AZF - NFNH—H
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 —ZF—JUSE=H=+—H "
—E— jLE WH—H X
—E-EH5=H=+-—H 71 400 471
Carrying value fREE
At 31 March 2020 R-ZZE-ZEF=A=+—H 2,101 6,312 8,413
At 31 March 2019 AR NE=HA =+ —H 2,101 6,312 8,413

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##1ZRER A A



20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - continued

The management of the Group determined that certain
trading rights amounting to approximately HK$500,000
(2019: HK$500,000) were no longer utilised to generate
profits to the Group. For the purpose of impairment
testing on these trading rights, the recoverable amount has
been determined based on secondary market prices and
no impairment was made at 31 March 2020 and 2019.
The recoverable amounts of other trading rights with
carrying value of approximately HK$1,601,000 (2019:
HK$1,601,000) held by the Group have been determined
with reference to the recoverable amounts based on a
value-in-use calculation. Details of the impairment test
on other trading rights are set out in note 22 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Intangible assets amounting to approximately HK$6,312,000
(2019: HK$6,312,000) represent club memberships. For
the purpose of impairment testing on club memberships,
the recoverable amount has been determined based on the
second-hand market price less cost of disposal. No impairment
loss was recognised in years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019 with reference to the recoverable amount of the club

memberships.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trading

rights and club memberships have indefinite useful lives.

g R EE U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

20 B EE—&

A LE B 2 R B £1500,0004 I
(=& —JLHF 1 500,000% J0) Z X 5
METEASfie A DA 2 A 4R & AR i P o 7E
3 1 55 28 ) WE HE AT U A B IR LT
Wi ] 4 B AR PR T T 5 I
JE o MR DRFER E—NFZA
= — B E o AR R R
{8 % #11,601,000% 76 (—%F — JL4F :
1,601,000% 70) 2 HAth =2 5 HE A AT i =]
S C2F b e g
(B R B K T B E o LA 32 B E 2 W
B A 0 5 5 A B 5 3R I 22

Wik -

5 496,312,000 76 (= F — JLAF -
6,312,000% J0) 2 &Y & & 5 & r &
oM e g WEmmE > K
AU [ A G AR T T A AR
ERAMEE - 25 G aiz ik
bl %% > WHE T F BER X
— V= H = — H kAR I R
W AE 1

RN FIEBEGERY > 5 o W g T R
HL A 48 R ok 44 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

21. GOODWILL 21. B8
Broking
HK$’000
T
Cost D%
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, woF - NFENHA—H -
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 “E-NAFE=ZA= R
“EJFENHA—H K
—E-EF=A=+—H 15,441
Impairment IE
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, R NEMA—H
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 “E-NEFE=ZA=ZF—H
TEJUEIMA —H &
—E-EF=H=+—H -
Carrying values REE
At 31 March 2020 R-B-EF=H=+—H 15,441
At 31 March 2019 R_F—-NFE=A=+—H 15,441
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill £ B TR A 2 F RS R AR S TS
are disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial M E 228 7 o
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

AND OTHER TRADING RIGHTS

Certain trading rights with indefinite useful lives and
goodwill set out in notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements have been allocated to the broking
CGU (see note 8 to the consolidated financial statements
for details of segment information). The carrying amounts
of goodwill, net of accumulated impairment losses and

certain trading rights, net of accumulated impairment

HE-_T-_TF=-A=+—HLFE
Yearended 31 March 2020

22. BEREMRZEZRERR

O &7 G B IR M s 20 B21 2 A T
4 L 7 o ) A 0 52 5 WE D 7 40 TR
B2 B BLE A (B A
ﬂz‘iha s w2 B ARG M R B

o oyt FFZ A A A B B uZP*ﬁﬁ% ?D
K%f%nfmﬁféﬁa Fe#5 T 22 e =%
CERERCE-NFEZH=ZF—HM

losses, at 31 March 2020 and 2019 allocated to the broking HRE (R
CGU are as follows:
Broking
HK$000
RSP
(a) Goodwill (a) A2
Carrying value at 1 April 2018, E— ) AEMH—H -
31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and “E-NWE=A=+—H -
31 March 2020 :ﬁ€~ﬂ$lﬂlﬂ~ﬁ)§i
—E-EF=A=+—H 15,441
(b) Trading rights b)) XS
Carrying value at 1 April 2018, ANoF— )NENNH—H -
31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and “E-RFE=A=+—H"
31 March 2020 :ﬁ’?—niﬂlﬁ—ﬁﬁ
—E-TF=H=1+—H 1,601

The recoverable amounts of the broking CGU containing
goodwill and certain trading rights have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period and at a discount
rate of 12% (2019: 12%) and at zero (2019: zero) growth
rate. A key assumption for the value-in-use calculation is
the zero growth rate, which is determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the assumptions would not cause
the aggregate recoverable amount of the broking CGU to
fall below the aggregate carrying amount of the broking
CGU and no impairment was made at 31 March 2020 and
2019.

AEHMBRE TR RALAI B
A2z AT ] 4 86 AR AE B T 5
VLT 5E o fZnt A AR R4 B R
2 AR BB A129% (—F— JUAF
12%) Z BB R B FE (ZF — LA -
F) ZWEFETH SR EEN o EHE
ZHWRESTEMEEFE L TER
%ﬁ o B R RTIMB UL Z KRB KLE

& 3 T 3 B i 2 ) B i E o B
Jﬁi‘ﬁﬁ AL R Z AT & BT RE 2
AN HBUKR LA BB 2 &R
WA T < R SR B AR A EJIE i 2 G Rt iR
TR - TR F R R F U
= A =+— B I S e -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

23.

24.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets mainly represent statutory and other deposits
with various exchanges and clearing houses and are

non-interest bearing.

23. HWEE

Hofth & 2 EBACKRN T AR5 B )
BRI 235 E I H A B o A B AR
%I§+a%\ °©

LOANS AND ADVANCES 24, ER R BN
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E—JUE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Fixed-rate loan receivables FE ) 3R I B K 700,057 1,115,336
Less: Loss allowances W e T A (10,844) (29,136)
689,213 1,086,200
Secured EEISL 248,241 229,281
Unsecured 4 A1 11 440,972 856,919
689,213 1,086,200
Analysed as: T
Current i Bl 656,645 1,038,647
Non-current JE i Hl 32,568 47,553
689,213 1,086,200

At 31 March 2020, loans and advances with carrying
amount of approximately HK$208,241,000 are secured
by first mortgage of properties in Hong Kong with an
aggregate fair value of approximately HK$475,280,000;
carrying amount of approximately HK$40,000,000 are
secured by pledged securities with an aggregate fair value of
approximately HK$411,992,000

At 31 March 2019, loans and advances with carrying
amount of approximately HK$223,084,000 are secured
by first mortgage of properties in Hong Kong with an
aggregate fair value of approximately HK$464,029,000;
carrying amount of approximately HK$6,197,000 are
secured by second mortgages of properties in Hong
Kong with an aggregate fair value of approximately
HK$34,750,000.

2 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED %1 ER A 7

§

AR COBEZA =Y —H S IREE

£ #1208,241,000% 7T 2 B 3 K K B
8N FeAE £ 9475,280,000 TG 2 F s
W32 5 —Fe i VE B 440 5 BRTE (H 7
#140,000,000%% 7 2 B 3K B BH il A
FAE B #1411,992,000% 7T 2 T LT 75
FHAE B I -

AT NE=ZA=+—H  EmEHE

%4 #1223,084,000% 70 2 B 3K K B
N FAE B £9464,029,0008% 7T 2 7
W2 5B —Fe i VE B 440 5 BRTE (H 7
#16,197,000% 7C 2 B 3K I G i A A
FUAE £ £934,750,0009 70 2 F W 2
B AR E R R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. LOANS AND ADVANCES - continued
The fixed rate loan receivables carry interest ranging
from 6% to 24% (2019: ranging from 8% to 24%) per
annum. The net outstanding balances are repayable on the

respective maturity dates from 2020 to 2023.
Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and

loss allowance for ECL of loans and advances is set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

24, ERRBH &
[ 5 il 53¢ HE e B 34 41 T 6 F24 )
(ZR—JULE : frP8JE %24 /H) 2 4
Fal B o RERFERAR F %
3 T SRR A AR ) AR -

A B A% 5 1 T 3 2 A B LB DA e B K
Je Gz MR Sk 1R 2 e R 2
EORE > O &R S RS R B REG

25. FE U BR 18

2020 2019
—BEHE —ENAF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 51 THET T 7T
Accounts receivable arising from the e g S R AR
business of dealing in securities: 2 MEWT IR IA -
— Cash clients —HexrF (a) 8,240 8,879
— Margin clients: —REEEF (b)
— Directors and their close family — R N
members 2 RN E 313,578 167,054
— Other margin clients — HAbfRE ST 3,378,716 3,565,509
- HKSCC — A 369 -
Accounts receivable from futures clearing B HE G M
house arising from the business of FE AR PR B B AR S B
dealing in futures contracts Z M e A IR 12,282 3,390
3,713,185 3,744,832
Less: Loss allowances B g 1R A (148,318) (37,411)
3,564,867 3,707,421

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
cash clients and securities clearing house are two days
after trade date while for accounts receivable from futures
clearing house are one day after trade date. All the accounts
receivable (net of loss allowance) are expected to be

recovered within one year.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and
loss allowance for ECL of accounts receivable is set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEWCE 4 % F Rl 77 45 B BT 2 BRIA Y
EHHEER RS AW E T
A B 4 8 P 2 IR TELAN IE W 4 5 30 2 52
Sy HAE—H o PrA BEWCRIA ($1BR 18
) IR — 4 Al e

A B A 42 1 T 3 2 £ TR gt A R HE Wi
MRIA 2 TR S 1R 2 s 1B il 2 &
BE > O 5 e S R R B a6 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Notes:

(a)

Included in the accounts receivable from cash clients
are debtors with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$546,000 (2019: HK$154,000) which are past due at the
end of the reporting period but which the directors of the
Company consider not to be impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and a substantial portion

of the carrying amount is subsequently settled.

In respect of accounts receivable from cash clients which are

past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period,

25. B BRIE — &

(a)

Ba%F 2 YR b - BLHE A o
HR T 1 T HR T (2% #9546,000%5 7T
(= —JLAF 1 154,000 0) 2 MEI 3K
TE > M AR 2 W) 3 58 5 A B RO 4
WA - B2 A B RO 2 {5 R R A
K5 8 1 K 4 AR T E © 7 H AR T

& -

3 ORI (2
W B 4B % 5 BRI & AH B R 0 AT

the ageing analysis (from settlement date) is as follows: (Hh #55 FBRERH WF -
2020 2019
—EZEF ST AR
HK$°000 HKS$’000
TR T o
0-30 days 0% 30K 438 141
31- 60 days 31260K 1 1
Over 60 days 60K 107 12
546 154
The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying AT SR > IR T 5 497,694,000 15

amount of approximately HK$7,694,000 (2019:
HK$8,725,000) are neither past due nor impaired at the end
of the reporting period and the directors of the Company are

of the opinion that the amounts are recoverable.

4 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&F 2R ERA A

K

IC (& — JLAE © 8,725,000% 7T) 2 JE
W B 4 T 2 R IE A S0 48 3 3 R 4 i
{8 > AN E SR A B A Bl L
W m e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Notes: — continued

(b)

Accounts receivable from margin clients are secured by
clients’ pledged securities with fair value of approximately
HK$11,060,046,000 (2019: HK$13,791,493,000).
Significant portion of the pledged securities are listed equity
securities in Hong Kong. The loans are repayable on demand
subsequent to settlement date and carry interest typically at a
range from 7.236% to 9.252% per annum (2019: range from
7.236% to 9.252% per annum) at 31 March 2020. Securities
are assigned with specific margin ratios for calculating their
margin values. Additional funds or collateral are required if
the outstanding amount exceeds the eligible margin value
of securities deposited. The collateral held can be pledged
and can be sold at the Group’s discretion to settle any

outstanding amount owed by margin clients.

Included in accounts receivable from margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities are amounts due
from directors and their close family members. The details

are as follows:

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

25. B BRIE — &

BfaE - — A

(b)

JEW AR E &R FIRAYUEF 24K
R FAEHT - GRS H 2 A REL
£411,060,046,000% 76 (& — JL4F -
13,791,493,000%5 7C) ° & s L T e A&
R A MG B S P ) E A o
CECEEZAZT—H > FRERK
TE &5 H AR ZE S iR 3 I
P AR Ay F-7.236)H 529,252 1 (&
— JUAF AR R E A T7.236)H $9.252
JE) FHE o WA TR 2 RS
R UG H AR S EE - R EE
HEHHBE A BRI A GRS
SEME > Mg REFREFEIES
AR S o BT R 2 HCH 5 AT DA T
> T A 4 [ AT I 16 4% 2 45 LSS T
PR3 4 % P RS 2 AT ] o (8 38 3R o

255 2 AR R
BRTFL A - 4% 1 2 3 R A
S FERAE

Maximum amount Market value of
Balance outstanding pledged securities
ki BEARELE EfE% 2 HE
Duringthe  During the
At At At yearended  yearended At At
1 April 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
Name 2018 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
Bz S
e
RoF-E ROZ-UE R-B-%F At ZASt-B RCEUE RoBoEE
% MA-R =A=t-H ZR=t-A 234 LEE =A=1-H ZA=t+-R
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
Tik T TER Tik TR T THR
Mr. Hung Hon Man, WEUEE (R AES)
director of the Company, HEERHRREUR
his close family members —~MEHER
and a controlling entity 22,469 167,018 313,555 227,807 316559 185,393 1414158
Mr. Kam Leung Ming, HRBEE (AAAES)
director of the Company, LEBRENE R
his close family members —MEHEE
and a controlling entity 044 36 3 1,028 40 3 -

The above balances are repayable on demand and bear
interest at commercial rates which are similar to the rates

offered to other margin clients.

A 2 PO B ol B
538 4 2 5 MR 4 2 A 200 3
UETI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_TF=RA=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 26. BERE
2020 2019
—g=®x| ~% A%
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
R 7 FET THs T
Mandatorily measured at FVPL: BE LR D RERA
Ris > HRAE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong s b AR I 107,465 126,882
Unlisted convertible notes FE T T e B R (a) 19,785 19,511
Unlisted debt securities I b T AR R (b) 85,740 305,388
Unlisted investment funds JF EHiER4E (e) 40,225 40,225
253,215 492,006
Mandatory FVOCI: BEEARETA
Hth 2wk :
Debt securities ¥ TiEs (c)
- Quoted in Hong Kong — RAEFE LW 153,620 173,647
— Quoted overseas — A BT 95,207 72,495
— Unlisted overseas — NEEANIE BT 6,203 6,288
255,030 252,430
Designated FVOCI: EERAAETA
Htt 2wk
Equity securities J A 7
— Unlisted shares — JE BT A (d) - 70,672
508,245 815,108
Analysed as: 2
Current i B 247,740 232,684
Non-current FE ) 260,505 582,424
508,245 815,108
Notes: Rt 5

(a) The Group held unlisted convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$19,500,000 at 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$19,500,000) which were issued by Hong Kong listed
companies, bear fixed interest of 12% (2019: 8%) per
annum and will be due in May 2020 (2019: due in June
2019) (subject to early redemption). The fair value of the

unlisted convertible notes amounted to approximately
HK$19,785,000 at 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$19,511,000).

(a)

AEEPEA B FB LA ABETM
MOFFRE=ZA=Z+—H2ZA%E
HH 519,500,000 J6 (& — JLAF ¢
19,500,000% J6) 2 JE - T n] 2 i 22
P& o A B T 4 0 2 e i A AR R R 12
JH (T F—JU4E - gJH) FHE » i =
TR A B (U R
F—JU4EN A BI) (A THERTEEE) o
I LT R R S R AR = A
=1 —HZ 2 e {H 5 4919,785,000%
JE (= F—JUAF 1 19,511,0004 J0) ©

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED &AM A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES -
continued

Notes — continued:

(a) — continued

The Group is entitled to convert the whole or any part(s)
of the principal amount into ordinary shares of relevant
issuers at a price determined with reference to the terms and

conditions of the unlisted convertible notes.

The fair values of the unlisted convertible notes at 31 March
2020 and 2019 were estimated by RHL, an independent firm

of professional valuers not connected with the Group.

At 31 March 2020, the Group held one (2019: one)
redeemable bond with principal amount of HK$85,800,000
(2019: HK$300,000,000) which was issued by a listed
company and bears fixed interest of 10% per annum (2019:
8% to 10% per annum). The redeemable bond was issued
on 3 February 2020 and will be due in August 2021 (2019:
issued on 16 December 2016 and will be due in December
2020) (subject to early redemption). During the year
ended 31 March 2020, redeemable bond with principal
amount of HK$300,000,000 has been early redeemed
by the issuer. Net loss on redemption of unlisted debt
securities of HK$5,388,000 was recognised and included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income during the year.

The fair value of the redeemable bonds at 31 March 2020
and 2019 were estimated by RHL, an independent firm of

professional valuers not connected with the Group.

The Group held quoted debt securities with principal
amount of HK$251,438,000 at 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$214,300,000) which bear interest of 4.55% to 11.50%
(2019: 2.68% to 9.125%) per annum and will be due in
2020 to 2026 (2019: due in 2019 to 2025). The Group
also held quoted perpetual debts with principal amount of
approximately HK$21,005,000 (2019: HK$35,522,000)
at 31 March 2020 which bear interest of 5.9% to 7% per
annum (2019: 5.9% to 7% per annum). The fair value of
these quoted debt securities amounted to HK$248,827,000
(2019: HK$246,142,000).

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

26. BERE-&E

WEsE - — A

(a) — 78

ASE T #2225 98 B TR BRCR i 2
AR B A A1 T T E BT AR T 4R
SRR A I AT AR 3 AN S R G Ty
A B AT N2 A -

b R B S R A AR R
F—EZAZT—HZARET
SHLAS S5 190 SIf 0 ] e 22 788 7. S Al (L i
KM AT AR -

e S S = =t Rl = BERN
L R A bl \ AT AR &
#H £585,800,000% JC (. F — JLAF ¢
300,000,000% JG) 3 #% [ 72 4F F] K10
JH(ZF— JUAF - ARF R IE E 10JH) 51
B2z —IH (ZE—JL4E - —JA) n] [
&5 o AT RS i —F &
E:Hza%ﬁﬁ%i:?**EA
AR (ZF— LA R ZF— N4
+ = H 75 H 1 Iﬂ%é:ggA{@
T ABH) (A TR E) o A
BoFEZEF A= HIEERE
AR 42 %5 4300,000,000 75 7T 2 ] i [7] i
F A PR AT AR T ) o I ) 4 A
£45,388,000i5 6 2 I b T B IR 2
EIRFHC R F AN E8
28 Ko oAt 2 v Ui 25 3 -

AR SR A AR R R L
HEZA =t B2 AR ATyl B
l%]]tﬂﬂf%ﬁ Z W Sr TS A (BRI AT K A
Frdiwt o

AREHBFAR -E_ZF=H=1—
H 2 7N 4 % £5251,438,0008% 76 (&
— JLAE 1 214,300,0009 0) 2 i fEHs
W IR > A R R 4 e A R4.55 )8
in.so@(:?#hﬁ:ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬂﬁz 68JH
%9.125)#) 7 Iﬂ%ﬁAg LERER
CECNFIMN (ZF—JUE D ZF
—JUERE =& #ﬂﬁﬁuﬁﬂ o ARLEH
AR EFE -FEE=A=+—B2
R A FE A F521,005,0008 00 (—FE— L
4 35,522,000 J0) 2 b ik 48 A
W > HARAER| s o 7| (T —JL
s E7E) FHE o I L THER
W 2 0N A A F5248,827,0007 7T (.
F— JU4E ¢ 246,142,000 76) °
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BHE_T-_TF=RA=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES —

continued

Notes — continued:

(c) — continued

(d)

The fair values of the debt securities at 31 March 2020 and
2019 were estimated with reference to the price quoted by

independent brokers.

At 31 March 2019, the Group held 10% interest in
the registered capital of London Riverlea One Limited
(“Riverlea One”), a company established in England and
Wales with limited liability and engaged to purchase and
develop a parcel of land in London, the United Kingdom.
Total amount invested in Riverlea One up to 31 March
2019 was GBP7,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$70,672,000).

In February 2020, as the investment no longer met the
management’s investment plan, it was disposed upon the

completion of disposal of subsidiaries (note 45).

At 31 March 2020, the Group invested USD5,125,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$40,225,000) (2019:
USD5,125,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$40,225,000)
to hold 13.23% (2019: 13.23%) equity interests in Blue Elixir
LLC (“Blue Elixir”), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability and engaged in unlisted equity
investment. The fair value of the investment in Blue Elixir at 31
March 2020 and 2019 was estimated with reference to the net

assets value of Blue Elixir.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED £ #i=RERA A

26. BERE-H&E

WEsE - — 4

(o) —#

(d)

(e)

EH B IR T B R T UE
EHAET HZAARMBRSH WK
A 2 R T A R o

W E LA = H o AR
[# #F A London Riverlea One Limited
(I Riverlea One ) 5F it & 4 #110%1
%ii > Riverlea One /2y — [H] A 5% % B K
WS 2 A B ] > HERs L I e
Do BH B S5 B A 50— E b o B E —F
— JUAE = H =+ — H A Riverlea OneZ
% 4% 757,000,0007% 88 CFH & A 49
70,672,000% 7C) ©

SR CEE S W RS E AT
AR 2 A R > L R e
th B BB 24 7145 th 5 (Wi 3E4s) o

MR F_FE=ZA=+—H K
45 5 15,125,000 JC (K & 1 &
40,225,000% J0) (= F — JLAF ¢
5,125,000 JC (F # A £140,225,000
#0)) 2 & LLFF A Blue Elixir LLC
([ Blue Elixir J) 213.23% (& —JL
4E 1 13.23%) HEHE 5 Blue Elixir/2 it BA
SRR M AL 2 HRAT > eIk
T ERER S c R R R R R
—HE=H="1+—H > ®Blue ElixirZ
& 2N S5 2 % Blue ElixirZ & &
TR A F o
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27

28.

29.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27. A RIE - RERHEMEWRRK
RECEIVABLES 15

2020 2019

—g-®F | T oK

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE R THT

Prepayments TE A 3K IH 1,189 1,460

Other deposits HoAth 3% 4 30,188 9,431

Other receivables JHCAth 1 Wi I 25,565 18,977

56,942 29,868

All balances are expected to be recovered within one year
except for deposits of approximately HK$1,361,000 (2019:
HK$1,790,000).

BANK BALANCES - CLIENT ACCOUNTS

The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients
and other institutions in the course of the conduct of the
regulated activities of its ordinary business. These clients’
monies are maintained in one or more segregated bank
accounts. The Group has recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to respective clients and other institutions
(note 30).

BANK BALANCES - GENERAL
ACCOUNTS AND CASH

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits at market interest rates ranging
from 0% to 1.5% (2019: 0% to 1.5%) per annum.

28.

29.

T A &5 A TEIH R — A Rl > HER
1,361,000% 7C (=& — JU4F : 1,790,000
WIT) 2R AR o

IRITER—"FFERFP
AEEEGHHEEGHENETZE
A B WO R R P B A A
AL Z 4 - WER P RKIE TR —
RS 28 0 ST RATIRF » AREMEE
R 1) AT BR A T R At i R S A 2
T (Bt 5E30) ©

RITER-—REFEES

ARFECHEAEE A ZRE > D
BT 35 ) 2 (AR FI 4 P oJE 21,58
(ZF—JUF - oEE15H)) sHE 2 M
HSRATAF 3K -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

30. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 30. BT BRIR
2020 2019
—EEF “FE-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it & FHET T#TT
Accounts payable arising from the WHRHEEBTELRZ
business of dealing in securities: JE AT B TA
— Cash clients —HEEF (a) 105,081 119,718
— Margin clients —REEEF (b) 351,749 1,041,015
- HKSCC —HBHE (a) 7,673 25,586
Accounts payable to clients arising from & & 4 H & ¥EH +
the business of dealing in futures 7E A 2 AT % 5 AR I
contracts (c) 13,972 9,884
478,475 1,196,203
No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of WRNEHZEE > AXNFERR LR
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give B 7 M7 I e A > R B SIE A B
additional value in view of the nature of business. MR 5 2 AT o
(a) The normal settlement terms of accounts payable to () BMABEEF L#EHFGERT 2R
cash clients and securities clearing houses are two days HWMEFEEM AL S BBEMA -
after trade date.
(b) Amounts due to securities margin clients and futures b) REHFRESEFANEEF K

clients are repayable on demand and carry interest
at 0.25% (2019: 0.25%) per annum. Included in
accounts payable to margin clients arising from the
business of dealing in securities are amounts due to
directors of the Company, their close family members
and a controlling entity of approximately HK$280,000
(2019: HK$60,000).

(c) Accounts payable to clients arising from the business
of dealing in futures contracts are margin deposits
received from clients for their trading of futures
contracts on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange
Limited (the “HKFE”). The excesses of the
outstanding amounts over the required initial margin
deposits stipulated by the HKFE are repayable to

clients on demand.

TE ZH 7 22 R IRE fE 22300 H 4%0.25)8
(T —JUAFE  0.250H) 2 4F ] %K
PR - BHEEEER EA 2B
PR &% P RE T » 15 B A
NEIER - WE L BERIEE A
T P2 ) 04 B 3K TH £9280,00095 T
(—FE—JU4F © 60,000 T0) °

(o) WG HE B 2EH v 2 EAT
HFMRIE > AR & P R BLE
B A5 BT A R T (T2
) REMBE A 2 RE S %
S o I ) 52 i R B s 2 M0
PRS2 4% & 2 i R IR R B > R
AR BOR AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.

HE-_T-_TF=-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

AMOUNTS DUE TO 31. RFEERBRAKIE
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on B A Sy A S0 S R JE N B R
demand. e fE 2 -
32. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER 2. BrtE AR HAt BT RIE
PAYABLES
2020 2019
—E-ZF FE— U
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET Foc
Accruals REFT# 4,636 5,154
Other payables H Al AT 3K I 3,098 5,507
7,734 10,661
BANK BORROWINGS 33. RITEE

33.

At 31 March 2019, the interest rate of the Group’s bank
borrowings was Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR?”) plus 1.85% per annum. The loan was fully
settled during the year.

At 31 March 2020, the Group had banking facilities
totaling HK$1,083,000,000 (2019: HK$1,083,000,000).
These banking facilities are secured by charges over clients’
pledged securities and certain of the Group’s properties and
by corporate guarantees issued by the Company. Details of
the Group’s pledged assets are disclosed in note 42 to the

consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2020, the Group had undrawn amounts
under these banking facilities of HK$1,083,000,000 (2019:
HK$1,033,000,000).

RE—NFE=H=T—H  AEH
ZERAT B 2 R 5 A W AR AT R SE R
B85 o A B ERE R FENT
%Z%{ﬁ"

AR CEF A=+ —H AEH
BS54 4£1,083,000,0008: 7T (—F — L

41 1,083,000,000% 90) 2 AT &
o ERITHEEFEZEUEF 2L

e o MR E S TR > B
AR w2 A R PR AT B R AR -
AL AR 2 R R AR A
B # R I FE 4280 77 -

ATERDERFEZH = —H AKEH
TE M 55 SR AT 5 B 8 P Y R 4 KB
£51,083,000,000%5 76 (—F — JL4F :
1,033,000,000% JG) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED BY A 34, — B LB ARRITZA

LISTED SUBSIDIARY
On 1 September 2017 (the “Bond Issue Date”), GNFG

issued convertible bonds, with coupon interest rate of 2%
per annum, in the principal amount of HK$525,000,000
(“GNFG CB”), to independent third parties. The coupon
interest is accrued at the outstanding principal amount
of GNFG CB and shall only be payable by GNFG to
the bondholders once every six months from the Bond
Issue Date if GNFG CB are neither converted during the
conversion period nor redeemed prior to 1 September 2019
(the “Bond Maturity Date”). GNFG CB can be converted
into maximum 500,000,000 ordinary shares of GNFG at
a conversion price of HK$1.05 per share. The conversion
period commenced from the Bond Issue Date up to and
including the date falling on the seventh day immediately
prior to the Bond Maturity Date.

At initial recognition, GNFG CB were separated into a
liability component and an equity component representing
the conversion options of the bondholders which is reported
as potential non-controlling interests. The fair value of the
liability component and the value of the equity conversion
component were determined at the Bond Issue Date. The
fair value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate of 5.94% per annum for instruments
without a conversion option of comparable credit status
which is referenced to professional valuation conducted by
an independent professionally qualified valuer. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
component, has been reported as potential non-controlling

interests.

% & &

i FE—LENLA—H ((EHET
H 1) > &5 07 < il J8 57 K BE AN 384T
4 %A £5525,000,000% JC 2 2 25 5 A[
W E S (T4E I SR B4 ]) -
2R SR A% 45 Uy 4 A AT e A 5 R AE
R SR B > M T 4 AT B R
I3 1 4 T ) A R S R SO —F L
FJUA — H Z R 8 (T % 3
WHD > HIMEREHRETHRFEA
8 H &6 b & E SRR A A A e
A 0 R RT P A S T e A A g
1.05%5 JC #4275 f 51500,000,000 8% &5
U7 4 Tl 35 9 B o A P R R AT H
PG> HE KB EEESRIW A
B HEH B -

T W) A R R & G 4 A AT R R O
o B B Y e b g wR Ay - AURBETR
FiA N Z M BEHE > DITEEAE JF 15 BBOHE 48
B o BRI 2 0 o (E R OHE £
oy Z AR SR AT B E o A
RAMIGERRIL R TR
HA IR 2 2 U E I T T 35 4 ) %
5.94% T - T927% th L G EAR
(A R EAT 2 B A (E A5t - BRA (U
FME f B 2 AR M) DAVERAE JF #E i
e 2R

18 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED % 2B R A S



34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED BY A

LISTED SUBSIDIARY - continued
As the fair value of GNFG CB was determined using

valuation models for which involved unobservable inputs,
the day-one loss, which represented difference between the
nominal value and the fair value of GNFG CB at the Bond
Issue Date, was not recognised in profit or loss immediately

but was deferred.

The carrying value of the liability component and the
equity conversion component of GNFG CB is net of the
deferred day-one loss which is allocated to the liability
component and potential non-controlling interests on the
same allocation basis of the allocation of the fair value
of GNFG CB. The deferred day-one loss in the liability
components is amortised over the term of GNFG CB on the
basis similar with the effective interest method and included
in “Interest on convertible bonds” in profit or loss and
the deferred day-one loss in the potential non-controlling
interests will be accounted for in the same basis as the

equity conversion component.

The effective interest rate of the liability component of
GNFG CB on initial recognition, which excluded the
impact of the deferred day-one loss, is 7.43% per annum

and is subsequently carried at amortised cost.

g R EE U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

34, —E LB AT RIT 2

REZ—&

R 0 < R R B R 2 A SUE TS A
5 o 1B Wi N\ BOR 2 A (A Y
FE 0 H R 1R (RIS B < a4 R £
FEEEREFRTHZARMELE
B o Ol R B AR A5 RERD. o T LLE
i o

5 0 <l T AR P R O B RCRES 0 M AR
WA 2 MR AR S F1 BR AR SE E H
18 > T B A A < AT 40 I R A AL
{EL 73 BE AR ) 2 7 i 22 Y ) i 28 1 T
o R VAR IR i i o A B AR 2
AR AE 1 H g5 15 LA B R PR R SRk B 2
L T A 0 < A T A IS R O A 0D I
B o AR g R TR R 2 2 AL
MR > T T TE I 428 S M 2 2 R AE ¥
FI s 181 LA BELHE 45 a4 3R 1 ) 2 %
AR -

TG YRR B o & G 4 AT R R
BB > B BRAE A A (MR AESE & H
18 B Fy7.43% - AR Fi 6
I o
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BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED BY A

=8 !

LISTED SUBSIDIARY - continued

During the year ended 31 March 2019, GNFG CB held by
four bondholders of principal amount of HK$262,500,000
were redeemed by GNFG at the redemption price of
HK$262,500,000. The redemption price was allocated
to the liability component and the equity component
on the same basis as used in the allocation of the fair
value of GNFG CB at initial recognition. At the date of
redemption, the difference amounted to approximately
HK$38,867,000 between the redemption price allocated
to the liability component and the carrying amount of the
liability component was recognised as a loss in profit or
loss and the residual amount of the redemption price of
approximately HK$17,811,000 was recognised in potential
non-controlling interests. Upon the redemption of GNFG
CB, the remaining amount of the potential non-controlling
interests attributable to the redeemed GNFG CB of
approximately HK$88,499,000 was transferred to retained
profits and non-controlling interests on the basis of their

existing equity interests.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, GNFG CB of
principal amount of HK$262,500,000 were matured and
fully redeemed by the GNFG at the redemption price
of HK$262,500,000 on maturity date, with no gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss. Upon the redemption
of GNFG CB, the remaining amount of the convertible
bond reserves attributable to the redeemed GNFG CB of
approximately HK$106,309,000 was transferred to retained
profits and non-controlling interests on the basis of their
existing equity interests. No GNFG CB were converted into
ordinary shares of GNFG up to the maturity date.

184 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED % 2B R A S

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 —E LB QR BRIT 2

RES—&

BE F-NE=ZHA=Z+—HIE%E
& > &5 47 4 i DAY 1] 18262,500,000
JC B ) 0 24 68 25 e A N BT R A AR
£5262,500,000%5 TG 1) &5 47 4 fl AT $ 1%
& F5 o B [ 48 42 40 25 W 58 IRF &5 47 4 il
A 6 A 5 48 Fo (B 2 T BT 04 A () 5
ey T 2 B I 4 P RE 4 BB 40 o AT
Ml H# > 43Hic 2 A AR R 43 ) I (e B
43 1 T (438,867,000 % 7T 2
] 119 2% BE 48 25 P W SR S s 18 > T
[e] {5 A4 7R i 4 BH 4917,811,0004% JC1E T
1E FF 12 e RE £ v BRERR. o A B M) 455 O 42
Fill T 4 A SR AR > I [ &5 AT 4 Rl T
1 11 5 75 ME AL 2 T A JF 2 RO 4 R BE
%188,499,000% I . 18 F% 25 1% B4 ¥k 1| I
BIAT IE R A 25 (DAL BLAT I A HE 25 /5
FHE) o

WE T FHE A =Z1+—HILE
FE > A% 4 B0 £5262,500,0005 TG 1 &5 47
G AT MR R E R A i &
Rl 21 9 H $4262,500,0009 T (1 1# 9]
] 4 S I T SN0 A 4R 4 A A A B
e 15, o W [ A G 4 AT R AR 5 A%
L I ] %) 465 T 4 il T 460 i £ 5 R A 1)
AT 46 1B A 25 £ 6 B %540 106,309,000 %5
TG EL F AR B 0 B B RE L e R & AR
Bl P S e A o B ERIAH
HE 248 Ty 5 Fl T 46 P £ 5 W R A
4 S 5 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED BY A 34, — B LB AR RIT 2R
LISTED SUBSIDIARY - continued RES—&
GNFG CB recognised at the end of the reporting period are T 0 R B BB 2 A T 4 AT 4R AR
calculated as follows: HEFEWMT
Deferred
Gross day-one Net
Amount loss Amount
HE ETEBBE BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T R
Liability component BEHD
At 1 April 2018 AT — \AEH —H 483,865 (133,025) 350,840
Interest expenses for the year: AR ALE B S
Imputed interest expenses il R 2 B 52 31,934 - 31,934
Amortisation of deferred day-one loss e AL H e HE 4 £ - 64,741 64,741
31,934 64,741 96,675
Coupon interest paid / accrued Bt BFER (8,169) - (8,169)
Redemption of GNFG CB P 55 < T A 25 (250,837) 45,015 (205,822)
(259,0006) 45,015 (213,991)
At 31 March 2019 and ANE-NEZA=+—H
1 April 2019 K= F—JFEMA—H 256,793 (23,269) 233,524
Interest expenses for the year: AN FLEBH 3
Imputed interest expenses il 555 B 32 7,909 - 7,909
Amortisation of deferred day-one loss — #E 4E 15 H &5 18 #E §4 - 23,269 23,269
7,909 23,269 31,178
Coupon interest paid / accrued BEft/BFER (2,202) = (2,202)
Redemption of GNFG CB A 2] S R [ %5 1 < Pl
upon maturity CIEY £ (262,500) o (262,500)
(264,702) - (264,702)
At 31 March 2020 R-B-Z2F=A=+—H = = =

Annual Report 2020 % 185

I T




18

1:‘='i

6

wn B B 05 R R B R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED BY A 34, — B LHTHRBARETZAR
LISTED SUBSIDIARY - continued BRESH—E&

Deferred

Gross day-one Net

Amount loss Amount

HE ELEHER BE

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000

T TH#IT T T

Potential non-controlling interests BEFERER

At 1 April 2018 W= F— AFEUH—H 336,346 (123,727) 212,619
Redemption of GNFG CB I I 458 4 T T 40 I £ 0 (168,173) 61,863 (106,310)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 A =F—JUFE=H =+—H

E_F—NENMA—H 168,173 (61,864) 106,309
Redemption of GNFG CB upon marurity i EI| #H e i [7] 45 4 4 il

] B £ (168,173) 61,864 (106,309)
At 31 March 2020 R-ZB-ZEF=ZA=+—-H - - -
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BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

35. DEFERRED TAXATION 35. IEFEBL TR

The following are the deferred tax (assets) liabilities DM E#E X - FER T —LF
recognised and the movements thereon during the years “HZ T —HILFEE#ME 2 EER

ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. H(EE) AU L ES)

Revaluation ~ Revaluation Collective

Decelerated of of  impairment

tax  Revaluation Mandatory ~ Designated  on loans and
depreciation  of properties FVOCI FVOCI advances Total

EffHY EEEOAE
k3 BAAEHA HARMRE  ERRER

RENE  ERUE RREAE  KEZEE  ZREEE ait
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
T T T T T T

Ac 1 April 2018 AR MEIA—H (404) 6,833 (698) - 5) 5,726
Charge to profit or loss for the year RAEERE

(note 15) (H3k15) 133 - - - - 133
Charge (credit) to other comprehensive ~ J1IFf (51 A) 4

income for the year H 2w - 457 (72) (1,004) - (619)
At 31 March 2019 R-Z-NEZH=+—H Qn) 7,290 (770) (1,004) () 5,240
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43) HEE AT (fk4s) - - - 686 - 686
Charge to profit or loss for the year MBAEERE (H3E15)

(note 19) 95 - - _ _ 95
Charge (credit) to other comprehensive 11 (FTA)REE

income for the year Hit2 ks - 184 (3,153) 318 - (2,051)
At 31 March 2020 R-2-RF=A=1-H (176) 7474 (3,923) - 6) 3,370
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated R BAR » AR A 105,746,000
unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$105,746,000 W0 (& — JUA ¢ 111,023,000 7C)
(2019: HK$111,023,000) available to offset against future A% F AR B A TE e 18 AT DL S R
profits. The tax losses have not been recognised due to A& A o H A R BE B E I A B 8L R AR
uncertainty of future profit streams and may be carried P TR G SI J e 5E B TE s 1E - A B O
forward indefinitely. 5 W I PR A o o
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BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

35. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued 35. IEAEBLIE — &
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax (assets) EARIE (EE) AERMERENS
liabilities for financial reporting purposes: AR
Assets Liabilities
BE =R+
2020 2019 2020 2019

TEDRF | X E | ZBZEF | TEEF
HK$°000 | HK$000 | HK$000 | HK$000
TR T T FTHET T IT

Decelerated tax depreciation 9% JE Bl TE T B (522) (522) 346 608
Revaluation Al (3,923) - 7,474 5,159
Collective impairment B BRK

on loans and advances AR W (5) (744) - 739

Deferred tax (assets) liabilities WEHEBLIE (& &)

=L (4,450) (1,266) 7,820 6,506
At 31 March 2020 and 2019, no deferred tax has been W oE EEN FE—JLE=ZH
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on =1 —H > HEHE A 5 AR YR T
the unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiary, Great Z Wi J& 2% m)OR b A BR A A (TR
China Company Limited (“Great China”) established in #e |) 2 oA R 2 R 28 S AT 2 TR B
Macau. In the opinion of the directors, it is probable that TEAYEIERITE - EH L A& > T 5HF A
any undistributed profits are expected to be retained in R 43 Uk i A AR AT RE AR B R K b 2 Gf
Great China and not to be remitted out of Great China in T AT R AR AN T R T EE o i R
the foreseeable future. No estimated withholding tax effects X CEERCE—-NE=ZA=+—
on the distribution of retained profits of Great China for 1k 4F 331 S 7 R 4 IR K o 2 R B Ui
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 were recognised. M Z AL s FE N B 5 28 o
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36.

37.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

SHARE CAPITAL 36. IR
Number of shares Amount
R EE 8
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZBRIRE | X WEF | ZBZERF | _FF
’000 ’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR T K THERT TH#T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each % B¢ i {E0.10# JC
5 i
Authorised: g
At the beginning and the end S RIS E
of the reporting period HHIR 30,000,000 | 30,000,000 | 3,000,000 | 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: AT ML
At the beginning and the end A A HA )
of the reporting period K H R 9,662,706 9,662,706 966,270 966,270
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 37. B IR T &

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 16
May 2002 has expired on 5 June 2012. The Company has

adopted a new share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”)

pursuant to a resolution passed on 24 August 2012. On

20 August 2015, the refreshment of scheme mandate
limit (671,021,393 shares) under the Option Scheme
was approved by the sharcholders of the Company at the

annual general meeting by way of an ordinary resolution.

The major terms of the Option Scheme are summarised as

follows:

(a) The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide

an incentive for eligible participant to work with

commitment towards enhancing the value of the

Company and the shares for the benefit of the

shareholders of the Company and to retain and attract

persons whose contribution are or may be beneficial to

the growth and development of the Group.

ANTNAZEFE ETA TSR
RS RO AN A R
HIE W o AN A BREN —F— —4F
AH I H@E R —IH
o R ST B (S RE RT3 ]) - i
T—HFE/NHZ+H » AN [ B H R
JI R A AT R b DA R R e
YA BT 8 I RE 5 ) I T 2 R B R R
% (671,021,3930%) - BEAERT & 2 &
B A R

() WEBCHERT B 5 1 SO & E s 2
B NARTEA > w] RO By 2 8
{EL DA 3 AR 2 ] BE A A AR A 2 > Sl
F5 LA B W 5 HL R S A 4R
Z W R B TR A A ST RE A M 22
ANt e
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n B B T 8 R B =T
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES — continued 37. B RERTEI - &

(b) The eligible participants of the Option Scheme

include: (a) any executive director, or employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or any
entity in which the Group holding an equity interest
(“Invested Entity”); (b) any non-executive director
(including independent non-executive directors) of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and (c) any such
other persons (including but not limited to supplier,
customer, consultant, adviser, contractor, business
partner or service provider of the Group or any
Invested Entity) who in the absolute discretion of the
board of directors has contributed or will contribute to

the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant class of
securities of the issued share capital of the Company

from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed the number
of shares as shall represent 10% of the total number of

shares in issue.

SRR & 2 & B AR 2 BH AL
(a) A 42 B EOAS S5 T 45 A JHL e A e
o HE (R EEM]) 2/
AT S U B (AN oy 2 B i
W) 5 (b) A e B S s U A
LA IR AT (IS ML IR AT
EF) 5 ()T A B
RERE /o O A8 S0 & B A S AR 1
B AR H A L (GRS (H AR R
T A S B B 7 BB 2 I
B RS B KRR
R~ B SRS R ) o

DRI A7 {of R 4% B st A T 1) e A 4 1
2 AT o] L Al B B R T ) BT 4 R K
W A AT 2 BT A B R R T R A 2R
TEITZRHEE EREGFAE
R 3 A 8 AN RE B AT AR AT
ol 5 B 35 5 B 2 30% ©

PRI AT (1 A 5 W PR 5 ) R A 4
AT A A B R S BT AR 2
JT A B R M T AT REE TR AT 2 B
0y KB T AN A5 B A AH B A 5
TR B 0% 2 B8 E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(e)

®

(g)

()

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under the Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each participant in any
twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being.

There is no minimum period required for the holding

of a share option before it can be exercised.

A share option may be exercised at any time during a
period to be determined by the directors, the period
may commence on a day after the date upon which the
offer for the grant of share options is made but shall
not be later than ten years from the date of grant of the

share option.

The acceptance of a share option, if accepted, must be
made within 5 business days from the date of the offer

of grant of the share option.

The exercise price of a share option must be the higher

of:

(i)  the closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on
the date of the offer of the grang;

(i) the average closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of the grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company.

The Option Scheme will expire on 23 August 2022.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

37. BIRERTE-&

(e)

®

(8)

(h)

(i)

()

T A AT 12418 400 ] B AT 68 AR 4
e M T ) R AR 2 T A e FE A B A
RE T3 By % 2 B e HE > T 2 )
# 2 B AT KOA] REZH ) 4% 2 Bl
HHAT 2 B BB () Ry L 4% AT
ol sl 18 R AT (O B RE A ) AR
FEARAS /N ) IR B ATIRA 2 1% <

I s - ) 7 S AR E A AT AT
TR I FOHE 2 B R

Fil e HE T S B S i 2 IR
B RF AT 66 > 5% 309 ] 26 ol 4R 4 7
FERHE G 0 2 B =
$ 0 PR AR A O i

S B 00 3 Ak S PR o RS R
H A% i BCAE A R ) AR
CENERRE Y YIS

e 2 AT fEAEZH S R B =&
ZIREH

(i) 4@ H BT A HE e H A
W B 2 8 IR R T s 2
AR W B W T A

(i) FERR LTI R RN
WA TR 22 5 BAE B S B 2
(S 8 I /AT 3
TP H W8 5 B

(iii) A2 ] B4 T -

e BE S B A & — 4R\ A
— = H A -
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n B B T 8 R B =T
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES — continued 37. B RERTEI - &

On 16 January 2019, options to subscribe 289,800,000
ordinary shares were granted to 3 eligible participants other
than employees under the Option Scheme at an exercise
price HK$0.26 per share. The validity period of the share
options is two years from the date of grant (i.e. from 16
January 2019 to 15 January 2021). The share options vest
immediately as the eligible participants are not required
to complete a specified period of service before becoming
unconditionally entitled to those equity instruments. The
Company recognised the services provided in full at the date

of grant.

On 21 August 2019, the refreshment of scheme mandate
limit under the Option Scheme was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
by way of an ordinary resolution. The Company is thus
entitled to issue a maximum of 966,270,593 shares upon
exercise of the share options to be granted under the
refreshed scheme mandate limit, representing 10% of the
issued shares as at the date of the annual general meeting
held on 21 August 2019.

No share options were exercised during the years ended 31
March 2020 and 2019.

W E—JUE—H TN H > Al Bk
289,800,000 % 5 4 fi 1) il 11 A £ AR %
WECRERT B 3200 IE R B A &2
BLE W AT A8 25 % 0.26H5 0T © 7%
FIEIRENAS A A S H R
FEMZF-NFE-ATAAHEF
T—%—H+AHH) c HNGEK2H
HWAEE BB EAZE AR TR
58 LA 72 0 IR B 1 > IR At I s R
I S B o AN 0 W B M AR R R
HERR ALY MRS -

B JUEANA A H s
JERER B 2 5T B R A PR A — O R
FOH A K& AN B I A R
Dok 22 AL e o R UL > AR A AT AR
P8 R M T B4 ORE R B 2 R
HE AT (1 IRF 3 47 B £ 966,270,593 K ik
B> ME R —F - LEANH Z+—H
SEATRFHFER G HC#IT R KZ
10% ©

WEF FER FIUE= A
b kA AR A 17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 37. BIRERT 8 - &
Details of the movements of Share Options granted to P2 10 ER R0y 1) B AR RE S B R E A A T

subscribe for the Shares are as follows:
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-—E-ZEFE=-HA=+—HLEE

Number of shares issuable under the Share Options

REBREASTHROHA
Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
At1April  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  at 31 March
Category 2019 year year year 2020
i
i ZEC-EE=
“B-nE A=t-H
£ mA-A ERRE  EROE ERXR HAGE
Non-employe eligible participants FEEZAERSHY 289,800,000 - - - 289,800,000
Weighted average exercise price per share (HKS) BMEEH G E (kT 0.26 - - - 0.26
Year ended 31 March 2019 WE-_F—-NE=H=+—HILFE

Number of shares issuable under the Share Options

RERAE T &b 8

Granted Exercised Lapsed  Ourstanding

Ac T April during the during the during the  at 31 March

Category 2018 year year year 2019
S

f “EFNE

“F-NE =H=1-H

K AR ERRE ERTE FRER R
Non-employe eligible participants FEEZAERSHY - 289,800,000 - - 289,800,000
Weighted average exercise price per share (HKS) AT 1 (W) s 0.26 s s 0.26
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n B B T 8 R B =T
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

=8 !

During the year ended 31 March 2019, with reference to
the fair value of the share options, the Group recognised
approximately HK$8,776,000 as the equity-settled share

based payment expenses.

The fair value of share options on the date of the grant is
estimated by using the Binomial Model with the following

parameters:

Grant date 16 January 2019

Weighted average stock HK$0.255
price on grant date
Exercise price HK$0.26

Risk-free rate 1.693%
16 January 2019 to
15 January 2021

Expected option period

Expected volatility* 33.89%
Expected dividend yield 7.84%

* The expected volatility is based on statistical analysis of daily

share prices annualised for one year immediately preceding

the grant date.

194 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED % 2B R A S

37. BIRESTE-&

BHE - NWFE=ZHA=Z+—H 14
> SRR A E > AL HH
72 #18,776,000% JT A £ ARE #i 45 55 1Y
DA AR 3o B 3 o

O (T AR IR SRR 1 22 A R
SRR TR A3t H A B 2 e

B EH —E L
—H+75H

AP H 0.255%5 7T

JINHE - 35 e 8

T flifE 0.267 7T
41 5| gy 1) 2R 1.693%
A 5T B T HE T BR ZE - NF
—HA+ASHZE

TR AR

—H+THH

T HA U M 33.89%
TE R B =% 7.84%

o T E) AR B HOB AT AR
AL HBE SR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

38. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 38. Ht R & REH
Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from REBFRBMEGEHEE 2 ABEZEH
financing activities are as follows: R
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-_ZE_ZEF=A=+—HLEE

Non-cash changes

FR2EE
At31
At 1 April Net cash Interest Interest March
2019 flows expense accrued 2020
R R
Z8-hE -

BA-B HReR¥E  MERX  RHAR ZA=t-H
HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TR TR TR TRR

Bank borrowings RITHE 50,000 (50,923) 923 - -
Convertible bonds issued by a listed subsidiary — M ETRE LA &L

AR R 233,524 (265,139) 31,178 437 -

Total liabilities from financing activities WEEHEL 2 AEAE 283,524 (316,062) 32,101 437 -

Year ended 31 March 2019 HE_F - NE=HA=1+—"HILHEE

Non-cash changes
£R480
Loss on
redemption  Transfer to

of  convertible At3

At Net cash Interest Interest  convertible bonds 1 March

1 April 2018 flows expense accrued bonds reserve 2019

it

s -

~F— )\ Bai BR g EEEAH =A

mA—H o OMERX  RRME WhzBR RERRE  =1-H
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000 — HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Tx  T#x  TEx  TEx TEx T TiEx

Bank borrowings g 60,000 (10,549) 549 = = = 50,000
Convertible bonds issued —fi Ll

by a listed subsidiary BouEs 350840 (270232 96,675 (437) 38,867 17811 233,504
Total liabilities from financing i & B i Ak 2

activities HRAH 410840 (280781 97,204 37 38867 17811 283524
Bank borrowings and convertible bonds issued by a A B SR AT e B B — W] b T R A
listed subsidiary are disclosed in notes 33 and 34 to the 11 2 AR IR AR I5 Z w15 0 Bl R A7 &
consolidated financial statements respectively. Vo 75 i 3R B 5133 034 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—

—EF=A=+HLFE

Year ended 31 March 2020

39.

40.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group has joined a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately in an independently managed fund. The
Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution
requirements of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate
income. The contributions, amounting approximately
HK$899,000 (2019: HK$897,000), are charged to the

profit or loss as incurred.

COMMITMENTS
(a) Loan commitments as lender

The Group had the following loan commitments,
which was the unutilised part of the revolving facility

at the end of reporting period:

39.

40.

ERBERGE
A4 ] AR 95 0 M BR 4 R Ak
Zﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁé%%ﬁAﬁﬁﬁé
2 BUR R A8 FI5H 8] (ME RS 5HE )
%ﬁﬁﬁ%zgﬁm—ﬁﬁiéﬁﬁ
BT o AL 1 AR 98 B IR ik it
HHLE - A EREBSHARBAA
B 2 5%HE Kk - £ #49899,000%s 7T (—
? JUAF £ 897,000%5 70) 2 I3 EL A &
A R AE AR 28 1 BR o

AR

@ BEREAE-FRER
ZﬁﬁlﬁlﬁAi&iﬁﬁﬂi?ﬁuT% N
& > THER o AR B TG B AL

2020 2019
g et —EF-NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET TH#EC
Within one year — A — 130,000
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEARRIE
2020 2019
—BDEF | —“EZNE
HK$’°000 HK$’000
THERT T
Capital expenditure contracted but AL T HEZEF#
not provided for in the consolidated ELA &5 A BB ¥ 3=
financial statements in respect of: R 2 EABH L
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note) Wi g — 6] FF 8 2 \) () 56,638 -
Addition to investment properties NEREWE 8,327 23,071
64,965 23,071

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##1ZRER A A

196



40. COMMITMENTS - continued

(b) Capital commitments — continued

Note:

On 13 January 2020, King Joy Asia Limited (“King Joy”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a conditional sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Hung
Hon Shing, the father of Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, an executive
director of GNFG, and the elder brother of Mr. Hung Hon
Man, an executive director of the Company, in relation
to acquire the entire issued share capital of Red Eagle
Securities Limited (“Red Eagle”) at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$62,838,000 (subject to adjustment). Red
Eagle is licensed corporation under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Ordinance with regulated activity under Type
1 Dealing in Securities and is a participant of the Stock
Exchange. The principal activity of Red Eagle is provision of
securities brokerage services. Details of the transaction are set

out in the Company’s announcement dated 13 January 2020.

At 31 March 2020, a deposit of HK$6,200,000 had been
paid and was reported as “Deposit paid for acquisition of a
subsidiary”. Upon completion of the transaction, Red Eagle
will become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Up to the date of approving these consolidated financial
statements, the transaction is not yet completed and subject

to the approval from SFC.

g R EE U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

40, RIE— 1B
(b) EAREE &
Wt -

ACECRE-H+T=EH AAEZ
S I N F A DL A RA R ([
it 1) BEL IRV S A (O 45 T & L AT
It B I A 2 A0 A B S E L
P F b B s 2 ) §T L A R
HEW® NEARUESRER
62,838,000%5 7T (T 7~ i %) i i 3 9%
BHRARAR ([EER]) 2 TR
A o VYR R S KW BB
PRk AR HEE I B R S)
ZIEEE > WA T2 S -
IR EEET SR MAE S L LN
o o E R AN A =%
TEAE-H T HAM -

ATETEIE=ZA=+—H - B34
1 45.6,200,000%5 07 51 i £ [ U8 il —
MM AR 2 O 4 ] o 58 5 58
% o BEIIGERL S AN m ) 2 G B A
A o WAEHMEALE G MBI E A -
W58 A R 5 BAIE ZE 1 R e A o o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

41. LEASES

The Group leases berth and staff quarters for its daily
operations which are short-term leases and low value
assets leases with lease terms ranging from 1 month to 2
years. Certain leases provide the Group with an option to
terminate the leases after expiration of the first year with 2

months’ notice.

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the

41. &

A G By H W A AR A % B T 1
& AR E &MY HE RS E
MEmMAEHE M A ZEWEASE -
A T L A 4R B AT R R AR i e
A% 72 i T A1 A 48 0 A 1R AL

A 1 AR R Rl RR DL B

year:
2020 2019
—E-ZF SR
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET Fioc

Lease payments: HE T

Short-term leases mHE 1,160 -
Leases of low value assets REEHEEHS 282 -
Operating lease payments ?ﬁ’%’fﬁ%{ﬁ X - 1,693
Expenses recognised in profit or loss T 85 % e 58 B0 B 52 1,442 1,693
Total cash outflow for leases MHER 40 485 1,442 1,693

Commitments under leases

At 31 March 2020, the Group was committed to
approximately HK$74,000 and HK$513,000 for short-term

leases and leases of low value assets respectively.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,

which are payable as follows:

—HFN

Within one year

HERE

AR EBEZHAZF—H o AEHE
A L REEEEMERN R
W03 A4 £y 74,0009 70 12 513,000 7 ©

AN_E-NEZA=T—H AEE
R A AT f8 i A 7 AL 9 R AR e (R AL
A A A AT

HK$’000
T#IT

371
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

43.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been

pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group:

42.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

EEHRA

DA BRI 2 B O RHEH > EA A
5 B IR SR AT (5 HERH A

2020 2019
—goeE| 2
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR T IT

Hong Kong ik
Leasehold land HE 1 i 66,583 69,024
Buildings i £ 36,190 36,430
102,773 105,454

In addition, the Group’s banking facilities are also secured
by charges over clients’ pledged securities of fair value of
approximately HK$554,854,000 (2019: HK$484,182,000)
at 31 March 2020 and corporate guarantees issued by the
Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions / information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during
the year, the Group had the following transactions with

related parties:

(a) Transactions

Name of related party

HMEALHEE8 REMHE

Messrs. Hung Hon Man,
Cham Wai Ho Anthony,
Kam Leung Ming, Hung Sui Kwan,
Shum Kin Wai Frankie,
Cheng Wai Ho, Ng Hon Sau Larry,

their close family members and

income (note i)

controlling entities

BB HEER L
HoeWl e ~ o e A
AR - MR SR
R ~ WE 2 RERIKME
DA% £ il S

Nature of transaction

Brokerage commission

43.

A AL B A (B R

WA A ZFEZEF=H=+—H>
AL ZWITEREEIE A REL
£5554,854,000% o0 (= F — JL4F ¢
484,182,000 J0) 2 & P E K4 76 75 LA
B A w8 Y 4 A S AR AR AR AT -

BEALXRS
PR AR A S 5 S R LAt 38 40 BT 0 2 52
5/ ERLGL > A G A AT LLR

R NG 2
(a) X5
2020 2019
—EC-EF R U
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T
915 2,971
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE_T-_TF=RA=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS RBEATRG &
— continued

(a) Transactions — continued @ RP5—E&
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2020 2019
BEALHE BB REME —E-EF ZE U
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THET T
Messrs. Hung Hon Man, Interest income (note ii) 15,827 9,909

Kam Leung Ming, Hung Sui Kwan,
Shum Kin Wai Frankie, Cheng Wai
Ho, Ng Hon Sau Larry,
their close family members and
controlling entities
WEESCEE - HE AL FUE A (B 5Eii)
WA - A
WA e~ R ed - S
B R LB DA

Mr. Hung Hon Man’s associate Rental income (note iii) 650 504

BESCEAE 2B L A YA (B L)

Notes: B 5E -

(i) Commission was charged at 0.1% to 0.25% (2019: i) WEBETHHBEMEZ01%E
0.1% to 0.25%) on the total value of transactions. 0.25% (& —JLF : 0.1% %

0.25%) Y B -

(ii) Interest was charged at 7.236% to 9.252% per (i) F B ¥ 5 E7.236%£9.252%
annum (2019: 7.236% to 9.252% per annum) on the (ZF— A7, 236%§9 252%)
outstanding balances of margin loans. ) 2 T AR A B 2 R R
BRI o
(iii) Monthly rental fee was charged at a range of (i) ME _-F _FFE=H=1T—H1:
HK$42,000 to HK$65,000 during the year ended 31 A B A WSO FH 4 £942,000
March 2020 (2019: HK$42,000). HEILE 65,0000 (=% — JLAE -
42,0004 7C) ©
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

— continued
(b) Remuneration to key management personnel

The remuneration of members of key management,
other than directors as disclosed in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements, was as follows:

g R EE U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

43. BEBEALTXRE —E

b)) FTEEBABZHMH
B &5 5 kR BT Rk 140 Bl Bk 2
AN Hfh B AR ZH
B

2020 2019

—RCRF —&UAE

HK$’000 HK$000

FExT T

Salaries and other benefits 4 B H A AR A 4,584 6,031
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IR KA At ) At Kk 118 119
4,702 6,150

The remuneration of directors and other key
management personnel is determined by the

performance of individuals and market trends.

44. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

In June 2019, Mega Trillion Group Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 100% equity
interest of Pearl King Holdings Limited (“Pearl King”),
at a cash consideration of approximately HK$34,860,000
from an independent third party (the “Vendor”). Under
the deed of assignment, the Vendor has also assigned
and transferred a loan due from Pearl King amounting
to approximately HK$12,594,000 to the Group. The
principal activity of Pearl King is property holding. The
acquisition was completed in June 2019. Upon completion
of the transaction, Pearl King had become a wholly owned

subsidiary of the Group.

In June 2019, Smart Best Asia Corporation, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired 100% equity interest
of Super Times Overseas Limited (“Super Times”), at a
cash consideration of HK$34,832,000 from the Vendor.
Under the deed of assignment, the Vendor has also assigned
and transferred a loan due from Super Times amounting
to HK$12,820,000 to the Group. The principal activity
of Super Times is property holding. The acquisition
was completed in June 2019. Upon completion of the
transaction, Super Times had become a wholly owned

subsidiary of the Group.

E ) S NE sl NP
SRR N SR B ST 3 B E

44. WIEHI B 2 A

e el 1K AN = RN N/ ol < 3 )
E//}ﬁ]Mega Trillion Group Limited A
#)34,860,000% 7t Z B & A H ) — £
WS o =77 (['E J7 1) UK W Pearl King
Holdings Limited ([ Pearl King|) Z
100% B HE - ARZEERLL > B/ E
] A 42 (6] A% % 6 TE U Pear King%"]
12,594,000 TCH K © Pearl Kingft) £ %
EB W ERER  WHFHD R - F
— LN H 52 o 8 5 58 1A% > Pearl
King £ B 4% A< 5 [ 14 4= % B JBg 2 ) o

B JUENH AN F R E W
J& /A FlSmart Best Asia Corporationl
34,832,000 7T 2 H & CAH 17 5 77 UL
H#Super Times Overseas Limited ([ Super
Times 1) Z100%/% HE o AR 45 i 3 32
#1 o B 7N 1) AR 4R RS I e e
W Super Timesf)12,820,000%% JC B 7K °
Super Times) £ B 285 £y W) EHE K -
PSR HT N = F — JLF N H B -
2 5 56 A% > Super TimesE B4 A< 4R
P F 2 R Jag 2 D o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

44. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

44. WIRM B 8 — &

— continued

In the opinion of the directors, these acquisitions did not
constitute business combination as defined in HKFRS
3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”. Therefore, the

acquisitions have been accounted for as acquisition of assets

during the year ended 31 March 2020.

The following summarises the consideration paid and the

amounts of the assets acquired at the date of acquisition:

T F R M o w5 WO I TE A R A
s T 5 M RN S 3T (REAERT) [ 3685
ai TR ENEE SO - B A
B FHO REE —F T FE =
=+ B IR R 2 O AR -

DA 5 © A A LA K BT i 8 R
Wi B 2

Pearl King Super Times Total
#at
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T#T T#IT

Consideration RE
Cash B 34,860 34,832 69,692
Recognised amounts of FTREBERAEEZ

identifiable assets acquired ERIALHE
Investment properties (note 19) HEYZ (MiE19) 35,000 35,000 70,000
Prepayment, deposits AT I ~ Hed

and other receivables At 1 i 2R TH 17 18 35
Accruals and other payables JEFE 2R T B Ath JE ASF 2 TE (157) (186) (343)
Total identifiable net assets % sk A (A AR 34,860 34,832 69,692
Net cash outflow of acquisition 43000 PN P

of subsidiaries HERHFEE
Consideration A= (34,860) (34,832) (69,692)

The subsidiaries made no significant contribution to the
revenue and results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2020 after acquisition. The revenue and results
of the subsidiaries were also insignificant if the above
acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the

reporting period.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ##1ZRER A A

Wi AR > WA R B AL E —F
CEFE=ZA =4 HIEFEER R R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 25 February 2020, the Group disposed of its
100% interests in Trillion Income Limited (“Trillion
Income”) at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$61,483,000 (the “Disposal”) to Mr. Hung Hon Man,
an executive director of the Company. The principal
activity of Trillion Income is investment holding and holds
60% interest in Trillion Way Limited (“Trillion Way”)
(together the “Trillion Group”), which in turn holds 10%

interest in Riverlea One.

Details of the Disposal have been disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 25 February 2020. The
Disposal was completed in February 2020. The aggregate
amounts of assets and liabilities attributable to the Trillion

Group at the date of disposal were as follows:

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

45, HEM B QA

BRI FFEATEHE > AEHE
A #8ACME %961,483,0009 T [7] A 2 F
AT HE 5L S e AR A HOR Trillion
Income Limited ([ Trillion Incomel]) [
100%HE 5 ([ & FIH ) ° Trillion
Incomel & B ¥ H 5 Fr & ¥ >
Fe A WA A R A A ([BLEE ) (%8R
[Trillion®E M 1) 60% Y HE £ - 1 B 3 H
5 Riverlea Onel®10%H i °

HERENFECORAATHHA —
FEOFETH A HHBNE P
o HEFRHON X -FHFE " H%
FE o N HYVE H OB TrillionE [ EAE &
EMAEAERENT

HK$°000
FERT
Net assets disposed of HENEEFRE
Designated FVOCI SR (/NP = N R T 68,117
Deferred tax assets (note 35) AR B TE & B (B 5E35) 686
Bank balances — general accounts and cash RAITH G — — IR F R4 55
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder AT I 452 % A5 PR JE (10,997)
Net assets upon disposal BEHERNEEFE 57,861
Non-controlling interests derecognised B s 2 IR 4 IO 25 1,441
Gain on disposal (note 10) HAEI (R 10) 2,181
Consideration A= 61,483
Net cash inflow on disposal HEZRERARE
Cash consideration received B IR U E 61,483
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BT 2 BRAT & R N B (55)
61,428
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Year ended 31 March 2020

46.

47.

ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS IN A SUBSIDIARY

On 21 January 2020, the Group acquired the remaining
49% equity interests of Get Nice Silk Road Investment
Limited (“GN Silk Road”) at a cash consideration of
HK$170,000. GN Silk Road is incorporated in BVI and
its principal activity is investment holding. The acquisition
was completed on the same date. Upon completion of
the acquisition, GN Silk Road and its subsidiary, Get
Nice Asset Management Limited (“GNAM”), (the “GN
Silk Road Group”) became an indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests
in the GN Silk Road Group at the date of acquisition
was approximately HK$170,000, which represented
proportionate share of carrying amount of net assets of the
GN Silk Road Group derecognised with no gain or loss
recognised in the retained earnings attributable to equity

holders of the Company.

46. Wi — BT B 2 ) B9 FF 2 5

=

AR CFFE~H Z+—H o RKEH
DL 4 018 170,000 T Ui 1% 45 4 %%
A AR T (TR 406 ) 1 H
499 HE o 5T 44 B N S R L BE S
sE A s HFEER AR -
W B A [A) H 8 R o Wi ST AR o &
U 5 i S LI B N Rl G A A A
BN A ([E5 U A 1) ([ 45 U 44 8%
S ] |) B AR 0N A B T 4 A B I
H o

T B o & A% I 4R I 9 4 A HE
it 1Y) B T (B4 45170, oooi%fc EAVE 31
TH T 8 % LU 91 B AL 45 4 A4 B 4 91 1 3
HEMREAE > MAA AR AE
5 14 PR B8 28 ) 37 40 e A o] g 4 5
#H o

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 47. XA B 2 B Bk R &
OF THE COMPANY
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Ff FET T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property and equipment VEY G 37 25
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries N
FEHEE 47(a) 1,844,473 1,844,473
1,844,510 1,844,498
Current assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayments 2 A ROE 738 562
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wz I J > ) R IR 2,441,490 2,755,028
Bank balances — general accounts SRATHEGR —— IR
and cash P& 433,333 7,777
2,875,561 2,763,367

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED £ #i=RERA A
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BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 47. X RB 2R BN K —&
OF THE COMPANY - continued
2020 2019
—g-®E | ST
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT T
Current liabilities REaE
Accrued charges and other payables JEGHE K
Ho At JE A 3K IH 1,451 1,820
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST o6 JB 2 ) R 611,912 516,078
613,363 517,898
Net current assets REBEEEE 2,262,198 2,245,469
NET ASSETS BEEFE 4,106,708 4,089,967
Capital and reserves BEARREE
Share capital i@ 36 966,270 966,270
Reserves It i 47(b) 3,140,438 3,123,697
TOTAL EQUITY B 4,106,708 4,089,967
(a) Included in unlisted investments in subsidiaries (@ MIBAFZIELTHEDR
are deemed capital contribution amounting to 60,840,000% o6 (& — JL&
HK$60,840,000 (2019: HK$60,840,000). The capital 60,840,000%5 7C) Z #AE & -
contribution represents the imputed interest on AR e B 2 BT A R R K (TR
interest free amounts due from subsidiaries which are VN R i e S DX (= IR
not expected to be recovered within 12 months from [\) Z BRI E -

the end of the reporting period.
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BHE_T-_TF=RA=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY - continued

(b) Movement of the reserves

47. XD A2 M BRI K - &

(b) it i 5 B

Share
Share Special option  Retained
premium reserve reserve  earnings Total
BRARE HHEE BRERE REEA ok
Notes  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
(i T#x  T#x  TEx Tc  TEx
(note i)
(Ht D)
At 1 April 2018 = — )\
mA—H 2,933,438 194,549 - 10,264 3,138,251
Profit for the year KEERF - - - 169,924 169,924
Transactions with owners: HEBAZRS:
Contributions and distributions ~ H & &7 Ik
- Dividends to owners — A A
Z kB 16 - - - (193,254)  (193,254)
— Recognition of equity-setcled  — T 5% A fHE 45 45 L L
share-based payment expenses BefrsifB 37 - - 8,776 - 8,776
- - 8,776 (193,254)  (184,478)
At 31 March 2019 RF—UE
“H=+—H 2,933,438 194,549 8,776 (13,066) 3,123,697
Profit for the year KEERF - - - 185838 185,838
Transactions with owners: HEBAZRS:
Contributions and distributions 1} & &% 4>k
— Dividends to owners — AN R 16 - - - (169,097)  (169,097)
- - - 16,741 16,741
At 31 March 2020 R-ZZB-ZF
ZA=t+-H 2,933,438 194,549 8,776 3,675 3,140,438
Notes: Fff 3

(i)  As included in the share premium of the Company,
the transaction costs of the placing were paid to its
subsidiary, Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”) and
would be eliminated in the consolidated financial
statements.

(i) At 31 March 2020, the reserves of the Company
available for distribution to shareholders were
approximately HK$3,131,662,000 (2019:
HK$3,114,921,000) which comprised the share
premium, special reserve and retained earnings.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED &AM A

()  HRFEARLSF ARG E - O
J& 7 B &5 b A 2 A RS R (4G 5 A8
Z 1) 2 LB 22 55 A I IS i B 75
KB -

i)y AZF_FF=H=1T—H> &R
A 2 Al 4 IR T I R 2 fil M A0 B
3,131,662,000%5 76 (=& — JL4F ¢
3,114,921,000% 7C) > 645 Ay ae 1
I Gt AR S R B8 B A o



48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WMEARER

Get Nice Financial Group
Limited
HHERMERHRAA
King Joy Asia Limited
EREMARAR

Get Nice Incorporated

Get Nice Securities Limited

SRR A

Place of
incorporation

AR L b

Cayman Islands

HERE

British Virgin
Islands (“BVT")

KB R LR

BVI
&L BB

Hong Kong
&k

Get Nice Currency Exchange Hong Kong

Limited

SR A RA A

Eik

Class of
shares held

i 5 B A2

Tk
Ordinary
wan

Ordinary

L

Non-voting
deferred shares
(note a)

WA
3144
(Hf3ka)

Ordinary

Issued

and fully

paid share
capital /
registered capital
BRTRAR
BRA/ ERER

HK$25,000,000
25,000,000 7
US$1
1ET

US$10,000
10,000 ¢

HK$1,660,000,000
(2019:
HK$860,000,000)
1,660,000,000 7
(ZF-NEF:
860,000,000% 1C)

HK$40,000,000

40,000,000 7T

HK$1

17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—
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Year ended 31 March 2020

48. TEMB R AFE

KA FEMEAFFEBWR :

Proportion of
nominal value of issued

share capital / registered capital
held by the Company
ARABEZERIRE/
AMEFEEED L
2020 2019
—%-%F “E0E
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER  EE | HE W#
72.99 - 729 -
- 729 - N/A
A
- 729 - 7299
- 729 - 7299
- 729 - 7299

Annual Report 2020 %R

Principal
activities

IERE

Investment holding
Investment holding

Investment holding

BE R

Securities dealing
and broking and
securities margin
financing

N

B LA
%?%&uj%f%
el g

Inactive
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BHE_T-_TF=RA=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. TEMBRAFRE &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Issued
and fully Proportion of
paid share nominal value of issued
Place of Class of capital / share capital / registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRTRAR RAAREZERORE/
WEARER HMRUYE  AERGERN RE/EMEX dMEAEER A TEXH
2020 2019
S A
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
HE F HE fi] 4
Get Nice Capital Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 72.99 - 72.99  Corporate finance
services
BHBEARAR i L 10,000,001 ¢ hEREER
Get Nice Futures Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20,000,000 - 72.99 - 72.99 Futures and
Limited options broking
EHMEARAR s L 20,000,000 16 W& RERL
e
Get Nice Silk Road BVI Ordinary US$10,000 - 72.99 - 37.22 Investment holding
Investment Limited
(note b)
BERBBREARAT  RBELHE il 10,0005 7¢ B
(B 7Eb)
Get Nice Asset Management  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000,000 - 72.99 - 37.22 Assets management
Limited (note b) services
BHEEERARAR A Lak 5,000,000 ¢ B AR
(Wf5ED)
Steppington Holdings BVI Ordinary US$10,000 - 7299 - 72.99 Investment holding
Limited
REEGHE Bk 10,0003 ¢ BEER
NobleNet Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 72.99 - 72.99 Investment holding
EEELEE  TER 1£T ig-eedie
Grace Field Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 - 7299 - 7299 Property holding
TR AR it il 2T ESede
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BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. TEMBARFIR - &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Issued
and fully Proportion of
paid share nominal value of issued
Place of Class of capital / share capital / registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRTRAR ARAKEZERIRE/
HEARER AMAIBE  FERORE RE/ERER HMEAEERD L IRRH
2020 2019
-g-gr | 34
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
Bk EE | HE  W#
Pacific Challenge Futures ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 72.99 - 72.99 Inactive
Hong Kong Limited
AFHREMEARAA &b T 10,000,000% ¢ LR -£
Get Nice Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 7299 - 7299 Holding of yacht
Limited
R A IR i Lk 1T A
Bravo Nice Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 7299 - N/A " Investment holding
ERELHE  HER B3 AER SRR
Dixten Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 799 - N/A - Inactive
AR Eik L 1T AER BEEE
Treasure Advantage Limited  BVI Ordinary USs1 100 - 100 - Investment holding
EEELHE  BER ES TR R
Prime Pacific Investments ~ BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
ERELHE  BER ES TR R
Dragon Rainbow Limited ~ BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE  TEk 1% BE R
Group Success International - BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Limited
ERELHE  RER %7 L3 £
Better Dynamic Limited ~ BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE AR S TEER
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. TEMBARFIR - &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Issued
and fully Proportion of
paid share nominal value of issued
Place of Class of capital / share capital / registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRTRAR ARAKEZBRIRE/
HEARER AMEIBE  FEROEE RE/ERER AMEXEERD IRRH
2020 2019
S A
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER  EE| HE M
Get Nice Finance Company  Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 - 100 - 100 Money lending
Limited
EHMHARAR Eik Lk 2T MR
Allex International Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$10,000 - 100 - 100 Holding of motor
vehicles
BB A A ik T 10,0007 ¢ AR
Gain Peak Asia Limited BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE  HER £ R
Gainventure Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary USs1 100 - 100 - Investment holding
ERELHE  HER ES g tid
Get Nice Entertainment BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
HHBREARAR EREaiE Bk 157 R
Get Nice International Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 - 80 - 80 Inactive
Limited
IR RAA #ib il 10007 7C LR
Clever Switch Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
ERELHE  HERK B BEEE
Genius Wise Holdings BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
EEEaiE Bk 1% EER
More Profit International ~ BVI Ordinary US$10,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
SRELHE  TER 10,000 ¢ BRfER
210 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED % 2B R A S



48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Great China Company
Limited

K EARAA

Get Nice Development
Limited

GHREARAA

Great Right Holdings Limited
FEIEBRHRAR

Rise Fortune Group Limited

AREEARAA

Joyful Villa Limited

Quality Champion Limited

AR A

Venturecorp Investment
Limited

Rich Mount Limited

BEARA A

Peak Prospect Limited

Vast Cheer Limited
BEARAA

Place of
incorporation

AR b

Macau

S

Al

Hong Kong
ik

BVI
LR E LS

BVI
e L BB

BVI
Ey il

Hong Kong
i

BVI

KRG

Hong Kong
&k

BVI

Ey il

Hong Kong
i

Class of
shares held

i 5 B A2

Quota capital
RHEA
Ordinary
gl

Ordinary
wa

Ordinary
gL

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
AL

Ordinary
T

Ordinary
L

Ordinary
Lk

Ordinary
Kk

Issued

and fully

paid share
capital /
registered capital
BRTRAR
RA/ ERER

MOP100,000

100,000} ]
HKS$1,000,000
1,000,000 7C

US$1
IE

US$50,000
50,0005 ¢

Uss1
B

HK$9,000
9,000 7T

US$1
IE

HKS$1
17T
Uss1
B

HKS$2
2T

“r A TR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

48. TEMBRAFE &

Proportion of

nominal value of issued

share capital / registered capital

held by the Company
ARABEZERARE/
AMEXEEED L

2020
-g-%%
Directly Indirectly

Ef EE

- 65

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

2019
%1
Directly Indirectly

HE W

- 05

- 100

Principal
activities

IERE

Inactive
LREX
Investment holding

Investment holding

TR

[nactive
UwEfE

Investment holding

Property holding
IES L

Investment holding
B

Property holding
UESE

Investment holding

Property holding
UESEL
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. TEMBARFIR - &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Issued
and fully Proportion of
paid share nominal value of issued
Place of Class of capital / share capital / registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRTRAR ARAKEZBRIRE/
HEARER AMEIBE  FEROEE RE/ERER AMEXEERD IRRH
2020 2019
—%2%F “F
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER  EE| HE M
Billion Times Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
EEELHE  BER S BERR
Get Nice Real Estate Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$4,000,000 - 100 - 100 Property agency
BIFERARAA &b Tk 4,000,000 75 WA
Profit Union Holdings BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Corporation
ERELHE  HER £ 8¢t
Pacific Challenge Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Management Services
Limited
Eit Tk 2 L B3 £
Infinite Treasure Group BVI Ordinary UsS$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
ERELHEE  HER ESH TR R
Bowell Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
AEARAA Fik gL 1T UESELS
Ace Way Business Limited ~ BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE  HER 1% SRR
Get Nice Property Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Management Limited
EHWEEHARAA  Fi Lk 1 L3 £
Macro Music Company Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$10,000 - 100 = N/A" Inactive
Limited
LR HFEARAT &b H 10,0007 ¢ AEf EREERE
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. TEMBARFIR - &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Issued
and fully Proportion of
paid share nominal value of issued
Place of Class of capital / share capital / registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRTRAR ARAKEZERIRE/
HEARER AMAIBE  FERORE RE/ERER HMEAEERD L IRRH
2020 2019
—%-%F “F
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
Bk EE | HE  W#
Legend Soccer Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 - N/A Tnactive
HREHRARAA &b Hif 10,0003 72 AR HEEE
Jumbo Excel Corporation ~ BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
EEELRE  HEk ESH TR R
Access Mission Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
ERELHE AR ES ESELS
Jumbo Excel Group Limited BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE  HEk 1% RERR
Apex Magic Asia Limited ~ BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
EREAHE  EEk ES L B3 £
Trillion Income Limited ~ BVI Ordinary USs1 - - - 100 Investment holding
(note b) (fif3Eb)
ERELHEE  BER ES TR R
Trillion Way Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 - - - 60 Investment holding
(note b)
RAARAA (M) & i L 1,000 72 Rtk
Power Success Holdings BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Incorporated
EREAHE Ak ESH RERRK
Fairy Gather Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
BEARA A i Lk 1T WRER
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. TEMBARFIR - &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Issued
and fully Proportion of
paid share nominal value of issued
Place of Class of capital / share capital / registered capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRTRAR ARABEZERARE/
HEARER AMEIBE  FEROEE RE/ERER AMEXEERD IRRH
2020 2019
S A
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER  EE| HE M
Power Success Group BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Incorporated
EREAHE  HER 1% BERE R
Bright Rarity Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
FHARAA i Lk it ESE
Mega Trillion Group BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - N/A " Investment holding
Limited
EREAHE  HEk 1570 AER BERR
Pear] King Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$100 - 100 - N/A" Property holding
(note b) (FifZED )
ERELlE  RER 100%7C AER WRER
Smart Best Asia Corporation  BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - N/A Investment holding
KEEGHE Al 157 AR BERR
Super Times Overseas BVI Ordinary US$100 - 100 - N/A Property holding
Limited (note b) (JffZEb)
SRELHE  HER 100 7 AR IR
Ultimate Billion Limited ~ BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - N/A Inactive
ERELHE  HER B NER BEEE
214 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 2 EMRAT

=8 !



g R EE U

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Notes:

(a)

The non-voting deferred shares, which are held by a director
of the Company and a director of GNS, carry practically no
rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or
vote at any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the
assets of GNS available for distribution among the holders of
ordinary shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares
shall be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary
shares the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary
share and secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting
deferred shares the nominal amount paid up or credited
as paid up on such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s
assets shall belong to and be distributed among the holders
of ordinary shares in proportion to the amount paid up or

credited as paid up on such ordinary shares respectively.

Details of changes in ownership interests of subsidiaries are
set out in notes 44, 45 and 46 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Except for Great China Company Limited established and
operated in Macau and Access Mission Limited operated
in United Kingdom, all subsidiaries are operating in Hong

Kong.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

48. TEMBRAFE &

(a)

(©)

MARNF —~ZERE KL TESRE 4
R 2 A AR A I A B
SERENC I B, > IR RIS G 7
AT AT B SRR € 4 5wl T K g B &
I o AR > AT R R T i
UR T % 70 1 A N R e 4% 0 908 4 %
FrA N 2 I S R DA S A A o
#%1,000,000,000,000% JC 2 #K H T 3
WA N B DE R A B
Z CVBIOR S R L S0 T T A
EREERERIEA N ST EEZE
EE fi M A A RN o I 43S
FEAB S A B A 4 B 2 U s TR B
Py 02 Bk 2 Le B 43 IR o

Wit JB8 2N ) B RERE 25 2 S B R R
ARG BAE R M R 44 ~ 45 K46 -

o3 T MR R ST e 28 g 2 R EE R
8 A LA SR BE 18 284 2 Access Mission
Limited#b » BT A7 B8 23 7 34774 7 s 48

w2 o
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BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Financial information of subsidiary with individually

material non-controlling interests (“NCI”)

The following table shows the information relating to a
non-wholly owned subsidiary that has material NCI. The
summarised financial information represents amounts

before inter-company eliminations.

48. TEMBRAFE —&

AEEEREAFERERS ([FERE
#)2—HHEBARZHMBER

R E R A O IR R g 2 — ]
Ik Ax B a2 F) 2 Bk o A BB E
TR B AR R A 2w R 8 2 B3 -

GNFG
Erew

At 31 March At 31 March

2020 2019

KoB-BE | T

=A=+-—H =A=1F—H

HK$’000 HK$000

FExT Fioc

Proportion of NCI’s ownership interests FEREZCBEEERELELL G 27.01% 27.01%
Non-current assets IE i By & A 124,695 124,042
Current assets B 4,294,585 5,283,929
Current liabilities =K (483,849) (1,544,643)
Non-current liabilities IE B B fE (3,958) (3,706)
Net assets T 3,931,473 3,859,622
Carrying amount of NCI IF 5 A 45 2 BE T (. 1,062,265 1,042,783
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BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. TEMBARFIE &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
Financial information of subsidiary with individually BRERNERFERER ([FERE
material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) — continued #)Zz—HBMBLARZHBEER —&
GNFG
EEER
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
BE-S-%F |[ME-F AF
ZA=+—B | ZA=+—H
LLEE 1E4E
HK$°000 HK$’000
THERT T T
Revenue W 4 370,372 402,024
Expenses B =2 (230,590) (269,044)
Profit for the year AF JE i 139,782 132,980
Other comprehensive income HoAth 4> 1 Ik %5 930 2,313
Total other comprehensive income for the year AF B A A T Uk 25 AR EE 140,712 135,293
Profit attributable to NCI I T JHEE it B A s A 37,741 35,921
Other comprehensive income attributable to NCI  JF #% % #E 5 E 45
At 2 T W 3 251 625
Total comprehensive loss attributable to NCI JE 5 B E 25 EAE
4 TH Jis 15 A8 37,992 36,546
Dividends paid to NCI A JF $22 M e i 2 e (47,273) (40,518)
Net cash flows from (used in): PINIEH TS (BT )
Z B4 i A
Operating activities £ 42 ) 286,518 668,093
Investing activities K& IEH) (6,274) (919)
Financing activities Al 7 ) (442,276) (480,588)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_ZF=A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2020

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Financial information of subsidiary with individually

material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) — continued

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned

48.

FTENMBLAAFRE &

AEEERNEARFERERS ([FERE
#)z—EHEARZMBEN-&
R A I R g 2 AR S IR

subsidiaries of the Group that have NCI: G E A F 2 R
Proportion of ownership
Place of Principal place  interests and voting rights held Profit allocated to Accumulated non-controlling
Name of subsidiary incorporation  of business by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests interests
FERERRR 2 RARERR
WEATER AMRLLE FTEEXMY REREL A AETHERER 2ER it FERER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
SRIRE | SN | RTRE | 3-0F | CRIRE | SEAE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR Tk TER T
Get Nice Financial Group Limited Cayman Islands ~ Hong Kong 27.01% 27.01% 37,741 35,921 1,062,265 1,042,783
G RMERARAA REHE ik
Great China Company Limited Macau Macau 35% 35% 743 1,095 19,480 18,737
KRR T L

Immaterial non-controlling interest
of Get Nice International Limited 3) (3)
B Ar BB A PR 7] 2 JE K I R

Immaterial non-controlling interest
of Trillion Way Limited - (3)
BEGRAR 2B i

1,081,742 1,061,514
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 19 May 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third-party
individuals to acquire the entire equity interest in
Tao Yun Company Limited (“Tao Yun”) at a cash
consideration of HK$500,000,000 (subject to the
adjustment). The principal assets of Tao Yun are the
three-storey commercial units and an office unit with
total gross floor area of 27,808 sq.ft together with 19
car parking spaces. The acquisition of Tao Yun was
completed on 24 June 2020. Details of the acquisition
have been disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 19 May 2020 and circular dated 5 June 2020.

Upon the completion, Tao Yun will become a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and the assets,
liabilities and results of Tao Yun will be consolidated

into the financial statements of the Group.

Subscription of an unlisted note

On 26 June 2020, the Group subscribed an unlisted
note from Tianji Holding Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and a subsidiary of
a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, at a cash consideration of HK$100,000,000.
The note was issued by East Grand Corporate
Development Limited (the “Issuer”), a company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands with limited
liability with principal activity is investment holding.
The note may be redeemed by the Issuer in whole,
but not in part, at any time by giving not less than 30
days’ notice to the Group. The note bears interest at
8% per annum and will be matured on 26 June 2021.
Details of the subscription have been disclosed in the

Company’s announcement dated 26 June 2020.

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF=fF=+—HILFEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

49. REHRER

(a)

(b)

Wi — M E LT

R oERERATILE AR
M — 2 MmNt (TH
75 1) TS0 B E h ko DB ACE
500,000,000 G (A] T~ ) Ui
T A BRAF] (TFEE ) W25
H-mENEEEERARIESE
T A% 29 27,808°F- 17 Wi = g i 3£ B
AL B — Jig 7 2 B o7 28 [R] 19 45 o
o iERE —-—FOR T -F
RN M H SE R - Wi R IE
ZHBORAANREM A —F

FTAHEDTATILA Z 0 & B 5
TERTRENH A Z WK B

SE AR > T I A AR 8 R R A
EME N R R EE A
1 T 3 I 1 A 55 T 10 B B R
ESREUN

RBEFLTER

A e s /ANy = By pANI = BERV N
£ M DL B 4 A 18100,000,0005 7T
PR R A IRA R (— i
R L VAP NI R 1
AR 2 B b 2 2w R S |
ZH PR EEARLAE
BRAMRAF (817 N 17 >
Ay — M 0% i L B I S
SZHRATE EEEFABE
PE R o BEAT N AT ) A A 1 B
AR iR30 B R AR > B I T
A CHE N A5 8 113 A ) S48 - 52
4% R R8%wr B M =&
TN HA S HE - R
FEERAANT T FENA
TS HZ AR
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 March
HE-A=t-HLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“E-NE CF -t “FZ-0\F “FZ-4 | ZEZEE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T T THER
RESULTS £ |
Revenue I s 581,242 513,600 584,840 561,905 524,524
Profit before taxation B A 543,938 488,577 453,364 311,172 204,280
Taxation i (80,272) (73,291) (80,304) (79,076) (47,552)
Profit for the year AAE BB A 463,666 415,286 373,000 232,096 156,728
As at 31 March
R=B=t-H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“E-RE C“F—tE “Z-NE SEZ-NE | ZB-EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
T T T T TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE 6,048,618 6,843,343 7,837,144 8,318,165 7,212,350
Total liabilities HEfE (1,179,617) (954,968)  (1,155,603)  (1,685,283) (663,489)
Total equity 4 4869001 5888375 6,681,541 6,632,882 | 6,548,861
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(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
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